

1 APPEARANCES:

2

3 Board Counsel: Chricy E. Harris, Esq.

4 Executive Director: Vincent Saladino

5 Madam Chair: Tammy A. Nixon

6 Board Member: Rick Brown (Via Zoom)

7 Board Member: Robert Gronauer

8 Board Member: Katherine Cortez

9 Board Member: Timothy Bezick (Via Zoom)

10 Investigator: Enrique Diaz (Via Zoom)

11 Investigator: Adriana Cuevas Manzo

12 Investigator: Zachary Swarthout

13 Investigator: Cassandra Blackmore

14 Investigator: Jessie Dumas (Via Zoom)

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1	I N D E X	
2		PAGE
3	Meeting called to order	4
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		

1 WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 13, 2023

2

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: It's now 9:00. I
4 would like to call the meeting to order. Roll call
5 with new executive director, welcome aboard.

6 And Executive Director Saladino, please do
7 roll call.

8 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Good morning
9 and thank you.

10 We'll start with you, Madam Chair Nixon.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Here.

12 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Board Member
13 Gronauer?

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Here.

15 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Board Member
16 Cortez?

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Here.

18 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Board Member
19 Brown?

20 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: He just stepped out
21 for a moment.

22 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Copy that.
23 Board Member Bezick?

24 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Here.

25 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Okay. Looks

1 like everybody is here; we have a quorum.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: This is the section
3 for public comment. Members of the general public
4 may make comment on matters appearing on the agenda
5 and may bring up matters not appearing on the agenda
6 to the attention of the Board. The Board may
7 discuss the matters not appearing on the agenda, but
8 may not act on the matters at this meeting. The
9 Board -- if the Board desires, the matters may be
10 placed into a future agenda for action.

11 Public comments may be limited to five
12 minutes per person at the discretion of the
13 chairperson, but will not be restricted according to
14 viewpoint.

15 Are there any public comment -- is there
16 any public comment up north?

17 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: No public comment up
18 north.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Hearing there's no
20 public comment up north, is there any public comment
21 down south?

22 Hearing there's no public comment, we'll
23 move to the next agenda item.

24 Agenda Item No. 3, Board/Executive
25 Director announcements, reports, and updates.

1 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Thank you,
2 Madam Chair.

3 I have provided the Board with the budget
4 quarter for July, August, and September. If there's
5 any questions I can answer those now. If not, I'd
6 like to move on to the statistics. And we have
7 Investigator Swarthout to go over those.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are there any
9 questions on the budget?

10 Okay. We'll move forward.

11 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Investigator
12 Swarthout. So, in quarter three of 2023, we had 37
13 applicants for licensure. 26 that were approved, 11
14 that were either withdrawn or denied. Quarter three
15 of 2022 we had 38 applications applied, 28 approved,
16 and about ten withdrawn or denied.

17 For work card applications, for 2023, we
18 did -- within the third quarter we did 3,250, we
19 received. 2,882 are active, 102 are still in
20 provisional status, 225 are withdrawn, and 121 were
21 denied. Compared to quarter three of 2022, we
22 received 2,768. Of that that are active is 2,423,
23 232 were withdrawn, and 113 were denied.

24 Some of the reasons why we still have
25 provisional ones is we saw a massive influx of

1 applications due to the Formula 1 race, which was
2 held in November.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Can I ask some of the
4 applications, has that -- has DPS been an issue with
5 getting fingerprints back? I did see some areas on
6 our agenda where we were waiting on fingerprints.
7 Is that still an issue?

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes and no.

9 So right now, about two months' wait time
10 on getting the fingerprints back. I'm assuming
11 that's mostly due because of the massive influx we
12 saw, which would be reported on the next end-of-year
13 report which will show how many more we did. But it
14 was substantially more applications than we normally
15 deal with that we received in October and November.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: For the fingerprints
17 that we're doing for the provisional -- yeah, the
18 provisional licenses, do those come back quicker
19 just because they're just the state and they don't
20 go through DPS or...

21 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
22 Director Saladino.

23 When the applicants receive provisional
24 status, that means we cleared them locally and then
25 we're just still waiting for DPS. I do think due to

1 the large number that we got, some of them did
2 fingerprint cards and DPS has a tendency to take a
3 little bit more time when we submit fingerprint
4 cards as opposed to doing live scan electronic.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you for that.

6 Any other questions from the Board?

7 Thank you.

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: So, complaints
9 and investigations.

10 In total we received 27 this quarter, or
11 the quarter three. 22 of them are closed, five are
12 still open, and three violations were issued out.
13 Two went to PPO companies working employees out of
14 qualifications and working people on expired work
15 cards. One went to a repo company working an
16 employee on an expired work card.

17 And then unlicensed activity citations.
18 In 2023, for the third quarter we had eight issued.
19 Seven of the first, one of the third offense
20 (indiscernible). In 2022 we had ten issued, eight
21 of the first, one of the second, and one of the
22 third in (indiscernible).

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Board, are there any
24 questions on the report? Hearing there's no
25 questions, we'll move to approve the transcripts for

1 the September 13th and 14th meeting, as well as
2 October 30th Board meetings.

3 Were there any questions on the
4 transcript -- any questions or concerns on the
5 transcripts? Hearing there are no questions or
6 concerns, I'll move -- I'll take a motion.

7 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
8 Brown. I move that we approve the minutes from the
9 last meeting.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
11 we have a second?

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
13 Cortez. I'll second that motion to approve the
14 transcripts of September 13th, 14th, 2023 and
15 October 30th of 2023.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
17 have a second. All in favor say aye.

18 (All present Board members voted aye.)

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

20 We'll move to swear in anybody that's
21 going to take -- do testimony today.

22 DAG HARRIS: Deputy Attorney General
23 Chrissy Harris, for the record. For anyone out in
24 the audience, including up in the north, if you are
25 on the agenda or intend on providing any type of

1 testimony for any of the agenda items, please stand
2 and raise your right hand.

3 (Those who were present and planned on
4 testifying stood, raised their right
5 hand, and were sworn in by DAG Harris.)

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Now that everybody's
7 been sworn in, we do have a block vote, a potential
8 block vote. I do want to note that the agenda has
9 changed. The contingent items 21 and 22, we were
10 waiting on fingerprints and they were returned,
11 received.

12 Anything come positive on those?

13 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: No.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Nothing positive came
15 back on those fingerprints, so I will add those to
16 the possible block vote.

17 So what we're looking at is a potential
18 block vote for Agenda Items No. 6 through 22.

19 Are there any questions or concerns from
20 the Board or anything that anybody wants to pull out
21 on that potential block vote?

22 Okay. Hearing there are no questions or
23 concerns, I'll entertain a motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
25 Cortez. Motion to approve block items 6 through 22.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
2 we have a second?

3 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Board Member Brown,
4 I'll second.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
6 have a second. All in favor say eye.

7 (All present Board members voted aye.)

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

9 So, if you are one of the agenda items
10 that we just called, No. 6 through 22, you're more
11 than welcome to stay. We're awfully entertaining.
12 But if you have to leave, we understand. So, thank
13 you for attending the meeting.

14 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Thank you, very much.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, the next agenda
16 item is Agenda Item No. 23, InstaHire Check, LLC,
17 applying for a new corporate license.

18 If Mr. Given is here, and Pappas and
19 Wagner. Thank you. Please come forward.

20 If you could, please, state your name and
21 the company. I think spell your name as well for
22 the court reporter, then we'll move forward.

23 MR. GIVEN: Sure. Rick Given with RGiven
24 Consulting. My license number is 3044.

25 MS. PAPPAS: Monica Pappas, P-a-p-p-a-s.

1 I own Fingerprinting Express, and we're starting
2 InstaHire Check, LLC.

3 MR. WAGNER: Thomas Wagner, W-a-g-n-e-r.
4 Retired Las Vegas police officer, Allstate owner,
5 and hopefully a business owner with these two.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Madam Chair?

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yes.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
10 I have a relationship with Mr. Wagner for
11 many years. He's on the police department. He was
12 never under my chain of command. We worked together
13 several times, but I have no problem voting. I
14 don't see that I have any hassle with the vote.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

16 So, please tell us a little bit about your
17 business and your intentions with the license.

18 MS. PAPPAS: Absolutely. For 20 years I
19 owned Fingerprinting Express. We have four stores
20 statewide collecting fingerprint background checks.

21 In 2015, Governor Sandoval's office
22 contacted us through Nancy McCormick at EDawn
23 because name-based background checks and employment
24 verifications were taking over three weeks to be
25 received back. I worked closely with that

1 department and found a system with the State of
2 Nevada, Department of Public Safety to get faster
3 results for Nevadans to get to work. And we are
4 looking forward to implementing that with InstaHire
5 Check, LLC, in providing the name-based background
6 checks for Nevadans.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

8 Board, are there any questions for any of
9 the individuals? I read -- I did see, you know,
10 where you had an issue, I read your -- the
11 description and found myself almost in the same
12 place. So, sympathize with that.

13 MS. PAPPAS: Thank you.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Definitely understand
15 that situation.

16 So, if there's no further questions, I'll
17 entertain a motion.

18 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Madam Chair, this is
19 Board Member Brown. I have a quick question for
20 Ms. Pappas, and possibly Investigator Swarthout.

21 In the background report, it states that
22 the Nevada DPS conducted an audit on Fingerprinting
23 Express and found erratic complaints, and six of
24 nine areas were reviewed. When was that?

25 MS. PAPPAS: That was in 2021. We had a

1 miscommunication with the PIL Board and DPS. We
2 thought we were in compliance working in partnership
3 with a current licensed private investigator
4 company. We have direct access to the civil name
5 check program, which does render accurate results
6 very quickly. So, disseminating those results to
7 the private investigator company, we found was --
8 and not in compliance. I have worked closely with
9 the Nevada Department of Public Safety since, and we
10 have been reinstated. We had a recent audit without
11 any other issues.

12 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay, thank you.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
14 questions from the Board?

15 If there's no further questions, I'll
16 entertain a motion.

17 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
18 Brown. I move to approve the change of licensing
19 status and Qualifying Agent and members for
20 InstaHire Check, LLC, their new private
21 investigator's license, and to approve Rick A. Given
22 to have his individual license put in abeyance so he
23 can become the Qualifying Agent. And also, that we
24 approve Monica Pappas and Thomas Wagner as members
25 of the new corporation.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
2 Cortez. I'll second that motion.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
4 have a second. All in favor say aye.

5 (All present Board members voted aye.)

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes. Good
7 luck.

8 MS. PAPPAS: Thank you.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: The next agenda item
10 is 24 AE Serving, LLC. Do we have Andrew...

11 MR. PTASZYNSKI: Ptaszynski. I'm present.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you for that.
13 Again, state your name and you're probably going to
14 have to spell it.

15 MR. PTASZYNSKI: Andrew Ptaszynski,
16 P-t-a-s-z-y-n-s-k-i. I'm the owner of AE Serving.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Tell us a little bit
18 about your business and the intentions with the
19 license.

20 MR. PTASZYNSKI: Yes, ma'am.

21 We specialize in landlord-tenant notices.
22 And I'm just looking to restructure my company. I
23 had a partner with a law firm that went ahead and
24 dumped me earlier this year. And I'm just looking
25 to pick up the pieces and keep on doing what I've

1 been doing for the last 12 years.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are there any
3 questions from the Board?

4 Hearing there's no questions, I'll
5 entertain a motion.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
7 Cortez. I'm going to motion to approve AE Serving,
8 LLC for a new corporate process server's license.
9 Mr.?

10 MR. PTASZYNSKI: Ptaszynski.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Ptaszynski to be
12 approved as a process server's license, and that the
13 license be placed in abeyance so that he also may be
14 the Qualifying Agent and the member.

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer,
16 second.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
18 have a second. All in favor say aye.

19 (All present Board members voted aye.)

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

21 Good luck to you. The office will get in
22 touch with you.

23 MR. PTASZYNSKI: Thank you, very much.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 25.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Mokofisi.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Mokofisi.

2 MR. MOKOFISI: Present.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Thank you.
4 I'm sure you're going to have to spell this, so
5 please tell us.

6 MR. MOKOFISI: Che Onevai Mokofisi. First
7 name is C-h-e, middle name is O-n-e-v-a-i. I think
8 that's a missed thing on there. Mokofisi,
9 M-o-k-o-f-i-s-i.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So you go by Che?

11 MR. MOKOFISI: Che, yes.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Please
13 tell us a little bit about yourself, the business,
14 and intentions with the license.

15 MR. MOKOFISI: I've been in security for
16 about 15, 16 years. Came from Arizona, now I'm in
17 Nevada. I work for Andy Frain Services. We're 100
18 years, almost 100 years security business
19 corporation nationwide. So they just wanted me to
20 come in and represent Andy Frain Services and be a
21 patrolman, if I can.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

23 Any questions from the Board?

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
25 Cortez. I have a question for Investigator Diaz.

1 Where are we at, as far as the -- sorry,
2 his civil judgments?

3 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Investigator Diaz.

4 I did speak with Mr. Mokofisi yesterday.
5 As of yesterday they are still -- how you see it on
6 the report is how they still are. There are a
7 couple releases, but speaking with Mr. Mokofisi, at
8 first he stated he was completely unaware of these
9 and he is trying to resolve them.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions?

12 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

13 Mr. Mokofisi, where are you in resolving
14 these issues?

15 MR. MOKOFISI: The State of Scot- -- the
16 city of Scottsdale, I'm in the process with that
17 one. The Maricopa one, I'm still in the process of
18 finding out what's going on. Me and my brothers
19 have similar names, so a lot of things that seem to
20 overlap over the years that we have to clean up.
21 Seems to be every other year we have to clean up
22 things. May be one of those things, but I'm still
23 looking into the Maricopa County ones.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, I see here that
25 two are from 2004 from Scottsdale.

1 MR. MOKOFISI: Yeah.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: What are those related
3 to?

4 MR. MOKOFISI: It's a -- I had a roommate,
5 it was a rental thing with an apartment. We paid
6 it, but they already pushed it through the process.
7 Now it's been 20 years. We can't -- obviously,
8 being a roommate, we can't justify, so we have to
9 pay it at this point.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: It does show that you
11 have, like, 57 other delinquencies in the last 30
12 months.

13 MR. MOKOFISI: That was a credit card
14 from, like, 2018. Investment opportunity, didn't go
15 the right way.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are you going to
17 resolve those?

18 MR. MOKOFISI: Yeah.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: When do you intend on
20 solving those?

21 MR. MOKOFISI: Step by step. I've been in
22 the process of cleaning these issues up. Just --
23 that's one down the line on the list.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Do you have --
25 are you in a payment plan or something?

1 I guess my concern would be, and Board,
2 please chime in, but my concern is -- you're going
3 to be an agent for Andy Frain here in Las Vegas?

4 MR. MOKOFISI: Yes, ma'am.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So they're the ones
6 that are going to be responsible for payroll taxes,
7 et cetera.

8 MR. MOKOFISI: Yes.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Board?

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
11 Cortez.

12 Madam Chair, if you can just break down
13 what would the -- because he's also the -- the
14 license would be placed in abeyance, so he can
15 become the Qualifying Agent. As a Qualifying Agent,
16 I share the same concerns, as far as the 57
17 delinquencies in the past 30 months. So what
18 exactly would that entail, just for the record, for
19 clarification? As a Qualifying Agent. Would he
20 have any kind of financial responsibilities?

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: From me?

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Yes.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I'm a Qualifying Agent
24 as well. No. If he's working for a corporation
25 that is not his own, then he doesn't have that

1 financial responsibility as the corporation does, as
2 I understand it. It's not his corporation. So if
3 he was starting a business, then I would be more
4 concerned with that because it would be his
5 financial responsibility for payroll taxes,
6 et cetera.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions?

9 Hearing there are no further questions,
10 I'll entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

12 I move that Mr. Mokofisi be approved for
13 an individual private patrol officer license, and
14 that license be placed in abeyance so he may become
15 the Qualifying Agent for Andy Frain Services,
16 License No. 1141.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
18 Cortez. I'll second the motion.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
20 have a second. All in favor say aye.

21 Aye.

22 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Aye.

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: All opposed?

25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, no.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Do we need to put on
2 record why?

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Because of the
4 financial situations and no contracts to solve them.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: All right. So we have
6 four yesses and one no. The motion passes.

7 I would encourage you, if you're going to
8 go further in this industry here in Nevada that you
9 take care of those. It will preclude you until we
10 see something, open up your own business, hold your
11 own license, okay?

12 Motion passes. The office will get in
13 contact with you with further information.

14 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Madam Chair, this is
15 Board Member Brown. Just a note. We're having a
16 lot of difficulty hearing Board Member Cortez. I
17 don't know if there's a microphone issue, but it's
18 very difficult to hear her.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Understood. We'll
20 take care of that. Thank you.

21 Okay. Agenda Item No. 26, WHR
22 Enterprises, LLC. William Rulla.

23 MR. RULLA: Yes, ma'am. It's William
24 Rulla, R-u-l-l-a, with WHR Enterprises, LLC.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, sir.

1 Please tell us a little bit about
2 yourself -- or about the business and your
3 intentions with the license.

4 MR. RULLA: Yes, ma'am. I'm a retired
5 police lieutenant with Reno Police Department after
6 about 25 years. I obtained my state business
7 license through security training for private
8 industry. Back in, I believe, 2020 when I retired.
9 I'm moving into looking at adding security patrol
10 work to my license. So I'm requesting a private
11 patrol officer license today.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

13 Board, any questions for Mr. Rulla?

14 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
15 Brown.

16 Just -- Mr. Rulla, I'm sorry, I was going
17 to call you Lieutenant Rulla. We've kind of brushed
18 paths a couple of times in the past.

19 But I was just a little interested in that
20 we've got a report that you were operating without a
21 license. I just find it a little odd with your
22 connections and the people that you've known that
23 you didn't realize you needed a license.

24 MR. RULLA: Yes, sir. So, when I applied
25 for my state license in 2020, I spoke to some folks

1 who have a PI license. And reading the statute, I
2 wasn't going to be a PI and wasn't looking to do
3 security guard work.

4 My focus is more on security training. I
5 go into private industry, they're looking to build
6 their own security teams. So going in to build
7 their teams, specifically do training, which is
8 field training -- like field training operations,
9 law classes, things like that.

10 It wasn't until this year when I decided
11 we wanted to start moving into more of the security
12 guard work, we were reviewing the statute, realizing
13 that at this point that I'm going to need that
14 license.

15 We discussed it with Agent Diaz. This was
16 what I was -- my intention. There was no malicious
17 intent behind it. Just very unaware of it. I
18 thought the difference in the licenses didn't apply
19 to the field work I was doing. We discussed it.
20 The best course of action was to cite, which I had
21 no qualms with. I understood my mistake. And I
22 paid the citation in full.

23 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you, sir.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So is it my
25 understanding that it sounds like you almost

1 self-reported.

2 MR. RULLA: I did, ma'am, yes.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: That's --

4 MR. RULLA: I actually -- since I
5 actually -- I started this process in February. I
6 contacted the office, getting the applications.
7 There was some miscommunications along the line. I
8 was delivered the wrong application, and I had to
9 get it redone. So it's been nine months. But since
10 that time, I've actually ceased operations, not
11 obtaining any clients. I've had several clients who
12 want to come forward and I had to decline them
13 obviously, because I want to make sure this is
14 legal.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Well, that's
16 awesome, sir. So on behalf of myself and the Board,
17 I think, you know, self-reporting and taking those
18 actions is admirable. So thank you for that.

19 MR. RULLA: I appreciate that.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
21 from the Board?

22 Hearing there's no further questions, I'll
23 entertain a motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

25 I recommend that WHR Enterprises be

1 approved for a new permanent private patrol officer
2 license, and that William Rulla be approved for an
3 individual private patrol officer license. And that
4 license be placed in abeyance so he may become the
5 Qualifying Agent member to be approved as William H.
6 Rulla, Jr.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
8 we have a second?

9 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Board Member Brown.
10 I will second.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
12 have a second. All in favor say aye.

13 (All present Board members voted aye.)

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations, sir.
15 The motion passes. The office will be in contact
16 with you for next steps.

17 MR. RULLA: Thank you, Chairwoman and
18 Board. I appreciate it. Have a great day.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. You too.
20 Okay. Endeavors -- Agenda Item No. 27,
21 Endeavors Global, LLC. Charles B. Williams.
22 Good morning.

23 MR. WILLIAMS: Good morning.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Were you here when
25 everybody got sworn in?

1 MR. WILLIAMS: Yes.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Please tell us
3 a little bit about your business and the intentions
4 with the license.

5 MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. I've worked in the
6 security nightlife occupation since 2009. I have
7 maintained employment at the Wynn and Encore since
8 2015 doing nightlife security supervisor and lead
9 position. I'm currently still employed there.

10 The purpose of my LLC is specifically to
11 start my private patrol company. I'm looking to do
12 private patrol and also private security.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.

14 Board, any questions for Mr. Williams?

15 Hearing there are no questions, I'll
16 entertain a motion.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
18 Cortez.

19 I'm going to motion that we approve
20 Endeavors Global, LLC a new corporate private patrol
21 officer license, and that Mr. Charles B. Williams be
22 granted his private patrol officer license, and that
23 it be placed in abeyance so that he may become the
24 Qualifying Agent and the member.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do

1 we have a second?

2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
4 have a second. All in favor say aye.

5 (All present Board members voted aye.)

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

7 Congratulations, sir. Good luck to you.

8 MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you, so much.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You're welcome.

10 Agenda Item No. 28, Security Services
11 Northwest, Incorporated.

12 Do we have Joseph D'Amico and Justine
13 Wagner?

14 MR. D'AMICO: Yes.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Did I pronounce your
16 last name?

17 MR. D'AMICO: D'Amico.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: D'Amico.

19 So please state your names for the court
20 reporter and spell them as well.

21 MR. DAMICO: I'm Joe D'Amico, president of
22 Security Services Northwest. And last name spelling
23 is D, apostrophe, capital, A-m-i-c-o.

24 MS. WAGNER: I'm Justine Wagner. I'm a
25 vice-president for Security Services Northwest, and

1 Wagner is W-a-g-n-e-r.

2 MR. UNDERWOOD: I know you didn't call me
3 up, but Samuel Underwood, U-n-d-e-r-w-o-o-d. I'm
4 Qualifying Agent, trying to be.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yes, I saw that.

6 MR. UNDERWOOD: Retired Metro.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Saw that. Thank you.
8 Sorry about that.

9 MR. UNDERWOOD: No worries.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So tell us a
11 little bit about your business and...

12 MR. D'AMICO: Well, I've been in business
13 for about 37 years in the security business. And
14 currently operate a business in Washington State,
15 Alaska, Oregon, and California. And we're looking
16 to expand into Nevada.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

18 MR. D'AMICO: Own a house here and married
19 and got four kids.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

21 Any questions from the Board?

22 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
23 Mr. Underwood, when did you retire from
24 Metro?

25 MR. UNDERWOOD: 2020.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: How long did you
2 have on?

3 MR. UNDERWOOD: 19 years.

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: We never met.

5 MR. UNDERWOOD: No, we have not.

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Been retired 25
7 years. So I was just trying to make sure we don't
8 have a relationship.

9 MR. UNDERWOOD: Show off.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I'm good.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
12 questions?

13 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
14 Brown.

15 Mr. D'Amico, could you give us an
16 explanation of the issue in 2015 for discharging a
17 firearm, dangerous weapon?

18 MR. D'AMICO: Yeah. It's a little bit of
19 a story. But I was visiting my daughter at the
20 Gonzaga University and had my firearm in my car.
21 And went to the hotel and was having valet parking.
22 Put the gun in my briefcase. And then the last time
23 I used that briefcase was a 1:30 flight to Las Vegas
24 and it was discovered in my briefcase at the
25 airport, SeaTac.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

2 MR. UNDERWOOD: And it was dismissed.
3 Just an early morning and didn't check my bag.
4 Lesson learned.

5 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you, sir.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
7 from the Board?

8 Okay. Hearing no further questions, I'll
9 entertain a motion.

10 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
11 Brown. Sorry, I keep seeing Board Member Cortez
12 reaching and I didn't want to interrupt her --

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: -- screen right in
14 front. I'm hand motioning, go for it.

15 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: I move that we
16 approve and -- Security Services Northwest,
17 Incorporated for a new corporate private patrol
18 officer license with Samuel Scott Underwood
19 receiving his private patrol officer license, which
20 he will put in abeyance so he may become the
21 Qualifying Agent.

22 Also move that we approve corporate
23 officers Joseph N. D'Amico, Justine A. Wagner,
24 subject to all statutory and regulatory
25 requirements.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
2 Cortez. I'll second that motion.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
4 have a second. All in favor say aye.

5 (All present Board members voted aye.)

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

7 Congratulations. The office will get in
8 touch with you.

9 MR. D'AMICO: All right, thank you.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda item No. 29,
11 Northern Nevada Response, LLC. We have a few
12 folks -- looks like you're up north, thank you.

13 Please state your name and spell it for
14 the court -- for the reporter.

15 MR. NGO: Good morning, everyone. My name
16 is Andrew Ngo. Last name is spelled lace N-g-o.

17 MR. PUSZKIEWICZ: Morning, everyone. My
18 name is Denis Puskiewicz. That's spelled
19 P-u-s-z-k-i-e-w-i-c-z.

20 MR. KETCHAM: I'm Charles Ketcham. Last
21 name spelled K-e-t-c-h-a, as in alpha, -m as in man.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

23 Gentlemen, please tell us a little bit
24 about yourself and the intention of the license.

25 MR. NGO: All three of us have pretty

1 extensive backgrounds in safety in the military.
2 Myself personally, I was a campus patrol officer in
3 San Francisco before moving to Nevada for the City
4 of San Francisco Campus Police Department. I -- the
5 three of us are personal friends. We've been
6 looking at the economy and the way things are going
7 in northern Nevada, and we think that there's an
8 economic opportunity to provide high-quality
9 security services.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, are
11 there any questions for the three gentlemen?

12 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Mr. Puskiewicz, can
13 you tell me about the arrest in 1986 in Reno for
14 sexual assault?

15 MR. PUSZKIEWICZ: Yes. I was going
16 through a divorce. And in those days, it was the
17 witch hunt in Reno, where people doing sexual
18 assault to kids. And I had a contentious divorce at
19 that point. And I was arrested, but it was -- the
20 charges were dropped eventually, because they
21 were -- found it to be unfounded.

22 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Understand, thank
23 you.

24 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
25 Brown, sir.

1 Going through a contentious divorce
2 doesn't quite explain the charges. How did you come
3 up with the charges that we're seeing?

4 MR. PUSZKIEWICZ: My wife at that time
5 was -- I was working out of town in Gabbs. I was a
6 carpenter. And I was coming home during the week
7 sometimes, and she was watching a little girl from
8 next door. And -- well, anyway, they did an
9 interview on the little girl, and the little girl
10 said that the perpetrator was a boy named Kevin.
11 And I don't know how they came up with me being
12 involved with it. But my ex at that time wanted
13 part of the house I was going to be buying.

14 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay. Thank you,
15 sir.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any other questions
17 from the Board?

18 I just wanted to ask Investigator -- I'm
19 sorry, I'm using two different sheets -- Swarthout.
20 Were all of these listed on his applications?

21 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes, all of the
22 original -- the arrests were listed. The only thing
23 he didn't have listed was one of the charges, but he
24 did list the initial case.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

1 Any further questions from the Board?

2 Okay. Hearing there are no further
3 questions, I'll entertain a motion.

4 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick. I
5 move that Northern Nevada Response be approved for a
6 new corporate private patrol officer license, and
7 Andrew Ngo be approved for an individual patrol
8 officer license, and that his license be placed in
9 abeyance so that he may become a qualifying agent.
10 Members should be approved are Andrew Ngo, Denis
11 Puskiewicz, and Charles Ketcham.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
13 we have a second?

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
15 Cortez. I'll second the motion.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
17 have a second. All in favor say aye.

18 (All present Board members voted aye.)

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

20 Good luck to you, gentlemen. The office
21 will get in contact with you for next steps.

22 MR. NGO: Thank you, very much.

23 MR. PUSZKIEWICZ: Thank you, very much.

24 Have a good day.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You as well.

1 The next agenda item is 30, Kinsey
2 Christian Security, LLC.

3 Do we have Mr. Kinsey Poole?

4 MR. POOLE: I'm here.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good morning, sir.

6 MR. POOLE: Morning.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Please introduce
8 yourself and tell us a little bit about your
9 intentions with the license. Sorry.

10 MR. POOLE: Yes. My name is Kinsey Poole,
11 spelling of Kinsey is K-i-n-s-e-y P-o-o-l-e, Kinsey
12 Poole. I'm originally from State of Michigan, Ann
13 Arbor, Michigan. I was in the military. Army for
14 approximately two years. And in 1971 after I left
15 the military I moved back to my hometown, which is
16 Benton Harbor, Michigan, which I became a Benton
17 Harbor City police officer. And my tenure there was
18 about eight years.

19 From there, I moved to Indiana where I
20 started Kinsey Christian Security Private
21 Investigations. And after that, we were licensed in
22 the State of Virginia, and also we were licensed in
23 the State of North Carolina as a security service
24 company, patrol company.

25 And so my tenure there, I maintain a

1 perfect record. And so with my background, I
2 decided to come to Las Vegas where I have friends
3 that live here that was from Michigan. And we
4 decided that coming with my background and the Super
5 Bowl -- we did two Super Bowls, and we wanted to try
6 to get in on it here. And so from that, we -- I
7 decided to apply.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Now, I just want to
9 make sure, you are applying for a business license
10 to operate as a licensee?

11 MR. POOLE: Yes.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are there any
13 questions from the Board.

14 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
15 Brown. Question for Investigator Swarthout.

16 There are quite a few financial issues
17 listed in the background report. Do you have any
18 status update on those?

19 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Currently, no.
20 My last discussion was on Monday, that they were
21 still working on that.

22 Do you have anything?

23 MR. POOLE: Yes. Okay. Let me read
24 something here.

25 Regarding the judgment and liens reported

1 in the investigation, there appears to be a mixup.
2 My credit report does not reflect these items,
3 leading me to believe that there might be a case of
4 mistaken identity possibly involved my son, who is
5 here. Not only my name, but also his birthdate is
6 just a day apart from mine.

7 So, to address this, I actively engaged
8 with several entities to clear my name at the local
9 IRS office. I confirmed there are no outstanding
10 tax liabilities against me. This was a crucial
11 first step in unraveling these discrepancies.

12 Further inquiries with the Indiana
13 Department of Revenue, through a representative
14 named Danielle revealed no debt in my name.
15 Danielle emphasized that if such significant debts
16 were owed, they would typically result in a warrant.
17 Which led me to contact the Marin County Sheriff's
18 Department. The department affirmed there are no
19 records of any warrant or debts associated with my
20 name.

21 I also reached out to the St. Joseph
22 Security Court regarding a small claims judgment.
23 And the Gary City Court about civil judgment. Both
24 counts confirmed that there are no records or -- of
25 any debts owed by me.

1 These investigations have been eye
2 opening. They reaffirm my commitment to maintain a
3 clean and honest record. Both personally and
4 professionally. I've always believed in upholding
5 my financial responsibilities and ensuring any
6 obligations I met promptly with integrity.

7 I appreciate the Board's attention to
8 these matters, and I am more than willing to provide
9 any additional documents or clarification, if
10 needed.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. I appreciate
12 that. But the names and stuff, none of that is
13 paperwork from the courts that states that you don't
14 have any of these things in your name?

15 MR. POOLE: That's correct.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You don't have any
17 paperwork to --

18 MR. POOLE: No. Because they were so old,
19 they may have been in old archives somewhere. But
20 they couldn't provide me anything. They couldn't
21 find anything. So they wouldn't give me anything.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Because there's some
23 more recent ones in 2011, 2013, '14. I mean, I can
24 understand the ones in 1996 and '97, but the other
25 ones, you know, are at least in the 2000s. So a

1 little concerned about that. I think we stated
2 earlier, the concern is really, because you're
3 asking for a business license.

4 MR. POOLE: Uh-huh.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Or to work and have
6 employees, our concern is your financial stability
7 and being able to make payroll and taxes and such.

8 So, I'll let the Board -- are there any
9 further questions? That's my concern. Anybody
10 else?

11 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
12 Brown. Yes, ma'am.

13 First, I just want to confirm,
14 Investigator Swarthout, you haven't been provided
15 with any kind of documentation based on what
16 Mr. Christian just read?

17 MR. POOLE: No. The only thing, we made
18 telephone calls to these --

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Sir, he's asking --

20 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: I'm asking --

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: He's asking the --

22 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: I'm asking our
23 investigator.

24 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Board Member
25 Brown now. I have not received anything in

1 paperwork form.

2 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you,
3 Investigator Swarthout.

4 Mr. Christian (sic), question for you.
5 Why did you fail to disclose your arrest for three
6 counts of felony check fraud on your application?

7 MR. POOLE: Well, because of the
8 circumstances that led to those check frauds, which
9 were dismissed. There was a misunderstanding with
10 one of my employees that stated he didn't get paid
11 for a week -- three -- three weeks of work. And
12 that was proven not to be true. So I didn't report
13 that because it was indeed business.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: But --

15 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Our forms clearly
16 state to report all arrests, whether dismissed,
17 expunged, you don't feel that they were just, or any
18 other reason. Says report all arrests, okay? It's
19 clearly printed in there.

20 MR. POOLE: Okay. Well, I'm sorry. I
21 must have misunderstood the questions.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
23 questions?

24 Hearing there are no further questions,
25 I'll entertain a motion.

1 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
2 Brown.

3 I move that we deny the license
4 application for Kinsey Christian Security, LLC based
5 on the financial issues, and also the failure to
6 disclose arrest history.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
8 we have a second?

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
10 Second.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
12 have a second. All in favor say aye.

13 (All present Board members voted aye.)

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, your request is
15 being denied. I would say, you know, we definitely
16 want you to try again. I certainly would say, you
17 know, make sure that you get some sort of paperwork
18 or documentation, either through a lawyer or the
19 courts, on the outstanding financial items. Because
20 that is a concern. We want to make sure you're able
21 to make payroll.

22 MR. POOLE: I understand. I haven't had
23 problems paying my people for the last ten years, so
24 I get -- we have three companies in three states.
25 So, thank you.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

2 Agenda item No. 31, Mangana Veterans
3 Group, LLC.

4 Do we have Ernesto Ramirez?

5 MR. RAMIREZ: Yes, ma'am. Here.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good morning, sir.

7 MR. RAMIREZ: Morning.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Please tell us a
9 little about yourself and the intentions -- or your
10 company and your intentions with the license.

11 MR. RAMIREZ: So, I'm a Marine Corps
12 infantry veteran. Did time on the east coast and
13 west coast. Prefer the west coast. Which is why I
14 moved back out here to Las Vegas. Graduated high
15 school out here, so I was raised out here, but born
16 in California.

17 Got out in 2018. And, of course, went
18 straight to security work. And when Covid-19 turned
19 everyone over, I started looking more at opening my
20 own company, fulfilling the shortfalls that security
21 in the Las Vegas valley was having. So I started
22 still working for other companies, but learning as I
23 went along the way. And I figured it's better to
24 get started now and try and hit the ground running
25 while I can, rather than keep pushing it off when I

1 feel like I'm ready. I look up to a lot of security
2 companies here in the valley, also veteran run, like
3 PFI. I hope to get to their level one day.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

5 Any questions from the Board for
6 Mr. Ramirez?

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
8 Cortez.

9 Good morning.

10 MR. RAMIREZ: Morning.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Could you talk to me
12 about the incident back in 2017? June 3rd, 2017.
13 Occurred on a naval base apparently, or something
14 with a Naval Criminal Investigation Service.

15 MR. RAMIREZ: Yes, ma'am. That happened
16 at Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton.

17 So, it was after a long training event,
18 week-long training event with officers. Me and a
19 couple other fellow instructors decided to have a
20 barbecue and started drinking in the barracks. I
21 was new to the barracks area. Ended up in the wrong
22 barracks room because -- just new barracks. My key
23 wasn't working, so I went in through the window. My
24 room was on the first floor, which I know it sounds
25 bad, but it's kind of common practice in the

1 military when officer duty is located maybe five
2 miles away, you don't want to wait for them, you
3 just want to get to bed.

4 So, I ended up going into the wrong room,
5 thinking it was mine. I placed my hand on the bed.
6 Turns out there was a female inside the room. At
7 that point, again, I was heavily intoxicated.

8 Left, woke up in the morning. I had a
9 provost marshall and officers question me. They
10 take me into NCIS for questioning and fingerprinting
11 and there went an investigation.

12 And then once the investigation was
13 concluded, I was charged with -- I believe it was
14 assault consummated by battery and contact
15 unbecoming an NCO.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you recall the
17 incident?

18 MR. RAMIREZ: Very, very vaguely. Like I
19 said, I was heavily intoxicated. I know it's no
20 excuse.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: What do you
22 remember?

23 MR. RAMIREZ: I just remember drinking
24 with my buddies, getting to the wrong room, and
25 running out.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: There's a little bit
2 of a different story from you running out and what
3 she stated.

4 MR. RAMIREZ: Exactly. I can't speak to
5 everything because, again, I was heavily
6 intoxicated. I'm not trying to sway one way or the
7 other. It's just what I can recount from my drunken
8 state.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, in your drunken
10 state, do you recall that there was another
11 individual in that bed?

12 MR. RAMIREZ: I mean, I felt it was. I
13 put my hand on the rack, the bed.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you recall having
15 a conversation with that individual?

16 MR. RAMIREZ: No.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Morning, sir.

19 MR. RAMIREZ: Morning, sir.

20 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
21 The details are little more explicit than
22 what you're saying. And what it says is that you
23 used your name as Bob.

24 Also, when you say you were in such a
25 drunken state you couldn't find your key, or you

1 couldn't get the key into the door. But you knew
2 enough to go through a window. So, you know, just
3 looking --

4 MR. RAMIREZ: Yes, sir. I understand how
5 it sounds, but I --

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: It doesn't --
7 doesn't pass muster with me. I'm sorry. Just --
8 thank you.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
10 Cortez.

11 So I'm going to elaborate on the concern
12 here. I understand you were intoxicated, and I
13 understand clearly that the next day most people
14 when they're highly intoxicated don't recall what
15 happened. However, the victim does.

16 I also understand that when you are given
17 a law enforcement badge, you are held to a higher
18 standard. However, it tends to affect people's
19 egos.

20 My concern is that if you were to get
21 approved for this license, intoxicated or not, I'm a
22 little concerned whether you might take advantage of
23 that position.

24 I would have preferred if you just came
25 straight forward with the information. I'm pretty

1 sure you were given the details of exactly what
2 occurred based on the charges you were given.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, I just want to go
4 through the timeline.

5 First of all, Investigator Swarthout, was
6 this disclosed in the application?

7 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Give me one
8 minute.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay, thank you.
10 And to you, Mr. Ramirez, this happened in
11 2017?

12 MR. RAMIREZ: I believe so. I believe it
13 happened in 2016, but it was closed out in 2017, I
14 believe.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, you know, former
16 military, former military, got a couple up there
17 that are former military, so we do understand, you
18 know, court martials and such. So in that
19 court-martial, you were an E-4 --

20 A. Yes, ma'am.

21 Q. -- at the time?

22 And you were reduced to an E-2. And then,
23 did you -- were you -- because I see that you got
24 out under general versus -- so under that general,
25 were you -- how soon after your actual demotion did

1 you get out of the service?

2 MR. RAMIREZ: It was a couple months
3 later. Maybe three or four months later.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Was that the end of
5 your enlistment or were you --

6 MR. RAMIREZ: I was held past enlistment
7 pending investigation.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So, then, you
9 were not given the opportunity to reenlist or
10 anything, that was it.

11 MR. RAMIREZ: Yes, ma'am.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

13 MR. RAMIREZ: I was already on my second
14 enlistment at that time.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Were your
16 intentions to reenlist?

17 MR. RAMIREZ: No.

18 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Investigator
19 Swarthout.

20 It was not listed on the application.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

22 Any further questions from the Board?

23 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
24 Brown.

25 Investigator Swarthout, did you say that

1 this arrest was not listed in his application?

2 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: That is correct.

3 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you.

4 MR. RAMIREZ: I would just like to address
5 that.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: That's okay. That's
7 okay. Thank you.

8 Any further questions from the Board?

9 Hearing no further questions, I'll
10 entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

12 Motion to deny Northern Nevada Response,
13 LLC as applying for a new corporate private patrol
14 officer license.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: It's --

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Sorry, start over.
17 Deny Mangana Veterans Group, LLC as applying for a
18 new corporate private patrol officer license,
19 Ernesto E. Ramirez is applying for an individual
20 private patrol officer license. If -- and I guess
21 to deny it.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Because of --
24 failed to disclose, and also time and distance too
25 short.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a
2 motion. Do we have a second?

3 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
4 Brown. I'll second.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
6 have a second. All in favor say aye.

7 (All present Board members voted aye.)

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, sir, this does not
9 define you. I understand that there are times when
10 people make mistakes in drunken states. I, too, was
11 in the military. I think Bobby G. was a Marine. So
12 we understand the responsibilities and the stress of
13 being in those type of positions. So it should not
14 define you.

15 But what I would say is own it, admit to
16 it, and don't forget the situation right here. I
17 would encourage you to come back and reapply. I
18 would encourage you to try to better yourself and
19 open a business, because I do think that that is an
20 honorable endeavor. But you've got to own what --
21 the mistakes you made. And that for me is the
22 decisionmaking factor in this whole situation.

23 MR. RAMIREZ: Thank you, for your time.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Good luck.
25 Agenda Item No. 32, Lora Security Company.

1 Robert E. Klaus and Yan L. Garcia Lora.

2 Good morning. So, please tell us a little
3 bit about yourself and the intentions of your
4 business.

5 MS. VELEZ: My name is Megan Velez,
6 V-e-l-e-z. I'm going to be translating for him. He
7 speaks Spanish.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

9 MR. LORA: My name is Yan Garcia Lora.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Ma'am, could you get a
11 little closer to the --

12 MS. VELEZ: Yeah, sorry.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: (Spoke in Spanish.)
14 I told him to move up.

15 MS. VELEZ: I'm going to try to remember
16 everything he said. But he said basically he comes
17 from Cuba. A place that there's not a lot of
18 opportunity. There's Communism there. There's not
19 a lot for the youth to look up to and really
20 accomplish.

21 So when he came here, he started working
22 security in mainly the Latino-focused communities.
23 And he saw that there was missing an opportunity for
24 business and security within that community.

25 That's his mission with this license and

1 his business is to help in the Latino community
2 here. And that's why he wants to open his own
3 security. He has worked security for the past three
4 years. And in that time, he saw and noticed the
5 vacancy of -- and Latino owned security company.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just -- did you say 30
7 or three?

8 MS. VELEZ: Three years.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just want to make
10 sure.

11 Sir?

12 MR. KLAUS: I'm Robert Klaus. Last name
13 is K-l-a-u-s.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: What's your role in
15 the --

16 MR. KLAUS: Qualifying Agent.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, are
18 there any questions?

19 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
20 Brown.

21 Question for Investigator Cuevas. This --
22 Mr. Lora began this company and started working
23 without a license and was issued a citation,
24 correct?

25 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Investigator

1 Cuevas Manzo, for the record.

2 That is correct. He was issued an
3 unlicensed activity in May. It has been since paid
4 off. We've had multiple discussions, and he
5 understands now the process of going through the
6 license. Hence, why he's here.

7 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: And you have a -- do
8 you know how long he was operating before it was
9 discovered?

10 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: It's -- I
11 think it's not exact. We had received a complaint
12 and that's how we began the investigation. Found
13 out the unlicensed activity. So we don't know
14 exactly how long. I would say for at least a couple
15 months.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: If I can, what was the
17 complaint?

18 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: It was from a
19 former employee that just had some complaints. So
20 that was why he came to us and that's how we found
21 out this company isn't licensed. So that's where it
22 came about.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And does
24 Mr. Lora have a PILB license?

25 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: He has a work

1 card, yes.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: A work card. Okay.

3 Any further questions?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

5 When did he apply for this license?

6 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: For the work
7 card or the license?

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: The license.

9 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The license,
10 he originally applied last year, but the Qualifying
11 Agent at that time did not meet the requirements.
12 So it's kind of been a year that he's been trying to
13 get through the process.

14 And he -- he didn't understand -- I speak
15 to him, I speak Spanish. He didn't understand that
16 he was conducting unlicensed activity because he
17 thought that he was just recommending these
18 individuals. Like, okay, let's go here. These --
19 at this company or this place needs security guards.
20 So let's go work here. So he didn't understand at
21 that moment.

22 We explained to him, and through multiple
23 conversations he finally understood. It did take
24 some time for him to kind of agree that it was
25 unlicensed, but in the end it was, you know -- we've

1 been working together very well. He's been very up
2 front. Has a lot of questions and, you know, that's
3 what we're here for is to help them move forward and
4 not make mistakes any more.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, quick question.
6 When you say former employee had a complaint, was he
7 providing or doing payroll? I feel like I want to
8 ask him directly. But could you ask him that? Was
9 he -- he had employees, so he was taking care of
10 payroll?

11 MS. VELEZ: So he said no, he wasn't
12 paying them directly. So when he started working at
13 the Latin bars and clubs, he noticed -- like, he had
14 friends that wanted to work security. So the owner
15 or whatever would ask him, hey, do you have any
16 recommendations, like, anyone who could come work
17 with you? So that's how he started.

18 He didn't know, like -- it was kind of,
19 like, word of mouth. So then the place would pay
20 him, like, a percent. But he wasn't paying people,
21 if that makes sense. Like, the -- sometimes he
22 would, sometimes he wouldn't. It was more so like
23 he would send the people there to work, and then the
24 owner would give him a percent, kind of like a
25 bonus. He was working himself as a security guard

1 there.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

3 MS. VELEZ: So he would, like, recommend
4 people to come work with him. Like, this night, all
5 they need, two security. So he would find his
6 friends or whatever.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Then his friends, were
8 they licensed?

9 MS. VELEZ: So, the employee that they're
10 talking about, she didn't have her security card.
11 So when -- because her friend, I think, was working,
12 like, was working with him. And so she wanted to
13 get into the security. So he said this is the place
14 you need to go to get a sheriff's card so you can
15 start working security. And so she didn't have that
16 card. And so she went, but she was denied because
17 she had some issues on her record and he didn't know
18 that.

19 Okay. So from that moment on, when he --
20 when he found out that he couldn't be doing that, he
21 got the -- yeah. He got in contact with her --
22 sorry, I don't know her name. And they let him know
23 that's when he had to pay the fine. He was fined
24 for doing this. But at the time he wasn't aware.
25 So when he did find out, there was, like, a whole

1 process and the laws he had to follow.

2 That's when he started really going in
3 with her and asking all these questions. Because,
4 again, he had no background in this, no -- he didn't
5 know anything about opening a company or even that
6 he was -- he had the potential to have a company
7 here.

8 And from that point on, he made it his
9 mission to do right and to follow all the steps
10 necessary. And to take out the PILB license.
11 That's why he's here. So that he can correct his
12 mistakes and do right moving forward.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And so just --
14 do you have more questions?

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I do. This is Board
16 Member Cortez.

17 Thank you. And I'm getting a clear
18 understanding that there was probably some confusion
19 and there's a lot to deal with.

20 But my question is, is that your
21 authorization document card to work here (speaking
22 in Spanish). It's going to expire in March of 2024.
23 (Speaking in Spanish.) What is it you are going to
24 do? Where are we in the process?

25 MR. LORA: (Speaking in Spanish.)

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: He had political
2 issues and that's why he has the asylum.

3 (There was a back and forth conversation
4 between Board Member Cortez and Mr. Lora.)

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Just so -- for
6 clarification, I might need to ask you, DAG Harris.

7 So, he's pending -- the asylum application
8 is pending right now. So from my understanding what
9 he said, that while the residency is starting to
10 renew or whatnot, he's -- it's kind of pending. So
11 even if it were to pass in March, it would kind of
12 still be active?

13 I guess my concern is, like, what's going
14 to happen after March 1st? He said everything is in
15 play, but we all know how government works. So...

16 DAG HARRIS: That's true. Chricy Harris,
17 for the record.

18 That also poses additional concerns for
19 me. It might be a little bit premature at this
20 juncture to address this agenda item. So that is an
21 option. At least to just ensure that that back --
22 that issue in the back end is fully resolved before
23 the Board makes a decision.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And again -- this is
25 Board Member Cortez.

1 That's my main concern out of where we
2 stand with this -- with approval or denial.

3 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Investigator
4 Cuevas Manzo.

5 My husband has that same card, so I know
6 the process a little bit.

7 When they have pending applications, they
8 can get extensions up to a certain amount of time.
9 Especially if their applications are pending or
10 status adjustments, which I believe is what he's
11 doing.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay.

13 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: So I -- I
14 can't speak legally, I'm not legal counsel or
15 anything, but just from personal experience, he can
16 have an extension on his employment authorization
17 document.

18 DAG HARRIS: So I think given those
19 representations, if it is the Board's -- if the
20 Board is inclined to move forward, then probably the
21 motion would need to incorporate a contingency
22 factoring in that extension. If not, then it would
23 have to be -- then the agenda item would have to
24 come back to the Board.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are there any further

1 questions?

2 MS. VELEZ: Can he say something?

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Oh, yes.

4 MR. LORA: (Speaking in Spanish.)

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: January 15th of next
6 year he has an appointment with an attorney to find
7 out what the status is.

8 Same thing. That he has an appointment
9 with his attorney in -- January 15th of next year,
10 and we're to find out what the status is to get it
11 moving along.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are there any other
13 questions? I have a few but I just want to make
14 sure there was no further questions.

15 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
16 Brown.

17 I just have a quick question for
18 Mr. Klaus.

19 Do you speak Spanish?

20 MR. KLAUS: No, sir, I do not.

21 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay. Thank you.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So that was my
23 question as well.

24 Are you involved on a day-to-day basis?

25 Are you a manager?

1 MS. VELEZ: We're married, so, yeah.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are you part of the
3 business, though?

4 MS. VELEZ: Yes.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Because that's
6 where I was having a problem. Like, how are you
7 guys making sure that everybody understands what's
8 going on?

9 MR. LORA: (Speaking in Spanish.)

10 MS. VELEZ: I'm basically the one that I
11 do handle the English side of the business, like,
12 communications with clients or calling Robert.
13 Like, that would be me, the one. If it was -- as he
14 said, if he's working with the Latinos and the
15 people that speak only Spanish, then it would be
16 him. But if he has -- I'm basically the translator
17 for everything.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: And I appreciate that.
19 I just wanted to make sure there was a connection on
20 the English.

21 And are you -- do you have a work card?

22 MS. VELEZ: Work?

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: A work card?

24 MS. VELEZ: For security?

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. So you would

1 have to -- right? Am I correct, that you would have
2 to have a work card as well, because you're a part
3 of the business.

4 MS. VELEZ: Okay.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Correct?

6 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
7 Director Saladino, for the record.

8 That is correct. I know Mr. Lora has been
9 in and out of the office numerous times working with
10 Adriana. I think the language barrier is an issue,
11 but I know he's been very open to doing what needs
12 to be done. If she needs to get a work card, that's
13 an easy process. We can take care of that.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Right. I just want to
15 make sure that we have a connection, English to
16 Spanish, and we understand that. So I understand
17 that you're a part of that, which is fantastic. I
18 applaud you for your efforts with the community. I
19 think that's great.

20 But you -- I want to make sure everybody
21 is above board. So knowing that you worked as a --
22 you work as a part of the business, you have to get
23 a work card as well. I don't see it as an issue. I
24 just want to make sure you're aware of that.

25 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam Chair,

1 we deal a lot with regular applicants when it comes
2 to immigration status and work card authorizations.
3 Our fingerprint specialist is very versed in what
4 they need to do documentwise and stuff. This is
5 something we see a lot, so we definitely work with
6 multiple applicants in regards to their status.

7 Normally, when we have a five-year work
8 card, if the individuals don't have the full five
9 years, there's a cutoff date for when that card
10 expires. So then we contact them and let them know,
11 we need the extension documents and stuff, and it's
12 usually provided and we extend it then.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are there any other
14 questions from the Board?

15 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
16 Brown, for Executive Director Saladino.

17 I just want to confirm, because you deal
18 with this all the time, this particular issue is not
19 a concern for you?

20 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: That is
21 correct.

22 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So are there
24 any further questions?

25 DAG HARRIS: Madam Chair, if I may?

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yes.

2 DAG HARRIS: If the Board is inclined
3 to -- just for purposes of the motion however way
4 the Board wants to vote or will accept, but if the
5 Board is inclined to grant the request, the motion
6 would just need to factor in the two contingencies.
7 No. 1, that she receives her work card. And No. 2,
8 that there is an extension on the immigration
9 paperwork authorizing it.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: And can we get your
11 name for the record so you're not just known as
12 "she"?

13 MS. VELEZ: It's Megan Velez. Last name
14 V, as in Victor, -e-l-e-z, like zebra.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

16 DAG HARRIS: So Megan Velez would have to
17 get the work card, and the extension on the
18 immigration paperwork.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are we -- we're
20 good?

21 Hearing there's no further questions, I'll
22 entertain a motion.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
24 Cortez.

25 I'm going to motion that we grant Lora

1 Security Company, LLC a new corporate private patrol
2 officer license. Mr. Robert E. Klaus to be approved
3 a private patrol officer license, and that it be
4 placed in abeyance. That he -- and that he become
5 the Qualifying Agent. Member to be approved is
6 Mr. Yan L. Garcia Lora. All subject to statutory
7 and regulatory requirements. Note, this is all
8 contingent upon one, that Ms. Velez obtain
9 successfully her work card with no negative --
10 positive hits on background checks. And two, that
11 Mr. Garcia Lora is approved the extension of his
12 immigration work card.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we have a very
14 lengthy motion. Do we have a second?

15 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
16 Brown. I will second.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
18 have a second. All in favor say aye?

19 (All present Board members voted aye.)

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations, sir.
21 You're going to make me cry. Please stop.
22 Admirable work. Thank you for going through the
23 process. Please let him know we look forward to
24 seeing him in the future on a good basis.

25 MS. VELEZ: Thank you.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: With that, can we take
2 a break? Come back at 10:25. Thank you, guys.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Don't forget to
4 apply.

5 (Off record.)

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: When you come to the
7 podium, because we kind of walked out and I'm not
8 sure who was sworn in and who hasn't been. So if
9 you come up and you're called up, please identify
10 that you've been sworn in at the first session. If
11 you haven't, then DAG Harris will swear you in.

12 We're on Agenda Item No. 33, Myron D.
13 Davis, applying for an individual private patrol
14 license.

15 MR. DAVIS: Good morning, Board.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good morning.

17 MR. DAVIS: My name is Myron Davis,
18 M-y-r-o-n D-a-v-i-s.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Please tell us a
20 little bit about your business and the intentions
21 with the license.

22 MR. DAVIS: I've been working with First
23 Security Service in Nevada as a security director
24 for almost three years. I enjoyed the company. I
25 think I've showed my worth, and I'm here to try to

1 expand my spectrum and duties with the company. So
2 they encouraged me to apply for the QA. And I'm
3 interested and that's why I'm here today. I'm a
4 Vegas local. College football player, a couple of
5 degrees --

6 THE REPORTER: Can you slow down a little,
7 please?

8 MR. DAVIS: I'm sorry.

9 I have an extensive history in law
10 enforcement and public safety security and
11 investigator. Worked a police officer here for six
12 years. Worked at UMC as an investigator, Sunrise
13 Hospital security officer. Security manager. So
14 I've done a host of different things in the public
15 safety field.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay, thank you.

17 Board, are there any questions for
18 Mr. Davis?

19 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Yes, this is Board
20 Member Brown.

21 Mr. Davis, can you tell me why you were
22 terminated from the Carson -- or I'm sorry, the
23 Clark County School District Police?

24 MR. DAVIS: Yes, sir. Back in 2000, I
25 think it was -- I can't remember the exact date. I

1 was in an opium nightclub in Caesars Palace. It was
2 a female there that I was dating at the time. She
3 was there with another female friend. The female
4 friend didn't like me dating her girlfriend. I
5 think it was a little jealousy going on, because the
6 friend tried to pick on me before.

7 We got into a verbal disagreement. She
8 slapped me on the face and called me the N word. As
9 a defense mechanism, defensive tactics with my
10 police training and what I've been doing all my
11 life, I naturally just pushed her back and told her
12 to get away from me.

13 Approximately, she came back to Clark
14 County School District, lied and said I broke her
15 rib. She makes some photos with a cracked rib and
16 all these injuries.

17 Come to find out later she was lying. I
18 never broke her rib with a simple push to the
19 shoulder. She had submitted some skiing accident
20 injuries to the district attorney, and that's why
21 they charged me. Because when she -- first say we
22 got in an altercation, was no charges brought
23 because it was a mutual combatant. She slapped me
24 first, I had witnesses there that collaborated (sic)
25 she slapped me and called me the N word. They

1 collaborated I pushed her just in the shoulder.

2 But what got it started was the fake photo
3 she submitted and x-rays that later came out through
4 arbitration that they were from a ski accident in
5 Colorado. She never had any injuries, never missed
6 any work. Never went to the doctor at all for that
7 incident that happened at the Opium nightclub.

8 I had a perfect record at the Clark County
9 School District. Impeccable evaluations.

10 The new chief at the time did not know me.
11 He came in from California. I never had worked
12 under him because I was on administrative leave for
13 about two years fighting that case without pay. He
14 did not know me, did not know my history. Even with
15 all the evidence. They did not want to retain me as
16 a police officer.

17 I had an arbitration hearing. I was
18 supposed to pay \$10,000. For some reason, when I
19 went to pay my arbitration hearing, they had sent
20 that notice to the wrong address, even though I
21 worked for the Clark County School District for
22 almost seven years. So I missed my opportunity for
23 arbitration hearing because they sent it to an
24 address that I hadn't used in years. So I missed my
25 \$10,000 to get in with arbitration and an

1 opportunity to fight for my job. So that's why I
2 was ultimately terminated.

3 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you for that.

4 Can you also explain to me why Marksman
5 Security terminated you?

6 MR. DAVIS: Marksman --

7 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: They give -- give
8 reasons of insubordination, negligence, safety
9 violations, failure to follow post orders, violation
10 of policy and procedure, misuse of client equipment,
11 among dishonesty.

12 MR. DAVIS: Those are totally not true. I
13 was fired from Marksman because on my lunch break I
14 was looking -- I just had a daughter go to college.
15 Marksman was paying me very little money to be a
16 manager. I was looking for a part-time job on my
17 lunch break.

18 I did, in fact, use the computer that was
19 in the security room on my lunch break, which was
20 collaborated by video footage. They terminated me,
21 said I wasn't able to use -- oh, I left the Indeed
22 screen up. Somebody found it and reported that
23 Myron was looking for another job, even though it
24 was on my lunch break. And that's why they
25 terminated me. I don't know -- was nothing allowed

1 about it. It was on video. It was on audio. I
2 admitted I was on Indeed. I did leave the page up.
3 And I did use the computer that was in that office
4 at the time.

5 That stuff they put in the report, I don't
6 know where that came from. They called me down,
7 said, office? Said I did use it on my lunch break.
8 Please confirm with the video footage that I was on
9 my lunch break. I don't -- work time, which was
10 collaborated. Some reason they still wanted to
11 terminate me, just because I was looking for a
12 part-time job.

13 In all fairness, I probably shouldn't have
14 used that computer at all, but it was on my lunch
15 break and I was just looking for part-time
16 employment.

17 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you for that.
18 And also, would you explain the most recent charge,
19 February 26th, 2020?

20 MR. DAVIS: February 26, 2020.

21 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Sexual assault,
22 felony open and gross lewdness, gross misdemeanor.

23 MR. DAVIS: I would love to explain that.

24 First of all, I would like to say, this is
25 a female I was already dating. She texted me at

1 1:11 a.m. in the morning. It was her birthday. She
2 said she wanted to have birthday intercourse. We
3 had been talking about it all week. She was
4 supposed to come over around 8:00. I had fell
5 asleep. She text me, I'm sorry, my hair is wet.
6 Can I still come by? Come by.

7 She came over. I left the door open. She
8 came upstairs. When she got there, she said she did
9 not want to have intercourse. She was tired. No
10 problem. I didn't have an issue with that. We had
11 been in a relationship. We had worked together. I
12 did ask her to leave. I think that made her upset.

13 She went to my director at Sunrise
14 Hospital at the time. Told him that I had sexually
15 assaulted her. He said, well, this was off
16 Sunrise's property. Do you have a police report?
17 Did you go to the police? Did you go to the
18 hospital? She said no. Have done none of that.
19 This was a month and a half after that last time I
20 had seen her on that night.

21 She went to the police department
22 approximately two months after I had seen her. No
23 contact with her, no sex, no -- nothing had happened
24 between us. We worked together, walked past each
25 other in the hallway, no issues.

1 Metro decided to charge me for some reason
2 without photos, text messages, a rape kit, no
3 evidence. This woman said that she fought me off in
4 my townhouse. I'm 280 pounds. She fought me off,
5 ran downstairs, forgot her keys, ran back upstairs,
6 even though I just sexually assaulted her, was able
7 to retrieve her keys and run back out of my condo
8 even though (indiscernible) all the condos facing.

9 She -- no evidence of any fight. We
10 didn't fight. I did ask her, hey, you not going --
11 you don't want to be intimate, you woke me up. I
12 respectfully ask you to leave. Because I don't like
13 to sleep with nobody. I think she got mad I didn't
14 have a birthday present for her. I didn't call her
15 on her birthday. I didn't acknowledge her. But I
16 never seen that woman again. I never put my hands
17 on her. We did not have any sexual intercourse on
18 the said night. None.

19 I did attempt to have intimate -- she said
20 I'm tired. My hair is still wet. I said okay. She
21 left. I asked her to leave. They charged me.

22 Only reason I took the deal from -- my
23 attorney said Covid, she said, this case is going to
24 be pending for two or three years. She said,
25 there's no evidence of sexual assault. I talked to

1 the district attorney. I'm going to get you some
2 simple misdemeanor, nonsexual, and we get that
3 expunged off your record. Which, it should be
4 expunged and off any moment. I got this -- Mary
5 Brown told me last week that she got the petition to
6 expunge it.

7 And that's the only reason I took the
8 deal. If it wasn't for Covid and backup and backlog
9 of cases, I would not have taken (sic) the deal. I
10 did nothing to this lady but ask her to leave.
11 Which I probably should have been a little nicer,
12 just let her sleep in the bed.

13 That's that case. That's the honest
14 truth.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are there any further
16 questions from the Board?

17 So, I just -- I want to make sure I
18 understand correctly. You were asking to become the
19 Qualifying Agent for First Security Services Nevada
20 Corp.?

21 MR. DAVIS: Yes, ma'am.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Who are the
23 owners? Are they --

24 MR. DAVIS: They're present, ma'am.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: The owners are

1 present?

2 MR. DAVIS: They are. They're present.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Does the Board have
4 any questions for them? Okay.

5 All right. Hearing there are no further
6 questions --

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I do.

8 Morning, Mr. Davis.

9 MR. DAVIS: Good morning.

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
11 The police department doesn't charge you.
12 The District Attorney's charges you.

13 MR. DAVIS: Affirmative.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: So for the
15 district attorney's office to charge you, as busy as
16 they are, they put some credence to the charges.

17 MR. DAVIS: Sir, respectfully, I'm a man
18 of integrity, even though I made mistakes. I did
19 not cause any physical harm or sexual assault to
20 that woman. I asked the district attorney -- the
21 district attorney called me and said I want to have
22 Mr. Davis come down --

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: I heard that, sir.
24 I'm understanding that, but --

25 MR. DAVIS: -- explain to you why I think

1 she charged me. She -- her explanation to me, she
2 said the State of Nevada has a very low moving
3 forward case because they receive so many cases in
4 the transit in and out. She said, this was any
5 other state we wouldn't have charged you. But we
6 automatically go with the woman and let the court
7 decide. Because the State of Nevada receives so
8 many sexual assaults, that men don't get prosecuted
9 because they in and out of town.

10 My word, they asked me to come down before
11 they charge me. I spoke with the lawyer. He said
12 Myron, do not go talk to them until they charge me.
13 I felt if I went down and talk with the district
14 attorney, they wouldn't have charged me at all. But
15 coming from a law enforcement background, we're told
16 not to talk to the police. Even though I still
17 consider myself police.

18 I understand what you're saying, sir, but
19 I'm going to look you right in your face and say I
20 used no physical violence, force on a woman that I
21 had already been intimate with. Who was more into
22 me than I was into her. I was not the gentleman and
23 walk her down, but I did not use any physical,
24 sexual violence to that female.

25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Thank you.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions?
2 Hearing no further questions, I'll
3 entertain a motion.

4 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
5 Brown.

6 I move to deny the application of Myron
7 Davis for an individual patrol officer license, and
8 also his status as Qualifying Agent, based on the
9 recency of the charges, regardless of the outcome.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
11 we have a second?

12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
14 have a second. All in favor say aye.

15 (All present Board members voted aye.)

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You have an
17 opportunity to apply again in a year. I think, you
18 know, again, time and distance and the situations
19 that happened, just a little too much. Good luck to
20 you.

21 MR. DAVIS: Thank you. I appreciate your
22 time.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

24 Give us a couple seconds to kind of
25 confer.

1 (Off record.)

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. This is the
3 portion with the registration appeals.

4 If you could, please, if you weren't here
5 earlier, could you please stand and get sworn in by
6 DAG Harris?

7 (Those who were present and planned on
8 testifying stood, raised their right
9 hand, and were sworn in by DAG Harris.)

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We'll start
11 with Agenda Item No. 34. Crystal Schmalz. Oh, she
12 withdrew.

13 Let me go off of this one.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: You said she
15 withdrew?

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: She withdrew. Are
17 there any more that withdrew?

18 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
19 Director Saladino for the record.

20 Agenda Item 34 had withdrawn her appeal.
21 Also Agenda Item 81 has postponed. And Agenda Item
22 86 has postponed.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you for
24 that.

25 On to the next Agenda Item, No. 35, Robert

1 Coleman. Is Robert Coleman in the audience?

2 Just to confirm up north, it does look
3 like you have an audience member.

4 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Yes, ma'am, we do.
5 He is Agenda Item No. 37, I believe.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

7 Again, Agenda Item No. 35, Robert Coleman.
8 Not in the audience. So we'll trail.

9 Agenda Item No. 36, Aaron Braddock. We'll
10 trail.

11 Agenda Item No. 37, Alsawn Martin.

12 MR. MARTIN: Yes.

13 MR. GRONAUER: Mr. Martin, what time were
14 you supposed to be here?

15 MR. MARTIN: I was supposed to be here at
16 11:00.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, the registration
18 appeals are supposed to start at 11:00. We are
19 starting early since we have folks in here. We'll
20 just go ahead and trail anybody that isn't here at
21 the end of this bracket, we'll ask them to get here.

22 Okay, Mr. Martin. Please tell us -- or
23 I'm sorry, Mr. -- Investigator Diaz, please tell us
24 a little bit why Mr. Martin is here.

25 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Investigator Diaz.

1 The applicant was denied for a felony
2 possession, slash, purchase of a controlled
3 substance conviction out of Los Angeles, California
4 in 2008. He was sentenced to 36 months' probation.

5 The applicant also has a 2011 felony
6 conviction for felon with possession of a firearm
7 and was sentenced to 36 months' probation. This
8 arrest was disclosed.

9 He did disclose all arrests and was aware
10 he'd be denied and submitted a written letter of
11 appeal. He was not made provisional and is here to
12 appeal today.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, are
14 there any questions for Mr. Martin?

15 Okay. Hearing there are no questions,
16 I'll entertain a motion.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
18 Cortez. I'm going to motion that we grant
19 Mr. Martin's appeal.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
21 we have a second?

22 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is is Board
23 Member Brown. I will second.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
25 have a second. All in favor say aye.

1 (All present Board members voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, Mr. Martin,
3 for disclosing. That does pull a lot of weight with
4 us. We appreciate that. Good luck to you, sir, and
5 the office will contact you with next steps.

6 MR. MARTIN: Thank you.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 38,
8 Ashely Gutierrez. We'll trail.

9 Agenda Item No. 39, Giovanni Verona.
10 We'll trail.

11 Agenda Item No. 40, Michael Duncan?

12 Good morning, sir.

13 MR. DUNCAN: Good morning.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Were you just sworn
15 in?

16 MR. DUNCAN: Yes, ma'am.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Investigator
18 Diaz, why are we here for Mr. Duncan?

19 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The applicant was
20 denied for a felony possession of a controlled
21 substance conviction out of Chicago, Illinois in
22 1993. The applicant was sentenced to four years in
23 prison.

24 He also has a 1997 felony conviction,
25 fifth degree sale of marijuana or a marijuana

1 mixture, small amount. Was sentenced to 13 months
2 in prison. This arrest was not disclosed.

3 He also has a 2002 felony conviction for
4 fifth degree controlled substance. Was sentenced to
5 five years' probation. This arrest was disclosed.

6 A 2005 felony conviction. This was a
7 probation violation for possession of Schedule I,
8 II, and/or III drug. He was sentenced to 18 months'
9 probation. This arrest was not disclosed.

10 A 2007 misdemeanor conviction for driving
11 after cancellation, slash, vehicle registration
12 required. Sentenced to 30 days in jail. This
13 arrest was not disclosed.

14 Also has a 2008 felony conviction for a
15 fifth degree possession of a controlled substance.
16 He was sentenced to 19 months in prison. This
17 arrest was disclosed.

18 A 2009 felony conviction for third degree
19 sale of narcotic in prison. Was sentenced to 48
20 months in prison to run concurrent. This arrest was
21 not disclosed.

22 He also has a 2014 misdemeanor conviction
23 for no proof of insurance. Was sentenced to 30 days
24 in jail. This arrest was not disclosed.

25 A 2018 felony conviction for possession of

1 three grams or more of cocaine, slash,
2 methamphetamine. Was sentenced to 68 months in
3 prison. This arrest was disclosed.

4 The applicant did not disclose all
5 arrests, but was aware he would be denied and
6 submitted a written letter of appeal at the time of
7 applying. He was not made provisional and is here
8 to appeal today.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any questions
10 from the Board?

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
12 Cortez.

13 Mr. Duncan, why did you fail to disclose
14 all of your arrests?

15 MR. DUNCAN: At that point in time, ma'am,
16 I didn't know or remember about all of those. I
17 thought that I disclosed everything when I put the
18 major ones why I went to prison for. And when I
19 spoke to the investigator on the phone about this
20 situation, I explained to him that I wasn't aware of
21 all of those. And if I was, I would have put them
22 down as best as I could.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you indicate
24 that you said that you put down the ones where you
25 served time?

1 MR. DUNCAN: Yes, ma'am.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you not recall
3 serving time in 2009 for the third degree sale of
4 narcotics? You were sentenced to 48 months in
5 prison.

6 MR. DUNCAN: I think that was in
7 conjunction with another felony that I had.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: To run concurrent.
9 And then what about 2014? Do you not
10 recall the 30 days in jail for the no proof of
11 insurance?

12 MR. DUNCAN: No, ma'am.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You don't recall
14 doing 30 days in jail?

15 MR. DUNCAN: I don't recall doing 30 days
16 in jail, no.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Fair enough.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Were you -- have you
19 been to -- it sounds like a lot of your convictions
20 were around drugs.

21 MR. DUNCAN: Yes, ma'am.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Have you been involved
23 in a program?

24 MR. DUNCAN: Yes.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: How long have you been

1 sober?

2 MR. DUNCAN: For a couple -- I wouldn't
3 say a couple years because I smoke marijuana. But
4 as far as the drugs that I was charged with, I've
5 never done those drugs.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So you didn't do the
7 drugs you were charged with selling?

8 MR. DUNCAN: Except for marijuana.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

10 Any further questions for the Board?

11 Hearing there are no further questions,
12 I'll entertain a motion.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is
14 Gronauer --

15 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick. I
16 move denial based on nondisclosure of arrests.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
18 we have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Board Member Brown,
20 I'll second.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
22 have a second. All in favor say aye.

23 (All present Board members voted aye.)

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, your request to
25 overturn the appeal was denied. You do have an

1 opportunity to come back in a year. Now you have
2 all of your arrests listed. So when you go in to
3 fill out an application, please make sure you
4 utilize that arrest -- as long as you don't have
5 anything more recent, use that arrest record. And
6 the Board -- or the office will help you fill that
7 out. So please utilize their services while you're
8 there to do that.

9 I wish you the best of luck. But the
10 reason we denied you was because you didn't include
11 all of your arrests.

12 MR. DUNCAN: Can you -- how can I get a
13 copy of this stuff?

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: If you go to the
15 office they'll help you.

16 MR. DUNCAN: So, the next question is,
17 because I'm just moving here to Vegas. Would I have
18 to reach out to the states where I got these charges
19 at?

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: No. They'll help you
21 with all of the stuff that you will need. So when
22 you go in there, just ask to speak to somebody, an
23 investigator, and they'll help you work your way
24 through that, okay?

25 MR. DUNCAN: Okay, thank you.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Good luck
2 to you, sir.

3 Agenda Item No. 41, Jason Cousins.

4 MR. COUSINS: That was quick.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Sir, have you been
6 sworn in?

7 MR. COUSINS: No.

8 (Mr. Cousins was sworn in by DAG Harris.)

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Diaz, can
10 you tell us why we're here for Mr. Cousins?

11 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The applicant was
12 denied for a felony possession of a controlled
13 substance conviction out of San Diego, California in
14 2013. The applicant was sentenced to three years'
15 probation.

16 He also has a 2006 felony conviction for
17 grand theft from a person and was sentenced to three
18 years' probation. This arrest was disclosed.

19 He also has a 2010 gross misdemeanor.
20 This charge was dismissed, to inflict corporal
21 injury to a spouse. This arrest was disclosed.

22 He was previously denied for failing to
23 disclose in June of 2022 and his appeal was denied
24 by the Board in September of 2022.

25 He did disclose all arrests when applying

1 again and submitted a written letter of appeal. He
2 was not made provisional and is here to appeal
3 today.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Thank you.
5 Board, are there any questions for
6 Mr. Cousins?

7 Hearing there are no questions, I'll
8 entertain a motion.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
10 I'd like to grant Jason Cousins his
11 appeal. Kudos for coming back. You're doing what
12 you're supposed to do and following the rules.

13 MR. COUSINS: Yes, sir.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Appreciate it.
15 Thank you.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
17 Cortez. I'm going to second that motion and say
18 thank you for doing exactly what we said. Good to
19 see you.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good to see you as
21 well.

22 So we have a motion, we have a second.
23 All in favor say aye.

24 (All present Board members voted aye.)

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations, sir.

1 The office will contact you with next steps.

2 MR. COUSINS: Thank you.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, and good
4 luck.

5 Theron Johnson, Agenda Item No. 42. We'll
6 trail 42.

7 Agenda Item No. 43. Eban Siler. Trail.

8 Agenda Item No. 44, Jerry Harvey.

9 Agenda Item No. 45, Angela Davis.

10 Morning.

11 MS. DAVIS: Morning.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator --
13 Executive Director Saladino, former investigator.
14 Please tell us why we're here for Ms. Davis.

15 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
16 Director Saladino, for the record.

17 The applicant was denied for disclosing
18 two felony convictions. One was a 1997 felony for
19 possession of a controlled substance for sale, where
20 she received three years' probation and one year in
21 jail. This is in California.

22 The applicant also had a 2014
23 (indiscernible) in Nevada, domestic violence charge.
24 This case was denied by the Clark County district
25 attorney.

1 I'm noticing on my report right there it
2 said the applicant did not disclose this arrest for
3 No. 1, she did disclose all her arrests and that's
4 why she's here to appeal today.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Just to
6 confirm, she did disclose all of her arrests.

7 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: That is
8 correct.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions
10 for Ms. Davis?

11 Hearing no questions, I'll entertain a
12 motion.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
14 Cortez.

15 Motion to grant Mrs. Davis her work card,
16 grant the appeal.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
18 motion. Do we have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
20 Brown. I'll second.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
22 have a second. All in favor say aye.

23 (All present Board members voted aye.)

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. The
25 office will contact you with next steps. Thank you.

1 MS. DAVIS: Thank you, so much.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you.

3 Agenda Item No. 46, Charles Carr. We'll
4 trail.

5 Agenda Item No. 47, Emani Whatley. Okay.

6 Agenda Item No. 48 Barry McDaniel.

7 Good morning, sir.

8 MR. McDANIEL: Morning.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Executive Director
10 Saladino.

11 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
12 Director Saladino, for the record.

13 The applicant was denied for failure to
14 disclose a 1996 felony possession with intent to
15 sell cocaine out of Minnesota. Received 15 years
16 probation.

17 1997 out of Minnesota, sale of cocaine.
18 This conviction ran concurrent with the 1996
19 conviction.

20 1992, misdemeanor conviction for
21 disorderly conduct where the applicant received a
22 fine out of Wyoming.

23 2007, out of Nevada, misdemeanor for
24 domestic violence with no priors. His charge was
25 dismissed by the District Attorney's office.

1 The applicant did not disclose the arrest
2 history. The applicant did provide a document
3 showing he received a court order to expunge the
4 court records only. The applicant was made
5 provisional and was working for Staff Pro, d/b/a
6 Allied Universal Event Services, License No. 1443,
7 and is here now to appeal.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any
9 questions for Mr. McDaniel?

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
11 Cortez.

12 Mr. McDaniel, why did you fail to disclose
13 any of the arrest history?

14 MR. McDANIEL: Well, as far as my
15 expungement, my lawyer told me I didn't have to
16 disclose those documents because I had paid for --
17 to get it sealed. And then as far as the other
18 situation, I don't remember, as far as something in
19 Wyoming. I never been to Wyoming before. I don't
20 even know what that is.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I just want to make
22 sure that you indicated that your attorney said you
23 didn't have to disclose that?

24 MR. McDANIEL: Yes.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did your attorney

1 help you fill out the application?

2 MR. McDANIEL: Application, as far as?

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: For the work card.

4 MR. McDANIEL: No, ma'am.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: The reason why I'm
6 asking that is because on that application, it
7 states clearly, regardless of disposition. You need
8 to list everything.

9 MR. McDANIEL: I didn't -- I didn't
10 understand that.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I'm having a feeling
12 that you went a little too fast in the application
13 and you failed to see that part.

14 MR. McDANIEL: Yeah.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you, so much.

16 MR. McDANIEL: Didn't see that.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
18 from the Board?

19 Hearing there are no further questions,
20 I'll entertain a motion.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
22 Motion is to deny Barry McDaniels his card, his
23 appeal. Reason is nondisclosure.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
25 motion, do we have a second?

1 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
3 have a second. All in favor say aye.

4 Aye.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: All opposed?

8 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Madam Chair, we can't
9 hear you, so we're not sure.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Let's try that again.
11 I turned my microphone off.

12 So, we have a motion and we have a second.
13 All in favor say aye.

14 (All present Board members voted aye.)

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

16 So, unfortunately, sir, because of the
17 nondisclosure your request to overturn it has been
18 denied. You can apply again in a year. I would
19 encourage that. You saw someone just before you did
20 that process and was able to be approved on the
21 second go around.

22 You do have all the things now, and the
23 licensing board office will help you fill out the
24 application if you have any questions. So we're
25 here to help support you. We hope we do see you

1 again in a year, but unfortunately at this time
2 we're not able to change your appeal.

3 MR. McDANIEL: Okay.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, sir. Have
5 a good day.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, do we
7 want to circle back?

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I'm just going to
9 continue to go through. Has anybody new walked in
10 since we've sworn anybody in? You just walked in?
11 Okay. Please stand. You're going to have to swear
12 in with DAG Harris here.

13 (Those who were present and planned on
14 testifying stood, raised their right
15 hand, and were sworn in by DAG Harris.)

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. You may be
17 seated.

18 So, we'll continue down these agenda items
19 and we'll go back up to the top as soon as we get
20 done. What is the cutoff for 12:00?

21 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: The cutoff
22 for the 12:00 ones will be the next agenda item,
23 Fletcher, 49. He was instructed to be here at noon.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Oh, okay. So we will
25 go back, then. Okay.

1 So, for the folks that weren't here, when
2 I call out your names to see if you've since come
3 in. If not, we'll close out.

4 Robert Coleman, Agenda Item No. 34. Have
5 you come in?

6 Agenda item No. 36, Aaron Braddock.

7 MR. BRADDOCK: Here.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Sir, please come on up
9 to the podium. Thank you.

10 Investigator Diaz, can you tell us why
11 we're here for Aaron Braddock?

12 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The applicant was
13 denied for a misdemeanor CCW on a person conviction
14 out of Pasadena, California in 2017. The applicant
15 was sentenced to three years' probation.

16 The applicant also has a DUI in 2023.
17 This case is still active. He was previously seen
18 by the Board in June, June 14th of 2023 and withdrew
19 his appeal as he did have an active DUI case. He
20 was told to return once this case did clear. As of
21 yesterday, this case is still active and goes to
22 bench trial in March of 2024.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, sir, did you
24 understand the extension that you got?

25 MR. BRADDOCK: Yeah. It was to go to

1 court, and you guys told me to tell you, like, what
2 happened after the court date.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So you haven't gone to
4 court yet?

5 MR. BRADDOCK: No, I have. And they gave
6 me another court date in March.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So do you
8 understand that we can't -- we don't generally make
9 a decision on -- or a negative decision that we make
10 on folks that still have pending court cases?

11 MR. BRADDOCK: I didn't know.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So --

13 MR. BRADDOCK: If I -- if I could say,
14 they -- it's not a DUI. They gave me a deal for
15 reckless driving. Said I was going 12 miles over
16 the speed limit.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: But you're still --
18 you still have a pending court case, though, right?

19 MR. BRADDOCK: Yeah, I still have to go
20 back to court in March.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So if we make a
22 decision right now, the chances are you're going to
23 end up having to come and see us a year from today,
24 which would be back in December of 2024. If we
25 continue to extend the case like we said we would

1 until you get a final decision, then you have an
2 opportunity to come back after everything is done,
3 fines are paid, everything is taken care of.

4 DAG HARRIS: So it sounds as if -- if the
5 Board is inclined to, would likely be to table this
6 agenda item until the next meeting. When is that
7 scheduled for?

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: March.

9 DAG HARRIS: March? Scheduled for
10 March 13th. The next meeting would be what day in
11 March, the appeal? I don't know off the top of my
12 head.

13 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: The 13th -- this is
14 Board Member Brown. Our next meeting in March is
15 March 13th.

16 DAG HARRIS: Same day as his anticipated
17 bench trial.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You might want to wait
19 until the one after that is June, the June meeting
20 to come back. Because then you'll -- you should be
21 done and close out with that case. Does that make
22 sense?

23 MR. BRADDOCK: Yeah.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So is the Board
25 inclined to do that?

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is

2 Gronauer --

3 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member

4 Brown.

5 I'm sorry, just -- would it be advisable
6 for him to withdraw his appeal? Or do we just table
7 it as a Board?

8 DAG HARRIS: Chricy Harris, for the
9 record.

10 The idea is if it's at least postponed for
11 the June meeting, because tabling usually involves
12 the next meeting coming up, and that would still be
13 too early. I think it would be advisable only
14 because I don't know exactly how it might, in
15 essence, start the whole process, or delay the
16 process all over again if we just ask him to
17 withdraw. It might behoove him to -- it might
18 behoove this Board to instead postpone it to the
19 June meeting.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Does he request that,
21 then?

22 DAG HARRIS: That's up to him if that's
23 what he wants to do.

24 MR. BRADDOCK: If I -- I'm sorry, can you
25 repeat it? If I withdraw the appeal, that will

1 change...

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You have to start all
3 over again, probably.

4 DAG HARRIS: But the other option would
5 be, if you are open to that, the other option would
6 be that the Board today could vote to postpone this
7 agenda item until the June meeting. Because your
8 tentative bench trial date is set for March 13th,
9 which is the exact date of the next Board meeting.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Do we take a vote to
11 do that?

12 DAG HARRIS: There would need to be a vote
13 to postpone, yes.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

15 MR. BRADDOCK: If I had to choose,
16 postponing is fine.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So are there
18 any further questions for Mr. --

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
20 Cortez.

21 I do have a question for Investigator
22 Diaz. You indicated, and it might have been at the
23 time of the application, I'm sorry, if I'm missing
24 the dates. But for the 2023 DUI case, it indicated
25 that it was not disclosed; is that correct? And was

1 it on -- date of submission? Got it. He wasn't
2 able to disclose because he submitted the
3 application in January, this occurred in April; is
4 that correct?

5 MR. BRADDOCK: Yes.

6 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Yes, ma'am.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you. No
8 further questions.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
10 for Mr. Braddock?

11 Hearing no further questions, I'll
12 entertain a motion.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.

14 I'm going to make a motion to postpone
15 Aaron Braddock's appeal until June of 2024, our June
16 meeting 2024.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
18 we have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
20 Cortez. I'll second that motion.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
22 have a second. All in favor say aye.

23 (All present Board members voted aye.)

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we've postponed it.
25 You know, this is the second time. We're kind of

1 giving you some rope here. So push your team to get
2 some sort of resolution for that, especially if it's
3 going to be a lesser case, okay?

4 MR. BRADDOCK: Okay.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We'll see you in June.

6 MR. BRADDOCK: Thank you, so much.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

8 MR. BRADDOCK: I'm sorry, do I get, like,
9 e-mail with the next dates?

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yeah. The office will
11 help you, okay?

12 MR. BRADDOCK: All right. Thank you.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: The next item that we
14 trailed was Agenda Item No. 38, Ashley Gutierrez?

15 Agenda Item No. 39, Giovanni Verona.

16 Agenda Item No. 42, Theron Johnson.

17 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Madam Chair,
18 Executive Director Saladino, for the record.

19 Agenda Item 42, Mr. Johnson, he was
20 en route from our office. He went to the wrong
21 location. So he is on his way.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We'll trail it.

23 Agenda Item No. 43, Eban Siler.

24 Please come up front.

25 Investigator Diaz, could you tell why

1 we're here for Mr.?

2 MR. SILER: Siler.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Siler.

4 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Yes, ma'am.

5 We also did receive the fingerprints and
6 we have updated his denial report. So it may not
7 reflect the one you currently have. If you would
8 bear with me.

9 The applicant was denied for a felony
10 possession of a controlled substance conviction out
11 of Pearl, Mississippi in 2014. The applicant was
12 sentenced to 15 years in prison, with release after
13 serving 35 percent of it.

14 The applicant also has a 1993 felony
15 conviction for conspiracy to defraud the government.
16 Was sentenced to three years' probation. This
17 arrest was not disclosed.

18 Also has a 1995 misdemeanor for obstruct,
19 slash, resist public officer and was sentenced to
20 two years' probation. This arrest was not
21 disclosed.

22 The applicant also has has a 2000 felony
23 conviction for forgery, and was sentenced to a
24 suspended 12 to 34 months in prison and received
25 three years' probation. This arrest was not

1 disclosed.

2 The applicant also has a 2007 felony
3 conviction for burglary and was sentenced to 16
4 months in prison. This arrest was not disclosed.

5 The applicant did not disclose all arrests
6 and was aware he would be denied and submitted a
7 written letter of appeal at the time of applying.
8 He was not made provisional and is here to appeal
9 today.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you,
11 Investigator Diaz.

12 Board, any questions for Mr. Siler?

13 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Mr. Siler, this is
14 Board Member Brown.

15 Why did you fail to disclose all those
16 other arrests?

17 MR. SILER: Okay. They said -- this is
18 what they said. I gave them -- like, I paid \$120,
19 right? And they was telling me you have to know the
20 actual dates. And I told -- was telling the lady at
21 the place over here, I forget where I was at, I
22 think off of Durango, I don't know all the dates and
23 the times and stuff. I said when they pull my
24 fingerprints it will all show up. I know it was
25 back in the day.

1 I wasn't trying to be slick. I did -- I
2 have done a lot of time in penitentiary. So I knew
3 fingerprints, I can't outslick them, you know what
4 I'm saying? I wasn't trying to be slick. Like I
5 was telling him, I said, it's going to pull up. And
6 she was, like, okay. I said, I don't know the
7 dates. And he was telling me about traffic tickets
8 and stuff like that, too. I got a few over in
9 there.

10 I took the deal because I just wanted to
11 go take the deal, do the time. I did the crime. I
12 did -- the crime, I really didn't do it. So I went
13 to do the time because where we live, you know, you
14 can't talk too much and be safe out there. Two of
15 them is on there. That's not -- I really had
16 nothing to do with it. But that's no excuse. But I
17 knew once you guys pulled the fingerprints up
18 everything would come up.

19 And I working out in California. I work
20 security right now as we speak. But I just wanted
21 to get one down here so when I do events and I'm
22 moving down here, everything will be all right.
23 That's what I figured.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: When you got your
25 California license, were your fingerprints brought

1 up?

2 MR. SILER: Yes. Fingerprints. I got a
3 card, to work on the docks and stuff. Everything
4 comes up.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So if everything came
6 up in California, why wouldn't you have that
7 information --

8 MR. SILER: Because they don't -- it's not
9 like they gave me paperwork, you know. In
10 California, it takes, like, three months sometime.
11 Like, when I do my TWIC card, it comes up -- they
12 don't show you no paperwork of your arrest. So I
13 even went down here in Las Vegas and asked them to
14 pull something up. They said we don't have nothing
15 on your arrest. And I told them, I said, I was here
16 at a certain time. And they said we still -- we
17 don't have nothing. I -- as a matter of fact, I
18 wasn't too far from here.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: When you say "down
20 here," who did you go to --

21 MR. SILER: I go -- I went to -- first I
22 went -- I forgot -- I forgot the building. I went
23 to a building. It was -- I don't know -- it was off
24 Washington. It was, like, not too far from the
25 projects where I grew up. Straight down. My cousin

1 took me. And I went there and they said they
2 couldn't pull me up. Somebody told me --
3 government -- not the government, but the Feds told
4 me to go over there --

5 AUDIENCE MEMBER: (Indiscernible.)

6 MR. SILER: -- to a building.

7 AUDIENCE MEMBER: (Indiscernible.)

8 MR. SILER: I think it was North Las
9 Vegas.

10 AUDIENCE MEMBER: (Indiscernible.)

11 MR. SILER: Not exactly. I'm saying, I
12 got a place call, but I went -- me and my cousin
13 Runaway (ph). She took me over there. You
14 understand? Like, she took me in Vegas. I used to
15 live out here, but it wasn't too far from over here.
16 They told me they couldn't pull me up at all.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

18 Any further questions for Mr. Siler?

19 Hearing no further questions, I'll
20 entertain a motion.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: My apologies, Madam
22 Chair. This is Board Member Cortez.

23 I do have a question for any investigator
24 that can answer this. When there is a client who,
25 as Mr. Siler indicated, I've been arrested but I

1 don't know the years, what's the recommendation that
2 the client -- that the applicant is given?

3 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
4 Director Saladino, for the record.

5 Typically, when applicants come to the
6 window and state that they have an arrest history
7 and not sure of the dates, we tell them we're not so
8 worried about the dates as opposed to we're more
9 worried about what the actual arrest was for. We
10 can figure out the dates once we get the
11 fingerprints. The main thing is having disclosure
12 of those arrests.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.

14 Mr. Siler, that was actually my concern,
15 or what my thought process was. Is that I totally
16 understand dates. I don't remember what I did last
17 week, so I get it.

18 However, it would have behooved you, had
19 you just listed everything regardless of the dates,
20 when it happened, how it happened, why it happened,
21 or what the reasons behind it were. That's
22 something that us as a Board we look for. Because
23 you're the individual who has that information.
24 Dates, okay, you can be off. The fact that you
25 disclosed it speaks volumes.

1 MR. SILER: Yeah, but one thing about it,
2 I know once my prints went down I --

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I understand the
4 confusion. It's just --

5 MR. SILER: -- I mean, I sit there and
6 told the little black lady that -- I said I don't
7 know all the dates and the times and stuff, but once
8 I put my prints down it will pop up. It's not like
9 I can fool nobody. I know for sure.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we're going to go
11 ahead and take a vote now, but we'll explain. Since
12 you took that path to get to here, we'll explain the
13 next steps in your path once we take a vote, okay?

14 So, are there any further questions for
15 Mr. Siler?

16 Okay. Hearing there are no further
17 questions, I'll entertain a motion.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
19 Cortez. I'm going to motion that we uphold the
20 denial based on failure to disclose.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: And we have a motion.
22 Do we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick, second.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
25 motion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.

1 (All present Board members voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the motion
3 passes. You're not going to get your work card
4 today. Because you took the path, I understand you
5 weren't trying to be slick, but because you took the
6 path that you did versus just listing the items that
7 were -- of the arrests and not having the particular
8 dates, the path that you're on now is to -- just
9 like the gentleman before you, you have an
10 opportunity to come back and see us in a year. You
11 have all your fingerprints and stuff with -- the
12 licensing office will help you.

13 MR. SILER: Okay.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Go to them, ask them
15 to help you fill out your application. They will
16 have that arrest record for you on record, and then
17 you will be able to fully answer with the dates and
18 the actual items. Then you will be denied again
19 because you have the felony, and then you will come
20 before the Board. So it is a process. We still
21 encourage you to come back and go through that
22 process. But as of today, you will not get your
23 work card. Good luck to you, sir.

24 MR. SILER: Do I have to go back to the
25 same place and reapply again?

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yes, in a year.

2 MR. SILER: In a year.

3 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
4 Director Saladino, for the record.

5 The way that process is going to look is,
6 December of next year you come to the Durango office
7 and you let them know that you attended this Board
8 meeting the previous year. And then we'll go ahead
9 and get the arrest history that was provided to the
10 Board, we'll get you a copy of that so that way you
11 can fill out your application. And if there's
12 anything new also disclose that as well. And we'll
13 get you scheduled for the next meeting, okay?

14 MR. SILER: All right. Next December, go
15 down there.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yes, sir.

17 MR. SILER: All right. Thank you.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. Have a
19 great day.

20 Okay, next agenda item is 44, Jerry
21 Harvey? Okay.

22 The next agenda item is Charles Carr.
23 Trail that.

24 Emani Whatley, Agenda Item No. 47. Okay.
25 Our next block is for noon. We're going

1 to go ahead and move forward through that block in
2 case -- does anybody need a break before we do that?

3 Okay. So we'll start the next agenda
4 items. And if you're not called, we'll just
5 continue to trail them and come back at the end,
6 okay?

7 Agenda Item No. 49, Tavaris Fletcher.

8 Agenda Item No. 50, Brian Hogg.

9 Agenda Item No. 51, Margie Jackson.

10 Agenda Item No. 52, Jesse Garrett.

11 Agenda Item No. 53, Daniel Redmond.

12 Agenda Item No. 54, Antonio Brantley.

13 MR. BRANTLEY: Good afternoon.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Cuevas
15 Manzo, please -- I've been working on it. Please
16 let us know why we're here for Mr. Brantley.

17 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Investigator
18 Cuevas Manzo.

19 The applicant was denied for his disclosed
20 felony carry concealed weapon conviction in 2012.

21 He did disclose all arrests, which also
22 included a 2016 misdemeanor domestic violence, but
23 the case was dismissed.

24 The applicant was not made provisional and
25 is here to appeal.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

2 Board, any questions for Mr. Brantley?

3 Okay, hearing there are no questions, I'll
4 entertain a motion.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
6 Cortez. I'm going to motion that we grant
7 Mr. Brantley his appeal.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
9 motion. Do we have a second?

10 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Brown, I'll
11 second.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
13 have a second. All in favor say aye.

14 (All present Board members voted aye.)

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations, sir.
16 I thank you for listing all of your incidences.

17 MR. BRANTLEY: Thank you.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: The office will
19 contact you with next steps.

20 MR. BRANTLEY: For the record, that moment
21 of suspense is worse than Vannah White turning the
22 tiles on Jeopardy. I don't have to go to the office
23 for the next step?

24 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: This is the
25 Executive Director, for the record.

1 We'll be able to create the cards
2 tomorrow -- yeah, we'll be at the office tomorrow.
3 And then we'll give you a phone call to whether you
4 want to pick it up at the office, or if you have an
5 updated address we can mail it out to you as well.

6 MR. BRANTLEY: I think what, like, two or
7 three days?

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Three months.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Couple years.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

11 Instead of going through this list again,
12 could you -- do you know your agenda item? Sir,
13 we'll start that way, go left to right.

14 MR. DANIEL: My name is Aaron Daniel. I
15 was -- received -- I was supposed to come here at
16 2:00 for an appeal.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: What was your name
18 again?

19 MR. DANIEL: Aaron Daniel.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Daniels?

21 MR. DANIEL: Yeah.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Hang on a second.

23 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: 89.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Have you been sworn
25 in, sir?

1 MR. DANIEL: No.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

3 (Those who were present and planned on
4 testifying stood, raised their right
5 hand, and were sworn in by DAG Harris.)

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Give you a second.

7 Investigator Swarthout, why are we here?

8 Yeah, why are we here?

9 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Madam Chair, this is
10 Board Member Brown.

11 We couldn't hear his name, so we don't
12 know who he is up here to pull up the document.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Aaron Daniels.

14 MR. DANIEL: Aaron Daniel, no S.

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: No. 89.

16 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you.

17 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: This is
18 Investigator Swarthout. The applicant was denied
19 for a felony conviction and a conviction of illegal
20 possession of a dangerous weapon.

21 The applicant had a 1999, August 8th, out
22 of Michigan. This one was disclosed. It was
23 assault with the intent to do great bodily harm less
24 than murder or by strangulation. He had -- that was
25 a felony. One year detention for that.

1 1983, 12-6 out of Michigan, felony CCW.

2 He was sentenced to probation and six months'
3 confinement.

4 1982, November 10th out of Michigan,
5 felony CCW, six-month detention. That wasn't made
6 provisional because he did disclose his convictions
7 on his application.

8 And we have received fingerprints. There
9 was no real update on the fingerprint results.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Nothing new --
11 positive on the fingerprints.

12 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: No.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

14 Board, any questions for Mr. Daniel?

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Good morning,
16 Mr. Daniel. Thank you for being here on time. Or
17 very early.

18 You have quite a history of weapons. What
19 do you plan on doing with your work card?

20 MR. DANIEL: I plan to -- I'm a trained
21 person. Those happened years ago in the city of
22 Detroit. But that's no excuse, but I -- I was
23 drinking back then. I've been sober for 15 years.
24 And I plan to come -- move to Vegas to -- to
25 (indiscernible) so I can live happily ever after.

1 And my criminal days have been -- ended long, long
2 time ago. I'm just here to do the right thing.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Do you plan on
4 getting an armed work card or just a work card?

5 MR. DANIEL: Just a work card.

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Thank you.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
8 questions for the Board?

9 Hearing there are no further questions,
10 I'll entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
12 Grant the appeal for Mr. Aaron Daniel for his
13 registration card. Time and distance.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
15 we have a second?

16 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick, second.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
18 have a second. All in favor say aye.

19 (All present Board members voted aye.)

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

21 Sir, you'll get your work card. The
22 office will contact you with the next steps, okay?

23 MR. DANIEL: Thank you.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You're very welcome.

25 Good luck to you.

1 You're next. What's your name, sir?

2 MR. GARRETT: Ventress Garrett.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I'll let you get up
4 here. What's your agenda item?

5 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: 87.

6 MR. GARRETT: I had some dental work, so I
7 hope I can -- you can understand me.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. No problem.

9 We are on Agenda Item No. 87. We have
10 Ventress Garrett with us.

11 Investigator Swarthout, could you tell us
12 why we're here for Mr. Garrett?

13 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Investigator
14 Swarthout.

15 Applicant was denied for a felony
16 conviction, a 2003, September 6 out of California
17 felony for attempted -- attempt to commit crime,
18 robbery, second degree. The applicant was sentenced
19 to two years state prison in institute for men,
20 Chino. He was booked on 01-16-2004 into the prison.

21 He also had another arrest in 2001,
22 April 30th out of California, for corporal injuries,
23 spouse, co-habitant. That was a misdemeanor. It
24 was dismissed, but that one was not disclosed.

25 And the applicant was also denied a

1 sheriff's card. It showed up in the SCOPE he was
2 denied a sheriff's card, work unarmed security back
3 on 6-12-2013. That SCOPE does not list why he was
4 denied.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So he did
6 disclose the felony in 2003, but he did not disclose
7 the 2001 corporal --

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Correct.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: But that one was
10 dismissed. Okay. Sorry.

11 Board, any questions for Mr. Garrett?

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
13 Cortez.

14 Mr. Garrett, why did you fail to disclose
15 the 2001 arrest?

16 MR. GARRETT: I didn't remember any of
17 that.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You don't recall any
19 kind of law enforcement contact coming to you in
20 regards to a conflict with someone that you lived
21 with?

22 MR. GARRETT: Ma'am, as you said, I
23 remember an argument with my -- with my girlfriend,
24 but it wasn't -- it wasn't -- they listed it as
25 domestic, but nothing ever happened.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So you failed to
2 report it because you did not recall --

3 MR. GARRETT: I didn't remember it. I
4 promise you I didn't.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. Second
6 question. Why were you denied the sheriff card?

7 MR. GARRETT: I don't know. They said
8 2013. I don't even recall applying for 2013
9 sheriff's card. I do recall -- I remember maybe
10 2006 or '09 and was approved for one.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you recall why
12 you applied for it?

13 MR. GARRETT: To be a bouncer.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: To be a bouncer.
15 But -- and you said that you were approved for that
16 card?

17 MR. GARRETT: Yes. I don't know why the
18 other one...

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Investigator
20 Swarthout, do we have any information regarding
21 that?

22 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: No. SCOPE lists
23 that he was denied a work for unarmed security for
24 a -- I'm assuming a club called Glitter Gulch.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Glitter Gulch.

1 Us old-school people know what that is.

2 Do you remember now? Do you remember that
3 Glittering Gulch?

4 MR. GARRETT: Would have come to mind if I
5 had been there. No, I do not remember.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, just for
7 timelinewise, did he get one -- you said you think
8 you remember --

9 MR. GARRETT: I remember 2004.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: 2004 --

11 MR. GARRETT: I remember now driving on
12 suspended license. I don't know the date. He
13 didn't say anything about that. But these things, I
14 try to put that behind me.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So -- but he applied
16 for a sheriff's card in 2000 -- you said you applied
17 for a sheriff's card in 2003 or '04?

18 MR. GARRETT: No, like, maybe 2006 or '07.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: '06 or '07.

20 MR. GARRETT: Around there. Because I
21 moved out here in 2006.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Was his renewal denied
23 possibly?

24 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: This one was for
25 security. Looks like he might have had one for

1 bartender, and that might be the one.

2 MR. GARRETT: No.

3 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: It was 12-8 of
4 2006. That's the entry in SCOPE for a bartender
5 one. But it doesn't tell me the status of that one.

6 MR. GARRETT: Never decided to be a
7 bartender. Just a bouncer.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Would that have fallen
9 under -- I know the sheriff's cards were weird back
10 then. Would that have fallen underneath that?

11 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: It could have. I
12 don't know how Metro does their sheriff's cards, so
13 I wouldn't be able to speak to how they entered it
14 into the record. It could have been that they
15 entered it as a bartender and it was really a
16 bouncer. I don't know.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just because I worked
18 through the sheriff's card process just as an
19 explanation, you used to have to go to the sheriff's
20 card to get your work card. But I think we were all
21 lumped in as a group. Just a work card that you
22 were cleared to work. So maybe it was
23 miscategorized. We were just a group of folks that
24 would go in and all security and everything wrapped
25 up into this big ball.

1 MR. GARRETT: To be honest with you, when
2 I started this process --

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, I just -- just to
4 understand. So were you a bouncer at one point?

5 MR. GARRETT: Yes.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Then did you reapply,
7 maybe get denied? Or did you leave town and --

8 MR. GARRETT: When I filled this out,
9 that's when I was -- I thought I was applying for,
10 like, a bouncer's position, not security or anything
11 like that. I don't recall -- and maybe I filled out
12 the application. I didn't apply for anything in
13 2013.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So when you had your
15 first sheriff's card to work as a bouncer, did
16 you -- because that expired, I think it was, like,
17 five years back then? So you would have applied,
18 gotten it, and then had to reapply --

19 MR. GARRETT: I didn't reapply. I didn't
20 go back in to bouncing.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Got you.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Mr. Garrett -- this
23 is Board Member Cortez.

24 Mr. Garrett, what is it that you plan to
25 do with your work card?

1 MR. GARRETT: I'm just looking for some
2 temporary employment. Anything I can do. Stand in
3 a door, check ID.

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Armed? Unarmed?

5 MR. GARRETT: Unarmed.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
8 for Investigator Swarthout or Mr. Garrett?

9 Hearing no further questions, I'll
10 entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
12 Brown.

13 I move that we uphold the denial based on
14 failure to disclose.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
16 motion. Do we have a second?

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
19 have a second. All in favor say aye.

20 Aye.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

22 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Aye.

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: All opposed?

25 Undecided?

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Undecided.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Based off?

3 DAG HARRIS: So that would be abstention.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Abstention, thank you.
5 Go ahead.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
7 Cortez. I'm going to enter an abstention or
8 abstaining.

9 DAG HARRIS: I mean, either you're for or
10 against. Or if you don't want to be either for or
11 against then you're abstaining from the vote.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I'm going to abstain
13 from the vote. Do I need to state why?

14 DAG HARRIS: You could.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Under normal
16 circumstances I would absolutely be in agreeance to
17 deny based on failure of disclosing your criminal
18 history. However, this is a 2001 event, and the
19 case was dismissed. I did not get the details of
20 the matter, but it's clearly over 20 years from now.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the results
22 of the vote were that we're not going to -- we're
23 going to uphold the denial based off the fact that
24 you didn't disclose.

25 I understand that the time and distance,

1 however many years ago it was and not remembering.

2 But we have to remain consistent in how we're
3 treating everybody. So that's going to hold.

4 I would encourage you to come back again
5 in a year. You have everything now. As long as you
6 don't have anything that pops up before that, then,
7 you know, you'll come before the Board again and
8 we'll make a decision. But we do highly encourage
9 you to come back, okay?

10 Thank you. Good luck to you, sir. Thank
11 you.

12 MR. GARRETT: Okay.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We had -- I
14 think you guys are next. Some people have filled in
15 since.

16 What was your name, sir?

17 MR. SHIVER: Christopher Shivers. 74.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: 74, okay.

19 Investigate Swarthout, why are we here for
20 Mr. Shiver?

21 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
22 denied for conviction of illegal use or possession
23 of a dangerous weapon. He disclosed a March 8, 1985
24 conviction out of California for misdemeanor
25 possession -- possess, manufacture, sell dangerous

1 weapon. He was sentenced to 12 months' probation
2 and a fine.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

4 Board, are there any questions for
5 Mr. Shiver?

6 MR. SHIVERS: Shivers.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Shivers.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Mr. Shiver, what
9 do you plan on doing if you get granted a work card?

10 MR. SHIVERS: Pretty much work. I do
11 security in California. I have my open carry and my
12 guard card. And my company -- the company I work
13 for, they have a place out here, too. So me and my
14 wife are planning on buying a house in the future.
15 So when we move down here, I'm going to do security
16 out here. And back and forth pretty much.

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Are you working
18 out here now?

19 MR. SHIVERS: No, because I have to get a
20 guard card to work out here. Because the company I
21 work for, they wanted us because they want me to
22 work out here, too, but I can't because...

23 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay, thank you.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
25 questions for Mr. Shiver?

1 Okay. Hearing there are no further
2 questions, I'll entertain a motion.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
4 Make a motion to grant the appeal of Mr. Christopher
5 Shiver, time and distance.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez,
7 I'll second that motion.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
9 motion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.

10 (All present Board members voted aye.)

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, motion passes.

12 You'll go ahead and get your guard card --
13 your work card. The office will contact you with
14 the next steps, okay?

15 MR. SHIVERS: Thank you, very much.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. Good
17 luck to you, sir.

18 I think you were next, sir.

19 MR. JONES: 91, Demauria Jones.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Demauria?

21 MR. JONES: Demauria Jones.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, sir.

23 Investigator Swarthout, why are we here
24 for Mr. Jones?

25 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Investigator

1 Cuevas Manzo.

2 So, the applicant was denied for his 2016
3 felony conviction for residential burglary and 2018
4 felony conviction for a probation violation.

5 The applicant provided court documents to
6 show the felony convictions were dismissed under
7 California Penal Code 1203.4 on August 15th of 2023.
8 He did disclose all arrests. He was not made
9 provisional and is here to appeal.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

11 Board, any questions for Mr. Jones?

12 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
13 Brown.

14 Could you explain the circumstances of the
15 January 2023 battery arrest? Even though it was
16 dismissed, I'd like an explanation.

17 MR. JONES: Basically, it was New Year's
18 and we were drunk. It was mutual combat. So when
19 it came down to it, I think because the mutual
20 combat, that's why it became a misdemeanor battery
21 instead of felony battery.

22 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any
24 further questions?

25 Okay. Hearing no further questions, I'll

1 entertain a motion.

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick. I
3 move to grant the work card based on full
4 disclosure.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
6 we have a second? Do we have a second?

7 Okay. I'll call for another motion.

8 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
9 Brown.

10 Since we can't sit here silent, although I
11 have reservations because of the recent arrest even
12 though it was dismissed, I will second Board Member
13 Bezick's motion.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
15 motion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.

16 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Aye.

17 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Aye.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Aye.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Aye.

20 Abstain or oppose?

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I oppose, Board
22 Member Cortez, based on time and distance of recent
23 contact with law enforcement.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So it's four to one,
25 the motion passes.

1 I would encourage you, though -- you will
2 get your guard card, but I would encourage you, you
3 see it was a challenge for us to make the decision
4 based off the fact you had recent contact with law
5 enforcement. So please, you know, make sure that
6 mutually or otherwise, you try to stay way from law
7 enforcement as much as possible, unless it's a good
8 interaction.

9 The office will contact you with the next
10 steps, okay?

11 MR. JONES: Appreciate it.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Can we take a
14 quick --

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I'm sorry?

16 AUDIENCE MEMBER: I was going to say I'll
17 go next.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have an order, so
19 since -- hang on one second.

20 Since we're kind of going out of order
21 here, we're going to take these last two gentlemen
22 in this row in front of Gronauer, and then we're
23 going to go ahead and do -- go back and do some of
24 the ones that we've trailed. And then try to get
25 back into some sort of order. But because of the

1 timelines, we're a little out of order here. So
2 please be patient with us.

3 Gentlemen up front, what was your name?
4 Are you on the agenda?

5 AUDIENCE MEMBER: No, ma'am. I'm not on
6 the agenda. I'm here to --

7 MR. LOPEZ: I am 58.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: 58. Please come
9 forward.

10 Have you been sworn in, sir?

11 MR. LOPEZ: Yeah.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You have, okay.

13 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, could you
14 please tell us why we're here for Mr. Victor --

15 MR. LOPEZ: Before we do that, is it too
16 late to withdraw my appeal? I failed to write down
17 some of the arrests that I had.

18 DAG HARRIS: He could. It's late.

19 MR. LOPEZ: Before...

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So then, would he have
21 to request to withdraw right now?

22 DAG HARRIS: He could. It's right before
23 we cited anything. With the understanding that he's
24 doing this process all over again.

25 MR. LOPEZ: Would that get me in for

1 March?

2 DAG HARRIS: What's the timeline looking
3 like on that, Director Saladino?

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: How about we call
5 the case?

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Let's hang on, if he
7 wants to withdraw.

8 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: This is
9 Director Saladino. It's one year from the date of
10 the denial. So then you have the 30 days for the
11 appeal. If we don't receive an appeal, it's one
12 year from that date with the appeal being upheld.
13 If he doesn't appeal it, it's one year from that
14 date as well. So he's waiting a year regardless.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: What if he withdraws?

16 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Still,
17 regardless, he's waiting a year.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, can I
19 ask a question?

20 I just want to make sure that you're
21 asking -- I heard you say you want to withdraw
22 because you feel that you failed to disclose some
23 history.

24 MR. LOPEZ: Yes.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Just want to make

1 sure that that would be your reason to withdraw.

2 MR. LOPEZ: Okay. Thing is, if I withdraw
3 before they read it out, I'd be able to come back in
4 March.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: No, it doesn't work
6 that way. Because it's already been --

7 MR. LOPEZ: Filed.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: -- filed, yeah, you
9 would have to wait the year.

10 So do you want to still withdraw and just
11 come back and apply again in a year?

12 MR. LOPEZ: I'll just hear it out.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

14 MR. LOPEZ: Hopefully everything goes
15 well.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay, got you.

17 No. 58. Investigator Cuevas Manzo, could
18 you tell us why we're here for Mr. Lopez?

19 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yes. The
20 applicant was denied for his disclosed felony
21 conviction. He did list all arrests, so I'm not
22 sure why -- or at least that were listed on the
23 fingerprint report. He was denied and submitted an
24 appeal. He was not made provisional and he would
25 like to appeal.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
3 Cortez.

4 Mr. Lopez, are you going to self-disclose
5 any kind of law enforcement contact between
6 yesterday and 2016? Did you have any arrests or law
7 enforcement contact between 2016 and yesterday?

8 MR. LOPEZ: Only good contact.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So we are in
10 agreement that you have disclosed your criminal
11 history, correct?

12 MR. LOPEZ: Yes.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Perfect.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
15 for Mr. Lopez?

16 Hearing no further questions, I'll
17 entertain a motion.

18 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
19 Cortez. I'm going to motion that we grant your
20 appeal for full disclosure.

21 MR. LOPEZ: Thank you.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
23 we have a second?

24 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Brown. I'll
25 second.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We'll go ahead and
2 start back at agenda items -- the first block of
3 agenda items, to make sure that we close those out
4 and then we'll go into the ones that were requested
5 to be back at noon. And then -- or be here at noon
6 and then continue to move forward.

7 The first one will be Agenda Item No. 35,
8 Robert Coleman. Okay.

9 Since Mr. Coleman is not here, do we want
10 to make a motion? He was supposed to be here at
11 11:00, just for point of reference.

12 DAG HARRIS: I think we could do it in a
13 block.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Block? Agenda Item
15 No. -- and I -- Agenda Item No. 38, Ashley
16 Gutierrez. Okay.

17 Agenda Item No. 39, Giovanni Verona?

18 Agenda Item No. 42, Theron Johnson.

19 MR. JOHNSON: Hello.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Officially --
21 Investigator Diaz, could you tell us why we're here
22 for Mr. Johnson?

23 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: Investigator Diaz.

24 We have received the fingerprint report,
25 so this -- the report is updated.

1 The applicant was denied for a misdemeanor
2 concealing of firearm without a permit conviction
3 out of Inglewood, California in 1994. The applicant
4 was sentenced to three years' probation. He did
5 disclose the arrest and was aware he would be denied
6 and submitted a written letter of appeal at the time
7 of applying. He was not made provisional, and is
8 here to appeal today.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions
10 for Mr. Diaz?

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
12 Cortez. I have a question --

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Johnson, sorry.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I have a question
15 for Investigator Diaz.

16 You indicated -- could you give me the
17 dates of the arrest again? And what he --

18 MS. JOHNSON: (Indiscernible.)

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I'm asking the
20 investigator, thank you.

21 INVESTIGATOR DIAZ: The date that we have
22 is July 2nd, 1994.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board, is there a
24 typo?

25 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive

1 Director Saladino, for the record.

2 This was based on the applicant's
3 application. We have now since received the
4 fingerprints. That's why the dates don't match.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood, thank
6 you for the clarification. No further questions.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions?

8 Hearing no further questions, I'll
9 entertain a motion.

10 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

11 I move we grant the work card based on
12 full disclosure and time and distance.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, do
14 we have a second?

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
16 Cortez.

17 I'll second the motion.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
19 have a second. All in favor say aye.

20 (All present Board members voted aye.)

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

22 So the office will contact you with next
23 steps. You will get your work card.

24 Congratulations, good luck to you.

25 Agenda Item No. 44, Jerry Harvey.

1 Sir, quick question. Have you been sworn
2 in?

3 MR. HARVEY: No.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just -- is there
5 anybody else who hasn't been sworn in yet?

6 Go ahead and stand up, gentlemen.

7 (Those who were present and planned on
8 testifying stood, raised their right
9 hand, and were sworn in by DAG Harris.)

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Sir, just to confirm,
11 you're Agenda Item No. 44, Jerry Harvey?

12 MR. HARVEY: Uh-huh.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Got you.

14 Investigator -- Executive Director
15 Saladino, could you tell us why we're here?

16 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
17 Director Saladino, for the record.

18 The applicant was denied for failure to
19 disclose the illegal use or possession of a
20 dangerous weapon. The applicant had a 1991
21 misdemeanor conviction out of California for the
22 possession, manufacture, or sale of dangerous
23 weapon. The applicant received two years of
24 probation and a suspended sentence with a fine.
25 This was not disclosed.

1 The applicant was made provisional, but
2 was not added to a licensed company's roster. The
3 applicant did state that the weapon was a pole with
4 tape around it that he used to use to hold up the
5 hood of his vehicle. The applicant is here to
6 appeal.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

8 Any questions for Mr. Harvey?

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
10 Cortez.

11 How are you doing, Mr. Harvey?

12 MR. HARVEY: Hello.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: What was the reason
14 why you failed to disclose the arrest?

15 MR. HARVEY: Because it was 32 years ago,
16 and I didn't think it was for me to even provide
17 after 32 years ago. And like I said, it was a -- I
18 think it was a misdemeanor. But like I said, it was
19 32 years ago, and it didn't even dawn on me to put
20 that on the application.

21 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you read the
22 application instructions in full?

23 MR. HARVEY: I pretty much did.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So, unfortunately,
25 there is a one -- there is one spot specifically in

1 the application that has a nice business red stop
2 sign. And it says to make sure that you list all of
3 your criminal activity, criminal history, regardless
4 of disposition, regardless of time. Did you happen
5 to --

6 MR. HARVEY: I didn't happen to even --

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You missed that
8 part?

9 MR. HARVEY: Yes.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay, fair enough.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
12 for Mr. Harvey?

13 Hearing there are no further questions,
14 I'll entertain a motion.

15 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
16 Brown.

17 And Mr. Harvey, I feel bad because this
18 was 32 years ago. But I'm going to move to uphold
19 the denial based on failure to disclose.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
21 we have a second?

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
23 Cortez.

24 I am going to second that motion.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion,

1 we have a second. All in favor say aye.

2 (All present Board members voted aye.)

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So unfortunately, sir,
4 it's very clear in our directions. And we do
5 everything with that we can possible to make sure
6 that everybody understands it doesn't matter how
7 long ago it was. It's a hard lesson to learn and
8 we're really sorry to have to do this because we do
9 truly want everybody back to work. But
10 unfortunately, we have to remain consistent in our
11 decision.

12 MR. HARVEY: When can I reapply?

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: The next steps would
14 be to reapply in one year. And then you'll just
15 list what you have on this record, and then you'll
16 be able to move forward with the entire process.

17 MR. HARVEY: Okay. All right.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, very much,
19 sir. Have a good day.

20 Agenda Item No. 46, Charles Carr.

21 Mr. Carr, are you here?

22 And then Agenda Item No. 47, Emani
23 Whatley?

24 So, that closes out the first session. So
25 then we'll entertain a block motion for Agenda Items

1 Nos.?

2 DAG HARRIS: 35, 38, 39, 46, and 47.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Madam Chair, there
4 were some people that walked in. I just want to
5 make sure they are not those individuals.

6 DAG HARRIS: That's a good idea.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So one last
8 call, last time. Robert Coleman. Ashley Gutierrez.
9 Giovanni Verona. Charles Carr. And Emani Whatley.
10 Okay.

11 I'll entertain a motion for a block vote.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
13 Cortez --

14 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
15 Brown. I move that we uphold the denials for items
16 35, 38, 39, 46, and 47.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
18 motion --

19 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Based on failure to
20 appear.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
22 we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
24 Cortez. I'll second that motion.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we

1 have a second. All in favor say aye.

2 (All present Board members voted aye.)

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

4 Okay. The next block was supposed to be
5 here at noon, so I'll go ahead and read those, ones
6 that we trailed off, and then continue through.

7 Agenda Item No. 49, Tavaris Fletcher.

8 Agenda Item No. 50, Bryan Hogg.

9 Agenda Item No. 51, Margie Jackson.

10 Agenda Item No. 52, Jesse Garrett.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Come up and see us,
12 sir.

13 MR. GARRETT: Good morning.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Morning. Or
15 afternoon.

16 MR. GARRETT: Afternoon, rather. Yeah,
17 that's right.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just to confirm, sir,
19 you have been sworn in?

20 MR. GARRETT: Yes.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Investigator --
22 Executive Director Saladino.

23 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Saladino,
24 for the record.

25 The applicant was denied for failure to

1 disclose felony convictions, illegal use of or
2 possession of a dangerous weapon.

3 1988 out of California, felony possession
4 of cocaine for sale and accessory. The applicant
5 received eight days in jail.

6 1988 out of California, transport to sell
7 narcotics. Received three years' probation and six
8 months in jail. I do believe the first and second
9 ones ran concurrent.

10 1993 out of California, felony possession
11 of a firearm. Received one year, four months in
12 prison.

13 1995, March, out of California, possession
14 of a controlled substance with priors, felony,
15 received two years in prison.

16 1999, November, out of California,
17 misdemeanor DUI. Received three years' probation
18 and 16 days in jail.

19 2000, August out of California, felony,
20 possession of a controlled substance for sale.
21 Convicted, received two years in prison.

22 2002, May, out of California, DUI, six
23 months in jail, misdemeanor.

24 2004, felony conviction for possession of
25 controlled substance paraphernalia. Received three

1 years' probation and 27 days in jail.

2 The applicant did violate his parole three
3 times in '95. It was March, May, and in September.

4 2007, March, in California, felony
5 possession of a controlled substance, driving on a
6 suspended license, and refused DUI test. Received
7 three years' probation, 30 days jail.

8 2008, out of California, felony possession
9 of a controlled substance. Received two years'
10 prison.

11 The applicant did disclose a 2021 DUI out
12 of Las Vegas. That charge was dismissed.

13 Once the applicant was denied, he did list
14 his arrests and convictions. The applicant was made
15 provisional and was added to United American
16 Security, LLC, dba GardaWorld. The applicant is
17 here to appeal.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: And Investigator -- or
19 Executive Director, am I correct that there's
20 another one kind of put in there, it says applicant
21 did not disclose 2008 child cruelty, battery DBADW.

22 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Okay, yes.

23 That charge, he did list that when he
24 provided everything after he was denied. There was
25 a 2008 child cruelty, battery, DB assault with a

1 deadly weapon not a firearm, and false ID to a PO.

2 All those charges had been dismissed.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay, got you.

4 Board, any questions for Mr. Garrett?

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board --

6 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member

7 Brown.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You got it.

9 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member

10 Brown.

11 Mr. Garrett, why did you fail to disclose

12 all of these arrests?

13 MR. GARRETT: I'm sorry, I'm -- as you can

14 tell, from California. And I was under the

15 impression that I didn't have to disclose anything

16 after seven years. It's not like I was trying to

17 hide anything. I'm a whole different person now.

18 That was way back in my past. And if I would have

19 known -- I didn't even know all of the convictions.

20 This sounds -- I didn't even know I had that many.

21 I'm so sorry. I'm such a different person. That's

22 not me any more. I just was under the impression

23 that after seven years you didn't have to disclose.

24 That's the only reason.

25 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Where did you get

1 that impression, sir? Where did you get that idea?

2 MR. GARRETT: That was -- maybe because
3 that's California law? I think.

4 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay. One of our
5 former chairmen says, this is not California, this
6 is Nevada.

7 MR. GARRETT: I know.

8 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: And as Board Member
9 Cortez stated earlier, it's very clearly marked in
10 our forms. You need to disclose all arrests,
11 regardless of time, disposition, whether they were
12 expunged, whether your attorney told you you didn't
13 have to, you have to disclose all of them, sir.

14 MR. GARRETT: I understand that. And I
15 did make an effort to after the fact.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Right.

17 Any further questions for Mr. Garrett?

18 Hearing there are no further questions,
19 I'll entertain a motion.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
21 Cortez. I'm going to motion that we uphold the
22 appeal based on -- uphold the denial based on
23 nondisclosure of any criminal history. The
24 majority.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I have a motion. Do I

1 have a second?

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick, second.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion,
4 we have a second. All in favor, say aye.

5 (All present Board members voted aye.).

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, sir, at this time
7 you will not get your work card based off the fact
8 that you did not disclose. I appreciate the
9 misunderstanding, but it's very clearly stated in
10 our application. So because of that we need to
11 remain consistent.

12 You have an opportunity to apply again in
13 a year. At that time you can work with the office.
14 They will be able to give you all of -- the list of
15 all of this information so that you can disclose
16 properly. The only thing that you would need to do
17 is update anything that occurred since now in that
18 year's time frame. So, good luck to you, sir.

19 MR. GARRETT: Thank you.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Take care.

21 Agenda Item No. 53, Daniel Redmond.

22 Agenda Item No. 55, Kevontay Hunter.

23 You've been sworn in?

24 MR. HUNTER: Yes.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Cuevas

1 Manzo, would you please tell us why we're here for
2 Mr. Hunter?

3 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Investigator
4 Cuevas Manzo.

5 The applicant was denied for his 2018
6 felony conviction for assault with a deadly weapon,
7 possible GBI. He did disclose his arrest and was
8 aware he would be denied. The applicant is
9 reapplying. So he previously had a card, and the
10 arrest occurred while he was in possession of his
11 previous work card.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Are there any
13 questions for Mr. Hunter?

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
15 Cortez.

16 Good afternoon. Talk to me about the 2018
17 incident. What occurred?

18 MR. HUNTER: The incident was with my
19 child's mother. My family went to the house to go
20 speak with them and they got into a fight. And the
21 people that got into a fight were underage. So when
22 the law was involved, they -- the children were
23 willing to testify to say that they are the ones
24 that committed the crime. But California didn't
25 want that, they wanted an adult.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. I'm hearing a
2 lot of they, they, they. I need to know why you
3 were charged with the assault.

4 MR. HUNTER: I was charged because I said
5 that I was at the scene. That's the only reason why
6 I was charged. And I had the opportunity to go to
7 trial for it, but during the time I didn't have any
8 money or anything, so I just pled no contest and I
9 took the charge for it. And also, I just had a
10 child. So I would rather try to get to work than to
11 fight a trial when I have no means to fight the
12 trial.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. Thank
14 you.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So were you charged
16 because the children were your children or you were
17 the adult in the room?

18 MR. HUNTER: Basically because I was the
19 adult. Courts, they didn't want to go after the
20 children. My family members, they called to tell
21 the courts that they were -- no, the story is not
22 correct. But they didn't want to hear it.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: How old were the
24 children?

25 MR. HUNTER: They were 16, 17 at the time.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Young adults. Okay.

2 MR. HUNTER: Yeah.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
4 questions for Mr. Hunter?

5 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Mr. Hunter, this is
6 Board Member Brown.

7 Did I understand you to say you were
8 charged because you encouraged the kids to fight?

9 MR. HUNTER: No, I was charged just simply
10 because I told the truth, that I was there at the
11 scene. But I guess because I didn't stop anyone
12 from fighting during that time that I got charged
13 with the crime.

14 And truthfully, I didn't stop anyone
15 because I was angry at the situation that happened
16 earlier that day. My child's mother sent someone to
17 my house to fight me. So I was angry. But I did
18 not encourage hitting a woman, though. I don't do
19 that. And that's simply why I believe I got
20 charged.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So you did not
22 encourage, but you were upset at the situation so
23 you were there and just didn't stop it.

24 MR. HUNTER: I just didn't stop it. My
25 opinion, I believe that that's why I was charged,

1 because I didn't stop it. That's why.

2 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Sir, this is Board
3 Member Brown again.

4 Were you in possession of any type of
5 weapon at the time? Whether you used it or not,
6 you've got a charge of ADW, so...

7 MR. HUNTER: No weapon, sir. The story
8 was extremely exaggerated for the defense in the
9 case because of their dislike for me. So they
10 basically exaggerate everything. And I had another
11 child with someone else, so the former mother was
12 very mad and was scorned. And continuously this
13 case came into my life and I can't go to work.

14 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you, sir.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: What do you do now?

16 MR. HUNTER: Now, I'm currently
17 unemployed. I have other job offers, but security
18 is something that I do like to do.

19 I actually trained myself to be more in
20 tune with having children and all those things. So
21 I do like security work. But currently right now
22 I'm unemployed.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
24 for Mr. Hunter?

25 Hearing no further questions, I'll

1 entertain a motion.

2 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

3 I move grant the work card based on full
4 disclosure and time and distance.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
6 motion. Do we have a second?

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
9 have a second. All in favor say aye.

10 (All present Board members voted aye.)

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

12 You will get your work card. The office
13 will contact you with the next steps, okay?

14 MR. HUNTER: Thank you.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations, sir.

16 Agenda Item No. 56, Prince Pollard. Is
17 Mr. Pollard here?

18 Okay. Agenda Item No. 57, Uriah Elam.
19 Is that you, sir? Please come forward.
20 Have you been sworn in, sir?

21 MR. ELAM: Sworn in?

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yeah, have you been
23 sworn in?

24 MR. ELAM: I don't know.

25 (Those who were present and planned on

1 testifying stood, raised their right
2 hand, and were sworn in by Ms. Harris.)

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Cuevas
4 Manzo -- I'm getting better. Please tell us why
5 we're here for Mr. Elam.

6 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The applicant
7 was denied for his 2020 weapons conviction and 2018
8 and 2015 felony convictions.

9 He did disclose all of his arrests, to
10 include all felonies and one misdemeanor from 2018.
11 He was aware he would be denied and submitted an
12 appeal with his application. He was not made
13 provisional and is here to appeal.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any questions for
15 Mr. Elam?

16 I have a question. Your 2020, your most
17 recent conviction, could you tell us the
18 circumstances of that?

19 MR. ELAM: I have very faint memory of
20 that one. I think that was the concealing of a
21 firearm?

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yes.

23 MR. ELAM: Okay. So basically, my cousin
24 had his gun in the car and we were on our way to
25 pick up a family member so we could go to a party.

1 And as we was going, I got stopped. And since the
2 gun was in the car and I was a felon at the time,
3 they said I couldn't be around it so they took me.
4 But then they ended up releasing me. And I was on
5 probation. And I think after I did my probation,
6 they dropped it to possession of a machete.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
8 questions?

9 Okay. Hearing no further questions, I'll
10 entertain a motion.

11 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
12 Brown.

13 I move that we uphold the denial based on
14 recency and the pattern of crimes. It doesn't
15 appear that Mr. Elam has learned his lesson after
16 spending several months in prison.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
18 we have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board member
20 Cortez.

21 I am going to second that based on the
22 2020 conviction, time and distance.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
24 have a second. All in favor say aye.

25 (All present Board members voted aye.)

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, unfortunately, at
2 this time you won't get your work card based off the
3 time and distance of your last incident. Thank you
4 for disclosing them. It does give a different view,
5 your owning up to the situations that you were in.

6 You are able to apply again in one year.
7 When you apply, make sure you do the same and
8 disclose all this information. You'll have more
9 distance from the last incident to present and I
10 think it will be an easier decision for us, okay?
11 Thank you.

12 Agenda Item No. 58 postponed, right?

13 Agenda Item No. 58 we already approved.

14 Agenda Item No. 59, Tommy Wallace.

15 Mr. Wallace, have you been sworn in?

16 MR. WALLACE: Yes.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

18 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, could you
19 please tell us why we're here for Mr. Wallace?

20 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The applicant
21 was denied for his 2014 felony conviction for felon,
22 slash, addict in possession of a firearm.

23 He did disclose all his arrests, to
24 include a 2008 felony for sale, transport, or import
25 of controlled substance. 2022 misdemeanor possess

1 narcotic, controlled substance.

2 He was not made provisional and is here to
3 appeal.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any
5 questions -- does the Board have any questions for
6 Mr. Wallace?

7 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
8 Brown.

9 Mr. Wallace, on the 2014 conviction, it
10 said that it was a felon or an addict in possession
11 of a firearm. Which one? Felon or an addict?

12 MR. WALLACE: You say a felon. I was a
13 felon.

14 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: You weren't an addict
15 at the time?

16 MR. WALLACE: Well, I was an addict -- I
17 was both, to be honest with you.

18 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay, okay. Thank
19 you.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
21 for Mr. Wallace?

22 Hearing there are no further questions,
23 I'll entertain a motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is
25 Gronauer --

1 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Board Member Brown --
2 go ahead, Mr. Gronauer.

3 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: You've got a nicer
4 voice.

5 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
6 Brown.

7 I move that we grant Mr. Wallace his
8 appeal and allow him to get his work card based on
9 full disclosure and time and distance.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
11 we have a second?

12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
14 have a second. All in favor say aye.

15 (All present Board members voted aye.)

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So motion
17 passes. You will get your work card. Thank you for
18 disclosing everything and doing it the right way.

19 The office will be in touch with you for
20 next steps, okay?

21 MR. WALLACE: Thank you. Have a nice
22 week.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You, too.

24 Agenda item No. 60, Donald Johnson.

25 Good afternoon, sir.

1 MR. JOHNSON: Good afternoon.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You've been sworn in?

3 MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay, thank you.

5 Ms. Cuevas Manzo, could you tell us why
6 we're here for Mr. Johnson?

7 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yes. So the
8 applicant was denied for his listed arrests in 1998
9 and 2000 felony convictions.

10 He also had a 2003 misdemeanor theft. He
11 was aware he would be denied and submitted appeal.
12 He was not made provisional.

13 If you see my note, there is the outcome
14 on one of the cases that states he does have life
15 probation for the 1998 felony deliver, manufacture
16 controlled substance.

17 I reached out and spoke to Mr. Johnson.
18 He has stated that he has since been discharged, but
19 has not been able to provide me any documentation
20 stating so.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, for many of the
22 law enforcement folks here on the Board, I don't
23 think I've ever heard of that.

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Lifetime
25 probation.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any help with that,
2 clarifying that would be...

3 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
4 Brown.

5 I have heard of that, but only with sex
6 offenders. This is the first time I've ever heard
7 of it with somebody convicted of narcotics.

8 And I was going to ask if Executive
9 Director Saladino could recall at any time we've had
10 somebody apply with a lifetime probation and what
11 we've done in the past.

12 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
13 Director Saladino, for the record.

14 I was trying to think of the same thing,
15 if we've had one in the past. And nobody comes to
16 mind.

17 I was just looking up Michigan's rules for
18 lifetime probation. And what they basically -- the
19 terms for it. It does list here that in general,
20 the lifetime probation is authorized for some drug
21 offenses. So I'm thinking maybe that's why, because
22 the way Michigan has that statute set up and dealt
23 with the controlled substance, and that's why they
24 have that.

25 It would be easier if the applicant was

1 able to get something from Michigan, either from
2 P & P or from the courts, stating whether it's been
3 finished now or if he is on it, if there are any
4 requirements.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Can I ask -- and this
6 was from the 1998 conviction.

7 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yeah, it was
8 1998, controlled substance conviction. On the
9 fingerprint report, it does show the disposition as
10 lifetime probation.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Lifetime probation --
12 okay. Can you tell us the situation around this
13 felony?

14 MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am.

15 I was convicted of intent to deliver
16 cocaine in Pontiac, Michigan. And at the time I
17 took lifetime probation, which obviously didn't mean
18 lifetime. I caught another case then, which ran
19 concurrent, which I completed boot camp. I provided
20 the young lady with documentation for that, but was
21 unable to find paperwork to disclose my complete
22 discharge, in which I was discharged around
23 March 13th, 2007.

24 I contacted the Chrysler Department of
25 Probation, in which which they said they transferred

1 my case to Lansing. And which I have to send a
2 payment and have it mailed. And it's an extensive
3 process, which I didn't complete at the time.

4 But I -- rest assured, I've been employed
5 with numerous dialysis companies and chauffeur
6 transportation, in which I completed fingerprinting
7 and I'm no longer on probation, ma'am. I just can't
8 prove it at the time.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, I guess I go into
10 the question again between postponement and, you
11 know -- I don't know if you were here earlier. But
12 my suggestion would be -- and I don't know if the
13 Board concurs, that you potentially ask to postpone
14 your -- the decision so that gives you an
15 opportunity to go back to Lansing and try to get
16 that paperwork.

17 Because I don't know that any of us are
18 comfortable -- or anybody chime in here, if
19 anybody's comfortable with someone on probation,
20 granting them a work card.

21 I understand your situation where you
22 haven't had an issue before, but we're entrusting
23 you with public safety and security. So for someone
24 who provides that service to customers and the
25 general public, I have an issue with that.

1 So we can deny it now and then you have to
2 wait a year, or you can ask to postpone it and then
3 work to get your information.

4 That would allow you -- right, Executive
5 Director, to come back in March versus a year from
6 now.

7 So the decision is yours, unless the
8 Board --

9 DAG HARRIS: Then also to add, I believe
10 it's been over five years that you've been on
11 probation, correct? This lifetime probation.

12 MR. JOHNSON: Almost 15.

13 DAG HARRIS: Almost 15. Because included
14 under that statutory provision in Section 5, it does
15 allow the state to not read -- if the individual has
16 served five or more years of that probationary
17 period, the probation officer for that individual
18 may recommend to the court that the court discharge
19 the individual from probation.

20 So it does appear you do have legal
21 recourse, or he does have legal recourse to request
22 to be removed off of the lifetime probation. So it
23 might be proper to postpone this agenda item.

24 It's up to the Board if it wants to do
25 March or until June to give him enough time to see

1 if can he make that -- file that -- it would likely
2 be a petition filed, to see if the court would be
3 willing to grant him that.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, I mean, we've
5 offered this to other individuals that were in the
6 same situation, where they had active cases from
7 what we had seen on our end, right, that we give you
8 the opportunity to postpone it until you can find
9 the information that you need for us to make a full
10 decision.

11 Would you rather go that route or for us
12 to make a decision now?

13 MR. JOHNSON: No, I'd like to have time to
14 provide the information.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So then do we
16 need to vote on postponing it?

17 DAG HARRIS: Yes.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board --

19 DAG HARRIS: It would need -- sorry to
20 interrupt. But we would -- in order to be certain
21 that this matter has been fully addressed, he would
22 need to be granted an order discharging the
23 probation.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Right.

25 June? So Board, I'll entertain a motion

1 based off of what we've told Mr. Johnson, right --

2 MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: -- Johnson, next
4 steps.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
6 Cortez.

7 I'm going to motion that we postpone
8 Mr. Donald Charles Johnson's application, or the
9 appeal, so he has enough time to request or submit a
10 petition to close out his current probation --
11 lifetime probationary status.

12 DAG HARRIS: Quick request for an
13 amendment on the motion for a time frame on the
14 postponement.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Motioning to
16 postpone the appeal to the next Board meeting, which
17 is scheduled for June of 2024.

18 DAG HARRIS: The next Board meeting is in
19 March, but -- yeah, so to the June Board meeting.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I'm motioning to
21 postpone to June, not to March, to allow --

22 MR. JOHNSON: With all due respect, I'll
23 contact the department. It won't take that long,
24 ma'am. It's just a matter of me making a payment
25 online and having them mail -- overnight the

1 paperwork.

2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: With all due
3 respect, to get a court order, the courts don't work
4 that fast, okay? You can probably get something
5 from your probation officer, but still would have to
6 do that through the court.

7 MR. JOHNSON: With the Michigan Department
8 of -- Michigan State Police --

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We'll go March. But
10 if you're not ready we're going to have to make a
11 decision, okay?

12 MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am. I appreciate
13 that.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez
15 motioning to postpone Mr. Johnson's appeal to the
16 next Board meeting scheduled for March of 2024.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: All right. We have a
18 motion. Do we have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Board Member Brown,
20 second.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
22 motion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.

23 (All present Board members voted aye.)

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So you have until
25 March to get it. Best of luck to you, and we'll see

1 you then. Thank you.

2 Agenda -- when is the next...

3 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: 63.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Agenda Item No.
5 61, Rayvon Thomas.

6 Good morning -- or afternoon.

7 Have you been sworn in, sir?

8 MR. THOMAS: Yes.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

10 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, why are we here
11 for Mr. Thomas?

12 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: So, the
13 applicant was denied for his 2017 carry concealed
14 weapon conviction. He did list all of his arrests
15 to include a 2014 misdemeanor disturbing the peace.
16 He was aware he would be denied and was not made
17 provisional. He wishes to appeal.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

19 Board, any questions for Mr. Thomas?

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
21 Cortez.

22 Mr. Thomas, talk to me about the incident
23 in 2017. What were the circumstances?

24 MR. THOMAS: That's the carrying a
25 concealed weapon?

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: With assault.

2 MR. THOMAS: Okay. So, I was enrolled
3 into the Metropolitan police academy. I started
4 at -- it started that Monday.

5 I got into some trouble with some guys,
6 tried to rob me for my motorcycle. Seven
7 individuals surrounded me, threatened to pull me off
8 my bike or just fight. At that time, I did remove
9 my firearm. Told them the next person that touches
10 me will be fired on. Because they're preventing me
11 from moving forward. Causing me to have what's
12 called a -- it's kidnapping if you're preventing
13 someone from moving forward.

14 At that time, the three individuals moved
15 away from my motorcycle, ran inside to grab a
16 firearm. And at that time, I used my second
17 thought, to try to get away from the situation and
18 call for help. Because at the time I was in a
19 dangerous situation.

20 Left the scene. Some neighbors called the
21 police. Said that there was a black guy on a
22 motorcycle with a gun pointed at several
23 individuals. They went to my dad's house, which was
24 right around the corner from the incident.

25 North Las Vegas then contacted me. I went

1 and spoke with North Las Vegas. Let them know,
2 like, hey, I do start the police academy on Monday.
3 These individuals tried to assault me. And from
4 there, he didn't want to hear anything. He just
5 told me to put my hands behind my back and arrested
6 me.

7 So it got -- I originally got arrested for
8 four counts of assault with a deadly weapon. They
9 lowered it down to carrying a concealed weapon. But
10 I have a CCW.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And I'm still
12 confused as to where the assault charge comes from.

13 MR. THOMAS: Me, too. I never placed my
14 hands on anyone. I pulled my firearm out. Had it
15 in a ready position. Never pointed it at anyone.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, I'm guessing that
17 you were removed from the police academy because of
18 all this.

19 MR. THOMAS: Yeah. They -- so I talked to
20 the police captain and the commissioner. They
21 removed me up until I was able to seal the record.
22 They did say that they will input me back into the
23 system, but I have to get it sealed first. I then
24 applied for the marshals, and the marshals said the
25 same thing. That they'll accept me, I just have to

1 seal it.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You've not been able
3 to do that.

4 MR. THOMAS: I haven't been able to.
5 Because I've been doing security gigs and that was,
6 like, my main thing. Which I make most of my money
7 off of, yes.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So, are you
9 currently working security in Las Vegas or Nevada?

10 MR. THOMAS: No. I -- I'm actually a
11 professional hypnotist, so I opened up for some of
12 the magicians here in Vegas. So that's what I do as
13 of right now. But I do have companies that are
14 willing to hire me once I get my guard card.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

16 Any further questions from the Board?

17 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Yes. Mr. Thomas,
18 this is Board Member Brown.

19 Did you say you had a concealed carry
20 permit at the time of this incident, or do you have
21 it now, since then?

22 MR. THOMAS: No, I have it now, since
23 then. So after the case, they granted me my CCW.

24 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay, thank you.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further

1 questions?

2 Hearing there are no further questions
3 I'll entertain a motion.

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is
5 Gronauer --

6 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
7 Brown. Go ahead, Mr. Gronauer.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: All right. I make
9 a motion to -- Gronauer makes a motion to grant
10 Rayvon Thomas's appeal. Time and distance.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
12 we have a second?

13 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Board Member Brown,
14 I'll second.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
16 have a second. All in favor is say aye.

17 (All present Board members voted aye.)

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. You
19 will get your work card. The office will contact
20 you with the next steps, okay?

21 MR. THOMAS: Cool, thank you.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 62,
23 Alex Gonzales.

24 Good afternoon, sir.

25 MR. GONZALES: Afternoon.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Cuevas
2 Manzo, could you tell us why we're here for
3 Mr. Gonzales?

4 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The applicant
5 was denied for his 2010 felony conviction for
6 possess controlled substance for sale. He did
7 disclose all of his arrests, including a 2009
8 misdemeanor for DUI and a 2004 misdemeanor for grand
9 theft.

10 He was not made provisional and he's here
11 to appeal.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Board, any
13 questions for Mr. Gonzales?

14 Okay. Hearing there are no questions,
15 I'll entertain a motion.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
17 Cortez.

18 Motion to grant Mr. Gonzales's appeal.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
20 motion. Do we have a second?

21 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick seconds.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
23 motion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.

24 (All present Board members voted aye.)

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes, you

1 will get your work card.

2 The office will contact you with next
3 steps, okay?

4 MR. GONZALES: Thank you.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You're very welcome.
6 Thank you for disclosing everything.

7 MR. GONZALES: Thank you. Have a good
8 night.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You, too.

10 Agenda Item No. 63, Mr. Albert Miller.

11 Good afternoon. Just to confirm, sir, you
12 have been sworn in?

13 MR. MILLER: Yes, I have.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Investigator
15 Cuevas Manzo, could you tell us why we're here?

16 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The applicant
17 was denied for his undisclosed felony convictions.
18 That would be 2005 felony for possess stolen
19 vehicle. 1986 felony for second degree burglary.
20 And he also failed to disclose his 2015 misdemeanor
21 for disorderly conduct.

22 He did not disclose any of his arrests.
23 He was made provisional, but was not added to a
24 company roster, and the applicant wishes to appeal.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

1 Board, any questions for Mr. Miller?

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
3 Cortez.

4 Mr. Miller, why did you fail to disclose
5 your convictions?

6 MR. MILLER: I know it's no excuse, but I
7 just wanted to let everything go in my past, start
8 all over.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I didn't hear you,
10 I'm sorry.

11 MR. MILLER: I didn't want to bring up all
12 past because I'm trying to get away from it.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood. Fair
14 enough.

15 MR. MILLER: And I came down here to start
16 a new life.

17 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Did you fill out the
18 application yourself?

19 MR. MILLER: Yeah, I just misread it.
20 Because I had two other applications. But then the
21 last two years have been -- I just thought it was
22 the same.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: The reason why I ask
24 you, I just wanted to point out in the event you
25 need to apply again, that there is a clear portion

1 of the packet where it asks you to stop and think
2 about all your convictions, and you have to list all
3 of them.

4 I completely appreciate the fact that you
5 wanted to get rid of what happened yesterday.
6 However, when you're applying for this kind of a
7 position, you do need to list everything. And it's
8 clearly stated on the application, okay?

9 MR. MILLER: All right.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
11 for Mr. Miller?

12 Hearing there are no further questions,
13 I'll entertain a motion.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.
15 I'm going to motion that we uphold the denial based
16 on no disclosure.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
18 we have a second?

19 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Brown. I'll
20 second.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
22 have a second. All in favor say aye.

23 (All present Board members voted aye.)

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, you will not get
25 your work card this time, but you do have an

1 opportunity to come back in a year and reapply.
2 Make sure you disclose all of your convictions and
3 then you'll go through the same process, come before
4 us.

5 MR. MILLER: Okay. Thank you.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you, sir.

7 So people that I'm going to call now were
8 told to be here at 1:00, so we're going to go back
9 to the ones we trailed. And then -- I'm sorry, they
10 were told to be here at 12:00. It's going on 1:00.

11 So we'll go back to the ones we trailed
12 and then hold on until 1:00 to move forward.

13 Agenda Item No. 49, Tavaris Fletcher?

14 Agenda Item No. 50, Bryan Hogg.

15 Agenda Item No. 51, Margie Jackson.

16 Agenda Item No. 53, Daniel Redmond.

17 Agenda Item No. 55, Prince Pollard.

18 Did I miss one?

19 DAG HARRIS: 56.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: 56, Prince Pollard is
21 Agenda Item No. 56. Sorry. Agenda -- that was it.
22 Anybody -- what was his name? He's not on that
23 list.

24 Those folks were told to come in at noon,
25 so we'll wait until 1:00 to move forward with those

1 individuals. Do you want to take a quick five, ten
2 minutes and then do the 1:00?

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I'm good. Let's
4 keep going.

5 THE REPORTER: I'm good.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 64,
7 Christian Brooks.

8 For anybody who hasn't been sworn in yet,
9 could you please stand up and raise your right hand?

10 (Those who were present and planned on
11 testifying stood, raised their right
12 hand, and were sworn in by Ms. Harris.)

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

14 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, could you
15 please tell us why we're here for Mr. Brooks?

16 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The applicant
17 was denied for his disclosed 2018 misdemeanor carry
18 concealed weapon without a permit. That is the only
19 arrest he has.

20 He was not made provisional and is here to
21 appeal.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

23 Board, are there any questions for
24 Mr. Brooks?

25 Okay. Hearing there are no questions,

1 I'll entertain a motion.

2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
3 Motion is to grant the appeal to Mr. Christian
4 Brooks, time and distance.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
6 motion. Do we have a second?

7 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Brown, I'll second.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
9 have a second. All in favor say aye.

10 (All present Board members voted aye.)

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, your work card
12 will be approved, and the Board will get -- I'm
13 sorry, the office will get in touch with you for
14 next steps. Congratulations.

15 I don't know why you would ever need a
16 weapon as big as you are. Just show up. But good
17 luck to you, sir.

18 Agenda Item No. 65, Marshall Moser.

19 Mr. Moser, are you in the audience?

20 Agenda Item No. 66, Alfonso Vierneza.

21 I'll trail.

22 Agenda Item No. 67, Adams.

23 DAG HARRIS: Nyjuwon.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Nyjuwon Adams. Trail.

25 Agenda Item No. 68, Saddiq Lawrence.

1 Okay. We're into the 1:00 o'clocks.

2 Let's start with you, sir, in the front.

3 What's your name?

4 MR. AKINS: William Akins.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Do you know your
6 agenda item?

7 MR. AKINS: No, ma'am.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: 76. Why don't you
9 come forward, we'll just go through the room.

10 Investigator Swarthout, why are we here
11 for Mr. Akins.

12 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant --
13 Investigate Swarthout.

14 The applicant was denied for a felony
15 conviction, the illegal use, possession of a
16 dangerous weapon and for failure to disclose.

17 February 4, 2023 out of Nevada, felony.
18 This one was disclosed. Open alcohol container,
19 buy, possess, receive stolen property or gun. Own,
20 possess a gun by a prohibited person. That one was
21 a DA denial.

22 October 26, 2012 out of Nevada. This one
23 was not disclosed, misdemeanor, convicted person
24 failure to change address, convicted.

25 December 26, 2010 out of Nevada, convicted

1 person failure to change address. This one was not
2 disclosed. This one was dismissed.

3 May 4th, 2010 out of Nevada, misdemeanor
4 battery domestic violence. Convicted, sentenced to
5 suspended sentence of 172 days, 48 hours community
6 service, six months domestic violence counseling,
7 and a fine. That one was not disclosed.

8 June 5th, 2006 out of Nevada. Misdemeanor
9 ex-felon failure to register, two counts. It
10 appears to only be a citation, but doesn't show up
11 on his fingerprints at all.

12 November 16th, 2002 out of Nevada, felony
13 fugitive, weapons offense. That one was dismissed.

14 October 8th, 1998, Nevada, fugitive
15 weapons offense. Dismissed.

16 July 4th, 1995 out of California,
17 felony -- felon, et cetera. Possession of firearm,
18 three years formal probation, 90 months jail
19 suspended.

20 September 17th, 1991 out of California,
21 felony conviction, possession narcotics, controlled
22 substance. 36 months' probation, 90 days jail,
23 suspended.

24 July 27 of 1991 out of California. Felony
25 assault with a firearm on a person. That one looks

1 like it was dismissed.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So, are there
3 any questions for Mr. Akins?

4 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
5 Cortez.

6 Mr. Akins, why did you fail to disclose
7 all of your convictions?

8 MR. AKINS: Uneducated about the matter.
9 I didn't know.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I appreciate the
11 honesty, thank you. I appreciate that.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
13 questions?

14 Are you new to the state?

15 MR. AKINS: No, ma'am.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. If there are no
17 further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

18 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick. I
19 move we uphold the denial based on nondisclosure of
20 arrest.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
22 motion. Do we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
24 Cortez. I am going to second that motion.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a

1 motion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.

2 (All present Board members voted aye.)

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, sir, you do have
4 an opportunity to come back in one year and apply.
5 You have all of your convictions. And if you have
6 any questions, the office will help you with that
7 information. When you come back in one year, you
8 probably will be denied initially and then have to
9 come back and do -- just similar to what you're
10 doing. But as long as you disclose any type of
11 convictions that you -- or brushes with the law that
12 you have listed in here and you don't have any going
13 forward in that year, there is a good opportunity
14 that when we see you it will be a happier
15 circumstance.

16 MR. AKINS: Okay. So I don't understand,
17 why am I being denied?

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Because you did not
19 disclose all of your convictions.

20 MR. AKINS: Even though you seen them and
21 they all closed?

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Yes. Because the
23 application clearly states that you have to list all
24 arrests, convictions. Basically, brushes with the
25 law. It's very clear in that application. We have

1 put on the online a big stop sign saying please stop
2 and read. And in the actual paper application, it
3 also states the same. So, it's very clear in our
4 application that you must list everything, no matter
5 what state, what timeline, anything. Even if it's
6 been expunged. Because it will be found on the
7 actual fingerprint review.

8 MR. AKINS: Yes, ma'am.

9 Can I get the June? Can -- I have to wait
10 the full year? I can't get no closer than that?

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: No, sir. Because you
12 did not disclose, you have to do like everybody else
13 and wait one year.

14 MR. AKINS: Yes, ma'am.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay, thank you.

16 MR. AKINS: Uh-huh.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Have a good day. Good
18 luck to you.

19 Who was here -- so I think the gentleman
20 in red, you've been here for a while. What was your
21 name, sir?

22 MR. STEWART: Tyrone Stewart. This
23 gentleman was here before me. I sat down after him.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Which one?

25 MR. STEWART: This one right here.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Got you. Well,
2 gentleman, what's your name?

3 MR. LAWRENCE: Saddiq Lawrence.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I think we did call
5 you.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: 68.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Please come up front.
8 Good afternoon, sir.

9 MR. LAWRENCE: Good afternoon, ma'am.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Cuevas
11 Manzo, can you tell us why we're here for
12 Mr. Lawrence?

13 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The applicant
14 was denied for his listed felony convictions from
15 the years of 1986 through 1999.

16 The applicant has a 1999 felony,
17 aggravated battery, slash, sodomy, false
18 imprisonment and battery.

19 1994 felony for the -- a shoplifting.

20 A 1991 felony for manufacture, slash,
21 deliver controlled substance.

22 And the 1990 felony for manufacture
23 deliver controlled substance again.

24 1986 felony for three counts of
25 manufacture, deliver controlled substance and

1 possession of controlled substance.

2 The applicant is a Tier III registered sex
3 offender, which carries a lifetime registration.

4 He was not made provisional and wishes to
5 appeal.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: All right.

7 Board, any questions for Mr. Lawrence?

8 Okay. One question on my behalf.

9 Is he current in his registration?

10 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yes. I
11 checked on Monday, and he's current. He just
12 updated maybe last month.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. There are no
14 questions for Mr. Lawrence?

15 Hearing no questions, I'll entertain a
16 motion.

17 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This Board Member
18 Brown.

19 I move that we uphold the denial based on
20 the Tier III status.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
22 motion. Do we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
24 Cortez. I actually have a question.

25 Executive Director Saladino, has there

1 been past precedence on such?

2 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
3 Director Saladino, for the record.

4 Yes. Anybody on the registry, current on
5 the registry, we have not moved forward. We've
6 usually viewed it just like probation.

7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Understood, thank
8 you.

9 This is Board Member Cortez.

10 I am going to second that motion.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion,
12 we have a second. All in favor say aye.

13 (All present Board members voted aye.)

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, unfortunately, you
15 will not be able to get your work card at this time.
16 You are -- you do have the opportunity to try again
17 in a year. Thank you.

18 MR. LAWRENCE: Come on, man. Thank you.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 65 we
20 trailed, Marshall Moser.

21 MR. MOSER: Hello.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Hello. Have you been
23 sworn in, sir?

24 MR. MOSER: I'm sorry, what was that?

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Have you been sworn

1 in?

2 MR. MOSER: No.

3 (Those who were present and planned on
4 testifying stood, raised their right
5 hand, and were sworn in by Ms. Harris.)

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Cuevas
7 Manzo, could you please tell us why we're here for
8 Mr. Moser?

9 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yes. The
10 applicant was denied for his 2008 -- sorry, 2008
11 felony conviction for DUI with substantial bodily
12 harm.

13 He did disclose all arrests, to include a
14 2022 misdemeanor, destroy or injure property of
15 another.

16 And a 2021 misdemeanor, trespass, not
17 related to burglary.

18 The applicant did previously have a card,
19 probably over ten years ago. His expiration of a
20 last card was in 2006, so quite some time.

21 He was aware he would be denied and wishes
22 to appeal.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And I'm sorry,
24 he did disclose everything?

25 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yes. He

1 disclosed all arrests.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Were there any
3 questions for Mr. Moser?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
5 Mr. Moser, good afternoon to you.

6 MR. MOSER: Hello.

7 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can you explain
8 destroying or injuring property of another?

9 MR. MOSER: Oh, did I -- is that the 2022?

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Yes.

11 MR. MOSER: Okay. That was a situation
12 where it was more of, like, an argument basically
13 that broke out at a casino. And then I was
14 basically handcuffed at the casino and then put into
15 the back room. And then, like, a wall got kicked
16 while I was doing that. That's the property damage.
17 And it's already paid off.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: How did the wall
19 get kicked?

20 MR. MOSER: That was from me.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: What about the
22 trespassing, nonburglary?

23 MR. MOSER: An argument that broke out at
24 a bar.

25 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Can you explain

1 that a little bit?

2 MR. MOSER: So, basically, I got into an
3 argument with somebody. They were telling me to
4 leave. I guess I didn't leave. Police just rushed
5 over. I think they had, like, a substation. It was
6 on Las Vegas Boulevard. Like, the north side. So
7 it was by that department over there. So I guess
8 they just came right over and I was arrested.

9 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: If you get
10 approved for a card, what do you plan on doing with
11 it?

12 MR. MOSER: I'm going to work for a
13 security company.

14 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Armed or unarmed?

15 MR. MOSER: Unarmed.

16 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay, thank you.

17 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
18 Brown, Mr. Moser.

19 On the 2022 destroy or injure the
20 property, what were you originally detained for?
21 Why did they put you in handcuffs and put you in a
22 security detention room where you kicked the wall?

23 MR. MOSER: Oh, because I got into an
24 argument.

25 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: A verbal argument --

1 MR. MOSER: Yes.

2 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: -- a physical
3 argument?

4 MR. MOSER: Verbal. There was no
5 physical.

6 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay. Were you
7 intoxicated?

8 MR. MOSER: No.

9 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay, thank you.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions?

11 Hearing no further questions, I'll
12 entertain a motion.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
14 Cortez.

15 Mr. Moser, I absolutely appreciate the
16 fact that you were open and disclosed all of your
17 convictions.

18 However, I am going to motion to uphold
19 the denial based on time and distance. We're
20 talking about two -- last year and then the year
21 before, and then I heard you twice that you're
22 getting into arguments. So I'm just kind of
23 wondering, do we perhaps need to kind of look within
24 ourselves to learn how to walk away from a
25 situation. That's what I'm going to say with that.

1 So with that said, I am motioning to
2 uphold the denial based on time and distance.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
4 we have a second?

5 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Board Member Brown,
6 second.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
8 have a second. All in favor say aye.

9 (All present Board members voted aye.)

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So the motion passes.

11 You will -- the denial continues. You
12 don't get your work card this time. But you -- we
13 do encourage you to come back in a year, you'll have
14 some more time and distance from your initial
15 incident, as long as you don't have anything in
16 between.

17 Please be just as open as you were this
18 time in disclosing everything, and hopefully we will
19 see you back here in a year.

20 MR. MOSER: All right. Thank you.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, sir.

22 Agenda Item No. 66, Alfonso Vierneza.

23 And then Agenda Item No. 67, Nyjuwon

24 Adams.

25 And we saw -- so those folks were supposed

1 to be here at noon. Can we go ahead and take a
2 block vote?

3 DAG HARRIS: Yes. It appears it's now
4 ripe for a block vote on Agenda Items 65 and -- no,
5 excuse me. On Agenda Items 66 and 67.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Can we just
7 confirm, she just walked in, she's not part of this?

8 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Just to
9 clarify, 66 and 67 were at 1:00.

10 DAG HARRIS: We should probably wait,
11 then.

12 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: So it should
13 be for the 12:00: 49, 50, 51, 53, and 56, I
14 believe.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

16 Ma'am, you just walked in. What's your
17 name? What's your agenda item?

18 MS. PORTER: Yes. My name is Kamiah
19 Mangial Porter.

20 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: She's 73.

21 DAG HARRIS: Then it appears we could
22 still do a block vote on 49, 50, 51, 53, and 56.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Should I go back
24 through those just because people walked in?

25 DAG HARRIS: Yeah.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We're on Agenda
2 Item No. 49, Tavaris Fletcher.

3 Bryan Hogg, no.

4 Margie Jackson.

5 Daniel Redmond.

6 Prince Pollard.

7 And that's it for that section. Okay. So
8 I'll take a block vote on item Nos. 49, 50, 51, 53,
9 and 56.

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
11 Cortez.

12 I'm motioning to uphold the denial based
13 on no call-no show. It is now 1:07 p.m. Those
14 individuals were told to be here at 12:00.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And then the
16 next block --

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer,
18 second.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we have a
20 motion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.

21 (All present Board members voted aye.)

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

23 So the next block was for 1:00. Can we
24 take just a ten-minute break and then move to the
25 next? Because, God, it's hot in here. Ten minutes

1 and we'll be back at 15 after.

2 (Off record.)

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We're going to start
4 again. Do we have everybody up north? Looks like
5 it. Up north, can you hear me?

6 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: We can.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Are you guys ready up
8 north?

9 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: We are.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Go ahead and continue
11 this session. We do -- we are going into the 1:00
12 session, so hopefully we'll capture those that were
13 scheduled to be here at 1:00. For those of you who
14 have not been sworn in, could you -- and you are
15 going to testify, please stand up and DAG Harris
16 will swear you in.

17 DAG HARRIS: If you're on the agenda or
18 plan on giving any testimony for any agenda item,
19 please stand and raise your right hand.

20 (Those who were present and planned on
21 testifying stood, raised their right
22 hand, and were sworn in by Ms. Harris.)

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Ma'am, in the back
24 with the blond hair, are you going to testify?

25 AUDIENCE MEMBER: No, ma'am.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Oh, you're just here.
2 Got you. Okay, we're ready to move.

3 We'll start with Agenda Item No. 64. I
4 believe that was postponed; is that correct?

5 DAG HARRIS: 66.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 64,
7 has that been passed?

8 DAG HARRIS: We decided that one.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We're on Agenda Item
10 No. 66.

11 Agenda Item No. 66, Alfonso Vierneza.
12 Please come forward.

13 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, could you
14 please tell us why we're here for Mr. Vierneza?

15 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yes. The
16 applicant was denied for his listed 2003 felony --
17 for identity theft. He did disclose all of his
18 arrests, to include a 2009 misdemeanor possession of
19 controlled substance, methamphetamine. And in 2009,
20 possession of controlled substance, also
21 methamphetamine. Those two were back to back.

22 Again, he disclosed all arrests. He was
23 not made provisional and is here to appeal.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions
25 for Mr. -- how do you pronounce your last name?

1 MR. VIERNEZA: Vierneza.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Vierneza.

3 Any questions for Mr. Vierneza? Okay.

4 Hearing there are no questions, I'll
5 entertain a motion.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
7 Cortez.

8 I'm going to motion to grant
9 Mr. Vierneza's appeal based on full disclosure.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
11 motion. Do we have a second?

12 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Brown. I'll
13 second.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
15 have a second. All in favor say aye.

16 (All present Board members voted aye.)

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, because you
18 disclosed everything on your application and time
19 and distance, we have granted your work card.

20 The Board will -- or the office will
21 contact you for next steps, okay?

22 MR. VIERNEZA: Thank you, so much.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations.

24 Agenda Item No. 67, Nyjuwon Adams. We'll
25 trail that item. Agenda Item No. 69, A'lyjah

1 Carter.

2 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, could you tell
3 us why we're here for Ms. Carter?

4 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The applicant
5 was denied for her 2018 felony conviction for
6 battery with use of deadly weapon, and 2022 felony
7 conviction for theft.

8 The applicant did disclose all arrests,
9 including a 2021 misdemeanor theft, value less than
10 \$60. 2018 misdemeanor disturbing the peace, 2016
11 misdemeanor of domestic battery.

12 And she did disclose all arrests. She was
13 aware she would be denied and was not made
14 provisional. The applicant wishes to appeal.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Quick question on the
16 2022 conviction. Is she under any sentence for
17 that?

18 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: She was
19 sentenced 12 to 30 months, Department of
20 Corrections. But I believe she only served part of
21 the time.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. No probation or
23 anything else?

24 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: No.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Do we know how much

1 time in total?

2 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: I do not.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

4 Board, any questions for Ms. Carter?

5 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Good afternoon,
6 Ms. Carter.

7 MS. CARTER: Good afternoon.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: You were sentenced
9 12 to 30 months in 2022. How much time do you have
10 to serve?

11 MS. CARTER: I don't have to serve any
12 more time. I expired that sentence.

13 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Did you serve any
14 time?

15 MS. CARTER: Yes. I did a little less
16 than a year on that one.

17 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: In the county
18 jail?

19 MS. CARTER: No. At Florence McClure
20 Women's Correctional Center.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: When were you
22 released?

23 MS. CARTER: July 22nd of this year.

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Okay, thank you.

25 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Ms. Carter, this is

1 Board Member Brown.

2 You have no tail on that, no probation?

3 MS. CARTER: No, I expired everything.

4 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay, thank you.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Do we have any --

6 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, do we have any paperwork
7 on that?

8 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Not -- just
9 the fingerprint report. And on there it does show
10 that the time was served and no probation is set to
11 go with that.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

13 Any further questions for Ms. Carter?

14 Hearing there are no questions, I'll
15 entertain a motion.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hate to be the
17 bearer of bad news, however this is Board Member
18 Cortez.

19 I am going to motion -- while I can
20 absolutely appreciate your full disclosure, I am
21 going to motion that we uphold the denial. The
22 reason being, time and distance. Not only do we
23 have a situation over in 2022, a year ago. You just
24 finished the sentence as of this year. We also had
25 an incident over in 2021. It's a little too soon.

1 And right behind that was 2018.

2 With that said, I am going to motion to
3 uphold the denial, based on law enforcement contact
4 and being too recent.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
6 we have a second?

7 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Board Member Brown,
8 second.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
10 have a second. All in favor say aye?

11 (All present Board members voted aye.)

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So you won't --
13 unfortunately you won't get your work card. But I
14 would encourage you to come back in a year. No
15 contact, other than positive stuff, you know,
16 certainly we'll be willing to look at it again.
17 Good luck to you.

18 MS. CARTER: Thank you.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 70,
20 Steven Batres.

21 MR. BATRES: Good afternoon.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good afternoon.
23 You've been sworn in?

24 MR. BATRES: Yes.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

1 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, could you
2 please tell us why we're here for Mr. Batres?

3 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The applicant
4 was denied for his listed felony convictions.
5 1-19-92 felony for take vehicle without consent.

6 And a 1990 felony for murder of first
7 degree.

8 He did disclose all arrests and he was
9 aware he would be denied. He wishes to appeal.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

11 Board, any questions for Mr. Batres?

12 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
13 Brown.

14 Mr. Batres, how much time did you actually
15 serve on the '92 murder charge? It says 254 years
16 in state prison. So, must have got a hell of a
17 deal.

18 MR. BATRES: No. I was paroled from the
19 California State Board in 2015. Right after that, I
20 began doing security for the State of California. I
21 was denied and then I was approved. I've been out
22 of parole for maybe the past three years. And I
23 work for the California State Prison system. Life
24 coach for the individuals in there. And today I
25 just took a day off from that.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

2 Any further questions?

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
4 Cortez.

5 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, I might have
6 missed it. Did you indicate that we have received
7 the fingerprints?

8 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: The report you
9 have is when we didn't have fingerprints. We have
10 received them and no other arrests showed. It's
11 what's on.

12 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Thank you.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any further
14 questions?

15 Hearing no further questions, I'll
16 entertain a motion.

17 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: This is Bezick.

18 I move we grant the work card based on
19 time and distance and full disclosure.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
21 we have a second?

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
23 Cortez. I'll second the motion.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
25 motion, we have a second. All in favor say aye.

1 (All present Board members voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

3 Thank you, sir, for disclosing everything
4 and your change and work with the community. So we
5 do appreciate that.

6 MR. BATRES: Thank you, so much.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 71,
8 Ke'ena Barrozo.

9 Agenda Item No. 72, Tyrone Stewart.

10 Good afternoon, sir.

11 MR. STEWART: Good afternoon.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator Cuevas
13 Manzo, do you want to tell us why we're here for
14 Mr. Stewart?

15 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yes. The
16 applicant was denied for his disclosed felony
17 conviction in 1998. Felony for uttering forged
18 instrument. We have received the fingerprint
19 report, so I will go ahead and update the Board on
20 the arrests. But they were all disclosed on his
21 part.

22 2005, battery, domestic violence.

23 A 1992 forgery, gross misdemeanor.

24 A 1990 misdemeanor for grand theft
25 property.

1 Again, the fingerprint report has been
2 received and did not reveal any other arrests.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: The dates kind of
4 don't match. Is that just based off of you did what
5 you could remember at the time, as far as dates go?

6 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: Yes. Yes, the
7 original report is dates off of his application, so
8 that's what he would have inputted. The updated one
9 is what the fingerprint report shows.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So I appreciate that.
11 Because we oftentimes tell people, I know you're not
12 going to remember the exact dates, but just put down
13 what you can remember. So I do understand the
14 discrepancy there. So thank you for that, for at
15 least trying.

16 MR. STEWART: I was able to give the
17 dates. I just applied for a job, and they had me do
18 an FBI check. And I kept the FBI check, so I was
19 able to -- when I was applying, I was able to get
20 every date and everything right on.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good job. Thank you.
22 Board, any further questions for
23 Mr. Stewart?

24 Okay. Hearing there are no questions,
25 I'll entertain a motion.

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member Cortez.
2 Motioning to approve -- to grant
3 Mr. Stewart's appeal.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
5 we have a second?

6 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
7 Brown, I'll second.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
9 have a second. All in favor say aye.

10 (All present Board members voted aye.)

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes.

12 Sir, you will get your work card. The
13 office will reach out to you for next steps.

14 MR. STEWART: I also wanted to say thank
15 you for this. Actually, the main reason I applied,
16 I work for Health of Southern Nevada now. I've been
17 working for them for a while. I work with the
18 homeless and everything.

19 The main reason I applied was, I work with
20 the youth and I'm a mentor. Coach football for the
21 kids and work at high school. And this is actually
22 for them. They were the ones that, coach, go ahead
23 and apply, you know. It's a whole change. So this
24 kind of makes a little -- you know, just showing
25 them that the steps you make in the past, you can

1 correct them. But you have to be able to know the
2 future of what you're going to do of those steps
3 that you make, or, you know, will carry on with you.
4 So I used this as an experience. Some of this stuff
5 kept me from getting the good jobs. So I thank you,
6 you guys.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you for sharing.
8 Thank you for the hard work.

9 MR. STEWART: Thank you.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Agenda Item No. 73,
11 Kamiah Mangial Porter.

12 MS. PORTER: Mangial.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good afternoon.

14 Investigator Cuevas Manzo, could you
15 please tell us why we're here for Ms. Porter?

16 INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO: So, the
17 applicant was denied for her listed or disclosed
18 2018 felony for assault by means. The report you
19 have, we did not have fingerprints, but we have
20 received them. And there are no new arrests. So
21 it's the same, the 2023 felony for obtaining or
22 possess credit or debit card without cardholder's
23 consent.

24 The DA did deny to prosecute that. And
25 also, the following one of the same, 2023 conceal

1 escaped felon. The DA denied to prosecute.

2 She did disclose all arrests and is here
3 to appeal.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. Any questions
5 from the Board?

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hi. This is Board
7 Member Cortez.

8 Talk to me about the September incident.
9 What happened?

10 MS. PORTER: In 2018?

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: No, of this year.

12 MS. PORTER: Of this year. What charge
13 was that?

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: The obtain or
15 possess a credit card without the cardholder's
16 consent. And then the day after, concealed escape
17 felony prisoner.

18 MS. PORTER: So, basically, Ms. Cortez, I
19 had someone in my vehicle who was a -- basically,
20 like, a felon from another state. And I was
21 unaware. And I had, like, cards on him as well. So
22 since it was my vehicle and everything was, like --
23 I'm sorry, I'm nervous now. Everything was
24 registered to me. They did charge me -- or wanted
25 to charge me with it. And then I guess they figured

1 it out, because they found out, like, it had nothing
2 to do with me.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: I actually am
4 familiar with that particular situation. So, yes,
5 because it was in your vehicle, yes, you would have
6 been popped for that as well. But I do see it was
7 denied.

8 MS. PORTER: Yes.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That's a good thing.
10 No further questions, thank you.

11 MS. PORTER: Okay, Ms. Cortez. Thank you.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Board, any other
13 questions?

14 Just to be clear, everything was admitted
15 or disclosed in the application, even though it was
16 recent. And the last two were denied by prosecution
17 to prosecute -- or the DA to prosecute.

18 Seeing that, do we have -- I'll entertain
19 a motion.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
21 Cortez. I'm going to motion that we grant
22 Ms. Porter's appeal based on full disclosure. Just
23 for the record again, like I indicated prior to, I
24 realized that there was an incident in September of
25 this year, DA denied to prosecute all charges.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we have a motion.
2 Do we have a second?
3 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick, second.
4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
5 have a second. All in favor say aye.
6 Aye.
7 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Aye.
8 MS. PORTER: Thank you, so much.
9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Hang on a second.
10 Opposed?
11 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Brown, nay.
12 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, no.
13 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick, aye.
14 DAG HARRIS: Motion passes -- it sounds
15 like the motion passes three to two.
16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So want to be
17 sure.
18 So, the motion did pass. You will get
19 your guard card. As you can see, it was difficult
20 for us to make this decision. There's a few
21 gentlemen on the Board that are former law
22 enforcement. I would say to you, you know, a
23 cautionary tale on who you put in your car.
24 MS. PORTER: Yes, ma'am.
25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So you're not in any

1 further trouble.

2 They will -- the Board -- the office will
3 get in contact with you for next steps, okay?

4 MS. PORTER: Thank you, so much.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations.

6 MS. PORTER: Take care.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We did 74, Mr. Shiver.

8 Agenda Item No. 75, Deshawn Kimbrough.

9 MR. KIMBROUGH: Good afternoon.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good afternoon, sir.

11 Investigator Swarthout, would you please
12 tell us why we're here for Mr. Kimbrough?

13 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
14 denied for a felony conviction, conviction of
15 illegal use or possession of a dangerous weapon and
16 failure to disclose.

17 September 18th, 1990 out of California,
18 felony conviction. Discharged firearm from a
19 vehicle at person. Convicted, three years prison.
20 That arrest was -- a conviction was disclosed.

21 December 10th of 2010 out of Alabama.
22 Misdemeanor DUI. This appears to be arrest only, no
23 charges were filed. That one was not disclosed.

24 A January 1st, 2005 Alabama, felony theft
25 of property, first degree. That, again, was

1 acquitted.

2 April 30th, 2000 out of California.
3 Misdemeanor battery, guilty, sentenced to probation
4 and jail time.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And then the
6 other charges that were dismissed in the 2000
7 incident, did that happen at the same time?

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Doesn't appear
9 to. Yeah, the other charges, the inflict corporal
10 injury on spouse and willful cruelty to a child,
11 both were dismissed.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.
13 Board, any questions for Mr. Kimbrough?

14 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
15 Brown.

16 I have a question for Investigator
17 Swarthout. I wanted to wait until Mr. Kimbrough was
18 finished with whatever is more interesting than him
19 getting his work card.

20 Investigator Swarthout, I might have
21 missed something. Was there something -- a charge
22 you read prior to the 1990 felony? Was there a
23 2018? I misheard or --

24 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: No, there was
25 only the 1990 felony.

1 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Okay. For some
2 reason, I thought you read something that came from
3 the fingerprint report that wasn't on here. I'm
4 sorry. My confusion.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just so that we're
6 clear. He admitted to the felony and was denied
7 right away, right?

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: That is correct.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Then we ran the
10 fingerprints, and we found the other arrest?

11 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yeah. The other
12 arrests were all found on his fingerprints.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: They were not
14 disclosed.

15 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The other ones
16 were not disclosed.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just wanted to make
18 sure.

19 Okay, any further questions for the Board?

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
21 Cortez.

22 Mr. Kimbrough, why did you fail to
23 disclose the other convictions?

24 MR. KIMBROUGH: Well, when I asked her
25 that, she said --

1 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: When you asked who?

2 MR. KIMBROUGH: I asked the lady at the
3 PILB Board. I didn't know. But on my phone, I have
4 they dismissed all that from Alabama.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So when you
6 filled out the application, did you notice that
7 there was a page that said stop, you need to list
8 all of your convictions regardless --

9 MR. KIMBROUGH: No, I just --

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Hang on.

11 Did you see that part of the application?

12 MR. KIMBROUGH: No, I did not.

13 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Okay. So,
14 unfortunately, there is a page in the application
15 where it indicates -- it's one sheet. Stop. Nice
16 big red stop sign. List all of your applications.
17 The following is going to ask about your criminal
18 history. It's very clear.

19 Not only do I know that because it's on
20 the internet and I've actually seen the
21 applications, I, myself, have also applied for it.
22 So that's why I know exactly that it's in the
23 packet. But it sounds like you just kind of --

24 MR. KIMBROUGH: No. I was trying to get
25 her to help me, you know, on what I actually needed

1 to do. But like I said on --

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Right. And you're
3 showing me stuff that's been -- that's a disposition
4 of a case.

5 What I'm asking you is: Why did you fail
6 to disclose it? I understand you have the
7 disposition.

8 MR. KIMBROUGH: I have no idea. I have no
9 idea. I just put the felony because I figured that
10 that was going to pop up.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: There it is, got it.
12 Thank you, so much.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
14 from the Board? Okay.

15 Hearing no further questions, I'll
16 entertain a motion.

17 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
18 Brown.

19 I move that we uphold the denial based on
20 failure to disclose.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
22 motion. Do we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick, second.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
25 have a second. All in favor say aye.

1 (All present Board members voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, unfortunately,
3 because you did not tell us about all of your
4 incidences that you've had with law enforcement.
5 It's -- Ms. Cortez referenced, in the application it
6 does say stop, list everything. It doesn't matter
7 if it's been expunged or removed or it doesn't
8 matter. It's going to show up on your fingerprints.
9 We need to know about it in advance.

10 Now you have a list of all the
11 interactions that you've had with law enforcement.
12 So you are more than able to apply again in a year.
13 When you do apply, make sure that you list all of
14 these interactions with law enforcement.

15 If you -- if you have any new ones that
16 come up, then you need to list those as well. But
17 it just needs to be very, very clear that we need
18 you to list everything, whether it's dismissed or
19 not, whether it was 20, 30 years ago or not. It
20 needs to be put into the actual application, okay?

21 MR. KIMBROUGH: Okay. Not a problem.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you. We look
23 forward to seeing you in a year.

24 MR. KIMBROUGH: Thank you.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Take care.

1 Agenda Item No. 76, we've already done a
2 disposition on.

3 Agenda Item No. 77, Lawrence Cook.

4 MR. COOK: Afternoon.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good afternoon, sir.

6 Investigate Swarthout, could you tell us
7 why we're here for Mr. Lawrence?

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
9 denied for conviction of an illegal use, possession
10 of a dangerous weapon. The applicant had previously
11 applied in -- on July 18th of 2022 and was denied
12 then. He did not appeal the denial at that time.
13 The applicant's reason for denial is a March 14th,
14 2016 out of Nevada conviction for a misdemeanor
15 conviction of carrying concealed weapon without a
16 permit. He was sentenced to 30 days jail suspended,
17 45 hours of community service, and \$450 fine and to
18 forfeit the weapon. The applicant did disclose
19 this.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, just to be clear,
21 he disclosed all the interactions with law
22 enforcement?

23 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

25 Board, any questions for Mr. Cook?

1 Seeing there's no questions, I'll
2 entertain a motion.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
4 Cortez, motioning to grant to -- Mr. Cook's appeal
5 based on full disclosure.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
7 motion. Do we have a second?

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
10 have a second. All in favor say aye.

11 (All present Board members voted aye.)

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations. You
13 will get your work card. The office will reach out
14 to you for next steps, okay?

15 MR. COOK: Thank you, so much.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Congratulations.

17 Agenda Item No. 78, Donovan Boney.

18 Agenda Item No. 79, Robert Nickleberry.

19 Agenda Item No. 80 -- when do we go

20 into --

21 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: 2:00 starts
22 at 79.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Let's do it this way.

24 I think you were the last of the -- first
25 of the last ones. What was your name, sir?

1 MR. GREEN: Green, Damaine Green.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: 80. So, sir, why
3 don't you come up?

4 MR. GREEN: Good afternoon.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good afternoon. Thank
6 you.

7 Investigator Swarthout, why are we here
8 for Mr. Green?

9 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
10 denied for a conviction of a felony for the illegal
11 use and possession of a dangerous weapon and for
12 failure to disclose.

13 September 8th, 2009 out of Maryland, a
14 felony, convicted robbery, seven years prison, five
15 years suspended, three years probation. That one
16 was disclosed.

17 July -- or January 17th, 2009 out of
18 Maryland. Misdemeanor conviction, transport handgun
19 on roadway. Three years jail, two years suspended,
20 three years probation. That one was disclosed.

21 April 19th, 2017 out of Washington, D.C.
22 Misdemeanor theft second degree. We could not find
23 this case listed. If -- it was found through court
24 case searches, but there's no dispo listed at all
25 for the case.

1 January 7th, 2015, Washington, D.C.

2 Misdemeanor assault. This case was dismissed.

3 May 12th, 2014, Washington, D.C.

4 Misdemeanor simple assault. He was convicted, 180
5 days jail, 165 days suspended, probation one year.
6 That one also wasn't disclosed.

7 March 17th, 2014, Washington, D.C. This
8 one was a felony. Unauthorized use of a vehicle.
9 This one wasn't disclosed. He was found not guilty
10 at trial.

11 May 29, 2013, Washington, D.C.
12 Misdemeanor possession with intent to distribute
13 marijuana, dismissed.

14 And that is all of them.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay, thank you.

16 So, just to be clear, we did list the
17 felonies, but did not list the other ones that were
18 found on fingerprint reports.

19 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: That is correct.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Board, any questions
21 for Mr. Green?

22 Hearing there are no questions, I'll
23 entertain a motion.

24 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
25 Brown.

1 I move to uphold the denial based on
2 failure to disclose.

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
4 motion. Do we have a second?

5 BOARD MEMBER BEZICK: Bezick, second.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
7 have a second. All in favor say aye.

8 (All present Board members voted aye.)

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, you will not get
10 your work card today. We're going to uphold the
11 original ruling. You do have an opportunity to come
12 back in a year and apply. Again, I think you
13 noticed the theme here. The big issue is to make
14 sure that you tell us about all of the interactions
15 that you have with law enforcement.

16 MR. GREEN: Okay.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You do have a list now
18 of that. When you go to the office to apply, you
19 can ask them for your record and they can help you
20 by giving you that information so you can just list
21 it all down, okay?

22 MR. GREEN: Okay.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we hope to see you
24 in a year.

25 MR. GREEN: All right. Thank you.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Good luck to you.

2 I think that you guys -- I'm not sure
3 which one of you -- you?

4 Ma'am, what's your name?

5 MS. COSS: Dilsia Lopez Coss. I'm No. 90
6 on your roster.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: No. 90. Come on up.

8 MS. COSS: Good afternoon.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Ma'am, were you sworn
10 in?

11 MS. COSS: No, I wasn't.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Is there anybody else
13 in the room that hasn't been sworn in?

14 DAG HARRIS: Please stand and raise your
15 right hand.

16 (Those who were present and planned on
17 testifying stood, raised their right
18 hand, and were sworn in by Ms. Harris.)

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator
20 Swarthout, could you please tell us why we're here
21 for Ms. Coss?

22 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The applicant was
23 denied for felony conviction. The applicant listed
24 two on her application. We have since gotten her
25 fingerprints back.

1 She listed a 2001 commercial burglary out
2 of California with the 1203.4 paperwork. That was
3 dismissed on 5-14-2007.

4 And then another 2001 for possession out
5 of California, also. Which was -- also got 3 --
6 under the 1203.4.

7 Her fingerprints, once we received them,
8 don't have any other cases on there. Just those
9 ones.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just to be clear, did
11 she disclose these?

12 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes, she did.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay, all right.

14 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: And she provided
15 the 1203.4 paperwork when she applied.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Awesome. Thank you.
17 Board, have any questions for Ms. Coss?
18 Hearing there are no questions for
19 Ms. Coss, I'll entertain a motion.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
21 Cortez motioning to grant Mrs. Coss' appeal.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
23 we have a second?

24 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we

1 have a second. All in favor say aye.

2 (All present Board members voted aye.)

3 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So, it will be
4 granted. The Board will reach out to you for next
5 steps, okay?

6 MS. COSS: Thank you, very much.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.
8 Congratulations.

9 MS. COSS: Thank you.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: You're just here to
11 observe. I'm assuming you guys are all together, so
12 that leaves you, sir. What's your name?

13 MR. NICKLEBERRY: My name is Robert
14 Nickleberry, ma'am.

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: 79.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Sir, please come up
17 front.

18 Investigate Swarthout, if you could please
19 tell us why we're here for Mr. Nickleberry.

20 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Applicant was
21 denied for a conviction of a felony and illegal use
22 or possession of a dangerous weapon.

23 The applicant was previously denied on
24 2-28-2020 for the weapons conviction. He did not
25 appeal at that time.

1 June 10th, 2013 out of California, felony.
2 This one was disclosed. Carry loaded firearm within
3 public place, five years' probation, 150 days jail.

4 November 27th, 2019 out of California.
5 Felony, disclosed. Possession stolen vehicle,
6 vessel, et cetera. This one just says he's referred
7 to another jurisdiction on the prints.

8 March 7th, 2012 out of Arizona. Disclosed
9 misdemeanor, criminal trespass third degree, six
10 months' probation and a fine.

11 June 5th, 2010 out of California.
12 Misdemeanor carry concealed jirka or dagger.
13 Applicant would have been a juvenile at the time.

14 August 25th, 2006 out of California.
15 Misdemeanor failure to obey order, juvenile court,
16 force with a deadly weapon not a firearm, battery,
17 seriously -- serious bodily injury. Applicant would
18 have been a juvenile at the time. He disclosed all
19 the arrests. The two that weren't disclosed were
20 the two that were juvenile.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Can I ask Executive
22 Director or DAG, what does it say about the juvenile
23 record? I don't remember us having one.

24 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: In the State of
25 Nevada --

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Sorry, go ahead.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
3 Cortez.

4 In the State of Nevada, juvenile records,
5 once they reach the age of adult they get sealed.
6 So the only information we have is if it were to pop
7 up and based on what the applicant has to say.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

9 Any questions for Mr. Nickleberry?

10 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
11 Cortez. I have do have a question for you. Hi, how
12 are you?

13 MR. NICKLEBERRY: I'm pretty good, miss.

14 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Talk to me about the
15 2019. What happened?

16 MR. NICKLEBERRY: 2019. Can you rephrase
17 that case again? Because I don't remember that
18 case, Miss.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: It was the
20 possession of the stolen vehicle, vessel, et cetera,
21 and then the case got transferred to another
22 jurisdiction.

23 MR. NICKLEBERRY: The case got transferred
24 to another jurisdiction. I never had a stolen
25 vehicle for 2019. For that one, if I did, I would

1 have known about that case, and I don't know about
2 that case, Miss.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: So sometime in 2019,
4 do you recall being arrested for --

5 MR. NICKLEBERRY: I recall being arrested,
6 not to cut you off, but I was -- I was in somebody
7 else's car at the time.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That's what I want
9 to know. Talk to me about the whole situation.

10 MR. NICKLEBERRY: Yes, ma'am. So I was in
11 Sacramento, California. I just left Las Vegas,
12 Nevada. Because I had to go check on my mother.
13 And with an ex-fiance, ex-girlfriend I was with. I
14 was inside her car. But then she was renting a car
15 because she was doing --

16 THE REPORTER: She was what?

17 MR. NICKLEBERRY: She rented a car for
18 HyreCar. That's when we was doing, like, Door Dash,
19 Uber Eats, and stuff like that. So once the case,
20 when she had got pulled over and I was in the car
21 with her and they just take me down with her and
22 everything else, so they dismissed the case. And
23 none of that -- I never stole no car or nothing like
24 that, Miss.

25 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Unfortunately, we

1 don't have a disposition of that case. So when you
2 say that it was dismissed, why are you saying that?
3 Did you go to court?

4 MR. NICKLEBERRY: I was in jail for that
5 one for, like, a couple of days. And they saw it
6 and they dismissed it. 2019, I'm sorry, I never
7 understand that information after whatever happened
8 at the time.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: How many days did
10 you go to jail for?

11 MR. NICKLEBERRY: I went to jail for -- so
12 you say 2019? I think it was, like, a whole week
13 after Thanksgiving if you talking about that in
14 2019. Right at that time -- because I stayed in
15 there for Thanksgiving and dismissed it after that.
16 And I never went to court for it because they said
17 they closed it and everything for that in Sacramento
18 County.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator
20 Swarthout, do we have anything that says that it
21 was --

22 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: The fingerprints
23 only state that it was out of Sacramento, but states
24 that it was referred to another jurisdiction.

25 MR. NICKLEBERRY: I don't know which other

1 jurisdiction was that, if you know what I mean.

2 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You said it was a
3 rental vehicle?

4 MR. NICKLEBERRY: Yes, ma'am.

5 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Do you recall the
6 plates of that car?

7 MR. NICKLEBERRY: No, ma'am.

8 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: That would be the
9 only thing that I would think that it would get
10 transferred over to where the vehicle was actually
11 purchased out of, or what state it's registered out
12 of.

13 MR. NICKLEBERRY: And it probably was
14 registered out here. And I don't know which -- the
15 plate number.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Wait. You say you
17 do know the plate number?

18 MR. NICKLEBERRY: I don't know the plate
19 number. But I know --

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: It was a Nevada
21 plate?

22 MR. NICKLEBERRY: It was a Nevada plate,
23 because she had rented the car out here when she was
24 doing HyreCar.

25 THE REPORTER: When she was doing?

1 MR. NICKLEBERRY: She was doing HyreCars,
2 like, Door Dash, Uber Eats and stuff like that. But
3 when you rent cars from HyreCars, they help you to
4 get it -- car, so you can go out and do the work for
5 them.

6 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: How do we know if
7 that's closed, or how do we...

8 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: There's no
9 follow-up of him ever being rearrested on his prints
10 for it. There's no hits on SCOPE for the arrest,
11 either, or any relations.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: There's no probation
13 or anything like that --

14 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: There's nothing
15 listed on there.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You didn't have to
17 pay a fine or go to any classes --

18 MR. NICKLEBERRY: No, ma'am.

19 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: You just were
20 released on your own recognizance?

21 MR. NICKLEBERRY: Yes, ma'am.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just to be clear, he
23 disclosed all of these arrests?

24 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes. He didn't
25 put down what the charge was for that one, but he

1 put down roughly that year.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Some sort of police
3 contact. Okay.

4 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Madam Chair, this is
5 Board Member Brown. Question for the Executive
6 Director.

7 Looking at the sections of the forms that
8 you applied in some of your cases up above, it
9 doesn't say anything on the form about listing
10 arrests, juvenile arrests, that were sealed. Do we
11 have any precedence on this? Do we waive that? Or
12 do we uphold the failure to disclose, even though it
13 doesn't say that on our form?

14 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
15 Director Saladino, for the record.

16 Typically, we do not hold juvenile cases
17 against the applicants. I think the only reason the
18 investigator wrote them down was that they were on
19 the fingerprints.

20 I know in past when we've had individuals
21 that have just barely became an adult and had an
22 extensive history with law enforcement at the
23 juvenile level, we do bring that into -- bring that
24 before the Board, just because the individual hasn't
25 been an adult long enough to have stayed out of

1 trouble.

2 This would not be the case with this
3 applicant. He did make the attempt to disclose his
4 arrest history, even when he wasn't sure what the
5 incident in 2019 was. He still noted it on the
6 application that there was law enforcement contact.
7 So I would not consider these juvenile arrests
8 during this particular case.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Board Member
10 Cortez --

11 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you, very much.
12 And we all know Investigator Swarthout's ability to
13 dig and find things.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions
15 for Mr. Nickleberry?

16 Seeing no further questions, I'll
17 entertain a motion.

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: This is Gronauer.
19 Motion to grant the appeal for Robert
20 Nickleberry's registration. Time and distance.

21 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
22 motion. Do we have a second?

23 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Brown will second.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
25 have a second. All in favor say aye.

1 (All present Board members voted aye.)

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Motion passes. You
3 will get your work card. The office will contact
4 you for the next steps, okay? Thank you.

5 MR. NICKLEBERRY: Appreciate it. Thank
6 you, guys.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.
8 Congratulations.

9 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: What's your name?

10 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: Michael.

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Last name?

12 Docanto Salas.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: What was the number of
14 the last one we just did, number what?

15 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: 79.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: 79.

17 Sir, you're the one left in the audience
18 here. Please come on up.

19 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: All right.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We're going to have to
21 swear you in, so please raise your right hand for
22 DAG Harris.

23 (Those who were present and planned on
24 testifying stood, raised their right
25 hand, and were sworn in by Ms. Harris.)

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Investigator
2 Swarthout, would you please tell us why we're here
3 for Mr. Salas?

4 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes. The
5 applicant was denied for a felony conviction,
6 July 18th, 2017 out of California for grand theft.
7 Convicted, three years' probation, 90 days' jail.

8 He did have a probation violation on
9 03-23-2018 in this case.

10 June 10th of 2018 out of California,
11 misdemeanor, possession, intent to flee. All it
12 shows was that it was -- arrest charge and it was a
13 mental evaluation, rehab for it.

14 November 4th, 2009 out of Nevada, possess
15 switchblade. Six months' probation. He would have
16 been a juvenile at the time. He did disclose that.

17 The applicant has actually disclosed two
18 other arrests that weren't found on his SCOPE or his
19 fingerprints that are out of -- cases out of the
20 Justice Court. Looks like it started out as
21 misdemeanor citations that were issued for injure,
22 tamper with vehicle, damage of \$250 to 5,000. He
23 has a hearing on January 2nd for that.

24 And failure to give information to officer
25 at an accident, which is a ticket.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So -- just so I'm
2 clear. The ones that are listed, he did disclose.
3 And then he added two additional ones since the time
4 that he applied, which were the ones you just
5 mentioned, and they're still active cases.

6 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: Yes, they are.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay.

8 Board, any questions for Mr. Salas?

9 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
10 Brown. I just wanted to confirm, the two that are
11 active, are they just citations or are they arrests?

12 INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT: They don't show
13 up on the applicant's SCOPE or his fingerprints, so
14 it looks like they might have been just citations at
15 the time of the incidents or afterwards that he was
16 cited for. The injure, tamper vehicle is a gross
17 misdemeanor offense.

18 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Mr. Docanto Salas, on
19 the 2017 grand theft, where you have a probation
20 violation, did they tack any more time on to your
21 probation or are you completed?

22 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: I completed it.

23 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: Thank you.

24 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: Uh-huh.

25 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any further questions?

1 I'll ask, do you -- the two that you just
2 added on, what is the status of those right now, as
3 you understand it?

4 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: Currently, as I -- as
5 he mentioned, the second is already taken care of.
6 It ended up being just a ticket. That -- the first
7 one he mentioned is currently going on. And I do
8 have the court case January 2nd. And granted,
9 it's -- I put that in there just to be safe because
10 it didn't necessarily say that on the paper. I
11 wasn't arrested for it or anything of that nature.
12 But I just wanted to cover all my bases.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: What happened with
14 that situation?

15 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: Well, I was off a
16 medication that is dire, a bipolar medication, and I
17 was off it for a significant amount of time, which
18 I'm now back on. And it subsequently led to a
19 breakdown of sorts.

20 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. I feel like
21 this is the same situation with the -- you weren't
22 here earlier, but typically, when we review these
23 type of cases -- first of all, thank you for
24 disclosing everything. That's admirable and you did
25 a great job of doing that.

1 The issue that we have is, we don't
2 typically like to make decisions on folks that have
3 active cases. Just because we don't have all the --
4 but what we can do is ask that you -- we can have
5 the Board vote to postpone your case, since you are
6 going to go see the -- going to court in January.

7 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: January 2nd.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Our next meeting is in
9 March. We can have you come back in March. We can
10 postpone you until March, and then hopefully your --
11 everything is handled and then we'll be able to make
12 a decision based off of that.

13 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: Absolutely.

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I think that's, in my
15 opinion, best right now. Because if we do make a
16 decision, you'll have to wait a year before you come
17 back.

18 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: That's fine.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So Board, knowing that
20 he disclosed everything and he does still have that
21 active case, I will at this time entertain a motion.

22 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
23 Cortez.

24 I'm going to motion that we postpone
25 Mr. Michael Docanto Salas' case until the next Board

1 meeting scheduled for March of 2024.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. We have a
3 motion. Do we have a second?

4 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

5 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Brown, I'll
6 second.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
8 have a second. All in favor say aye.

9 (All present Board members voted aye.)

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So we look forward to
11 seeing you again in March. Hopefully get all that
12 paperwork submitted to the PILB so that they have
13 all that information and we can make a decision.

14 MR. DOCANTO SALAS: Sounds good.

15 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you.

16 There's no one here. What's the timeline
17 for the rest of them, 2:00? I think at this point
18 we just take a break until --

19 DAG HARRIS: We could do the -- well...

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: 67 and 71 is what I
21 have.

22 DAG HARRIS: Yeah. I have 67, 71, and 78.

23 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: And 78.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So we trailed
25 certain items, one of them being Item No. 67,

1 Nyjuwon Adams, who's not in the audience. 71,
2 Ke'ena Barrozo. And Agenda Item No. 78, Donovan
3 Boney.

4 They are not here, so I'll entertain a
5 motion.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
7 Cortez motioning to uphold the denials for Agenda
8 Items No. 67, 71, and 78. They were told to be here
9 at 1:00. It is now 2:04 p.m.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. And then
11 when -- the next group was told to be here at 2:00?

12 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Yes.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: What agenda item did
14 that start?

15 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: We need a second.

16 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Can
17 we get a second?

18 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

19 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
20 have a second. All in favor say aye.

21 (All present Board members voted aye.)

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So those agenda items
23 are completed.

24 What was the next block for 2:00?

25 I say we take a break until 2:30. If they

1 don't show up by then, then we just move forward.

2 DAG HARRIS: Madam Chair, if I may, the
3 only suggestion that I would ask is pertaining to
4 Agenda Item No. 92. If we could address that one.

5 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. I was going to
6 ask about that. My question was basically, do we
7 have to wait until tomorrow or -- he was told to
8 come tomorrow.

9 DAG HARRIS: He was told to come today,
10 correct, Director Saladino?

11 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Director
12 Saladino, for the record.

13 We'd have to check the notice.

14 DAG HARRIS: Okay.

15 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Just to
16 double check. Should be the very last page of the
17 binder, or the very last page of the handout I gave
18 you, Cassandra.

19 DAG HARRIS: And then just to advise the
20 Board, he did receive copy of the notice of the
21 meeting, and did say that -- he did send an e-mail
22 stating that because he believes that him and his
23 company are exempt from state laws, that he would
24 not be appearing. Those are the representations
25 that he's made. But I do recommend just, you know,

1 double checking.

2 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I just wanted to make
3 sure on this. I thought he -- an e-mail tomorrow.
4 I'm all about getting it done today, if we can.

5 They can look it up while we're on break?

6 DAG HARRIS: Yes.

7 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We'll be on break
8 until 2:30, waiting for everybody else. See if
9 anybody else shows up and we'll move forward from
10 there.

11 So up north, we're on break until 2:30.

12 Okay.

13 (Off record.)

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I think we ended at 80
15 or 81. We did see Mr. Green.

16 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: We're at 83.

17 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Do we need to go back
18 and trail the -- or go back through our trails?

19 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Yeah, we do.

20 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: We did that.

21 DAG HARRIS: 67, 71, and 78. We're on 83.

22 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Flat out on 83, okay.

23 So, it seems like we don't have any
24 audience except for one that's been here all day in
25 the south.

1 Do we have any audience up north?

2 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: No, Madam Chair, we
3 do not.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I'm going to go ahead
5 and read the names, I guess, of the individuals that
6 were supposed to be here at 2:00 p.m.

7 And do we take a block vote then?

8 DAG HARRIS: Yes.

9 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: And we did see, just
10 so that I'm positive, did we see Ventress Garrett?

11 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: Uh-huh.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So the ones
13 that I have left are Agenda Item No. 83, J. J.
14 Austin, who is not in the audience.

15 Agenda Item No. 84, Rio Jones, who is not
16 in the audience.

17 Agenda Item No. 85, Latrell Thomas, not in
18 the audience.

19 86, Harold Jones, not in the audience.

20 That one was was postponed. That's why
21 he's not in the audience.

22 Agenda Item No. 88, Jonathan Fort, not in
23 the audience.

24 That's it? What about 91?

25 DAG HARRIS: We did that one.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Okay. So I will take
2 a block vote on those items. Entertain a motion.

3 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
4 Cortez.

5 Motion to uphold the denials for no shows
6 on item agendas 83, 84, 85, and 88. They were told
7 to be here at 2:00. It is now 2:34 p.m.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion. Do
9 we have a second?

10 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Gronauer, second.

11 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: We have a motion, we
12 have a second. All in favor say aye.

13 (All present Board members voted aye.)

14 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So that closes out the
15 agenda items for the registration appeals.

16 We do have one item, Item No. 92, which
17 we'll review tomorrow. The intention is to be here
18 at 9:00 a.m. tomorrow.

19 If this gentleman does decide to show up,
20 then we will proceed. If he does not, we will also
21 proceed. DAG Harris will present her items or
22 agenda, and then we will make a decision at that
23 time.

24 Our intention is probably to be here from
25 about 9:00 a.m. until about 10:00 a.m. tomorrow,

1 just so you have some reference. And we will close
2 it out after that.

3 So, now I'll do the Agenda Item No. 93,
4 Board comment, for any future agenda items.

5 Is there anything from the Board? Okay.

6 And then Agenda Item -- is that 94? Item
7 No. 94, public comment. We don't have any public
8 comment.

9 Or, I'm sorry, sir, did you have any
10 public comment?

11 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, ma'am.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Just to read this off.

13 This is the Agenda Item No. -- for public
14 comment. Members of the general public may make
15 comment on matters appearing on the agenda, and may
16 bring matters not appearing on the agenda to the
17 attention of the Board.

18 The Board may discuss the matters not
19 appearing on the agenda, but may not act on the
20 matters at this meeting. If the Board desires, the
21 matters can be placed on future agenda for action.

22 Public comments may be limited to five
23 minutes per person at the discretion of the
24 Chairperson, but will not be restricted according to
25 viewpoint.

1 Sir, please state your name, and if you
2 work for a company here in Nevada.

3 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, ma'am. My name is
4 Dallas Alexander. I work for Pinnacle Protection
5 Group. I'm the QA for them.

6 So I am an employee. I own no portion of
7 the company and I answer to bosses.

8 So my basic question is, I know last board
9 meeting there was a bunch of changes made to the
10 uniform policies, vehicles, and -- of that nature.
11 I've talked with Executive Director, a bunch of
12 members about, you know, how do I proceed forward
13 with this? Making new changes, issuing new
14 requests, and stuff like that.

15 And it's worked out really well for me,
16 but I also have to answer to my bosses, who see the
17 monetary investment. And the other companies that
18 are not necessarily following the regulations set
19 forth from the Board.

20 My main question is just, you know, the
21 Board's guidance on something like this. There is
22 obviously numerous companies that don't follow the
23 rules. And I do my best as the QA for the company
24 to keep Pinnacle Protection Group in line as much as
25 possible, and to keep them adhering to the Board's

1 regulations and everything.

2 So as the -- as I talked with Executive
3 Director earlier, there will be workshops following
4 on, especially after the Formula 1 event and -- you
5 know, to get everybody on the same page, keep
6 everybody in compliance and more uniformed and
7 noticeable demonstrated security and law
8 enforcement.

9 So my main question is just, as a
10 Qualifying Agent, I only have so much leeway to get
11 a company to do something. I can give my
12 recommendations on the -- here's the rules, here's
13 the laws, and incline them to follow them.

14 But, you know, I have to also answer
15 questions of why is my company doing all these
16 things and we don't -- you know, as a company, we
17 don't see anything happening to them.

18 If I look up the QAs on the stuff, they're
19 not getting fined, they're not getting anything.
20 And there's been numerous cases that my QA license
21 is not necessarily clean. I've had infractions and
22 owned up to all those and paid my fines in due.

23 It's just mainly, how do I, you know,
24 ensure my bosses that, hey, everybody is trying to
25 do the right thing, mainly.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: My -- just in general,
2 just to be clear, the meeting that we had was a
3 discussion on current statutes that are in place.
4 They weren't changes, to my understanding, to any of
5 the statutes that were in place. So if you
6 weren't originally following the statutes and you
7 had to make changes, then, you know, that's based
8 off of not originally following the statutes.

9 I also work in the industry and have, you
10 know, a pretty healthy uniform expense, if you will.

11 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, ma'am.

12 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: But every time, you
13 know -- I know as a QA, every time that we make
14 changes to our uniforms we submit them to the PILB
15 to make a decision and to turn it over to Metro to
16 do the right thing.

17 You know, the Executive Director team do
18 their very best to make sure that they focus in on
19 individuals -- or that they make sure that everybody
20 is doing the right thing. And so I think if you
21 have questions about other companies, certainly
22 bring that up to the Executive Director and his
23 team, and they could investigate those and see if
24 they fall within policies.

25 But, you know, none of this was a change.

1 It was a discussion about how to better enforce and
2 educate the individuals who are currently out of
3 compliance. So I just want to make that super
4 clear. Because I think a lot of people did get
5 offended or worried that there was going to be this
6 massive change. But it wasn't the intention of the
7 conversation. It was more to make sure that folks
8 were falling within the current guidelines.

9 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, ma'am.

10 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Is that -- did I miss
11 anything?

12 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: No.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Any other Board
14 conversation?

15 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Sir, as a QA, if
16 you have suggestions to your bosses and stuff that
17 go in line with the PILB, make sure you keep copies
18 of that, that you sent to them, and so -- because
19 you're the one responsible for everything.

20 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, sir.

21 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: That's why you're
22 here.

23 Now, if you have complaints, your
24 complaints should go to the PILB team.

25 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, sir.

1 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Now, they don't
2 have to answer back to you and say, well, we did
3 this to this one or we did this to that one. They
4 don't even have to answer to us on that one until
5 when there's -- charges are going through. And it
6 comes before the Board.

7 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, sir.

8 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: So don't think it
9 lands on deaf ears. And see something, say
10 something. If it has to protect the industry, and
11 also has to protect yourself.

12 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, sir.

13 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: So thank you for
14 presenting -- go ahead.

15 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: This is Board Member
16 Brown.

17 This may be inappropriate. Slap me down
18 if it is. But unfortunately, sir, this is just like
19 any other law in the state. If I decide that I'm
20 not going to drive recklessly, I'm not driving
21 recklessly and I see somebody else do it and they're
22 not getting punished, I'm sorry. But you have
23 chosen to do the right thing for your company. If
24 your company tells you, we don't want to do that
25 because the other companies aren't, you need to

1 inform them, you could be fined or there could be
2 consequences. But know that you're doing the right
3 thing. We appreciate that, and hopefully your
4 example will be a lead for the other companies.

5 MR. ALEXANDER: Thank you.

6 BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ: This is Board Member
7 Cortez.

8 I just wanted to go ahead and piggyback
9 off of that, as far as your higher ups and what you
10 were going to tell them if you do need to make that
11 extra expense.

12 It's your company's reputation that is
13 going to precede you. So if you guys are doing
14 exactly what's being told, I mean, you're here. You
15 literally stayed here this entire day to voice this
16 concern. That speaks volumes, as far as the Quality
17 Assurance within your own agency. So I urge you to
18 keep doing what you're doing.

19 Unfortunately, people aren't going to do
20 what's required. But as long as that's not you,
21 even better. And every employee working under you
22 is going to appreciate that.

23 MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, ma'am. Thank you.

24 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Anything else?

25 MR. ALEXANDER: No, no. Thank you for

1 your time.

2 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: Thanks for your
3 time.

4 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: I said we were
5 entertaining. Hopefully we were able to deliver.

6 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER: We tried to call
7 you up five times.

8 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Is there anything
9 else?

10 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Executive
11 Director Saladino, for the record.

12 I do know my predecessor had left me with
13 some changes to the NACs, Nevada Administrative
14 Codes that we will be working on. I do have the
15 intentions on having some workshops, hopefully
16 January, just depends on, one, if Ms. Manning is
17 available. And room scheduling and stuff like that.

18 I know the last few months with Formula 1
19 and now ramping up for the Super Bowl has got
20 everybody busy. I'm hoping that we can have some of
21 these workshops to go over some of those changes
22 that already have been approved. And then if need
23 be, to visit the uniforms as well. I think some
24 stuff might have gotten a little misunderstood
25 during some of those hearings. But I think myself

1 and our team have a good handle on what we would
2 like to see, and I think it will be well received by
3 the industry. So I'm looking forward to having
4 those workshops. And as soon as we get them posted
5 on the website, we'll let as many folks as we can
6 know about it, because I'd like to get feedback. So
7 I look forward to the future.

8 MR. ALEXANDER: Yeah, what I'm saying, you
9 know, we -- me personally, I love being included in
10 the conversation, and the other companies would be,
11 too. Like, we're out there doing the work. The
12 PILB as a whole is evolving, as is the security and
13 law enforcement. And we want to be included in
14 shaping it the best possible way. And also be a
15 staple, not only in the state, but across the
16 country, is the value and how security is shaped in
17 the state.

18 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Absolutely. We
19 appreciate that.

20 Is there anything else? I would just like
21 to quickly put on record, I really appreciate the
22 transition that happened. It was very smooth. I
23 think this meeting went well.

24 I do appreciate the updates in the
25 documentation that you're providing to us with the

1 questionnaires that the applicants have responded to
2 online. So I do appreciate that. I think that
3 provided us some good information, so I appreciate
4 those updates.

5 And just overall, great job, guys. The
6 transition was extremely smooth. Thank you. Great
7 job as usual. Anything for the Board?

8 BOARD MEMBER BROWN: I would like to say
9 congratulations on getting the first one in the
10 books, Executive Director.

11 Also, I would like to point out that we
12 have two new investigators, Cassandra and Jesse.
13 And I'm very glad for that. I know Ricky is. He's
14 got somebody to talk to now.

15 Good job by our staff. Good job by our
16 staff, and as always, Zach is going to dig and get
17 us probably more information that we require, but
18 that's his deal. He's the digger. Great job all.

19 And congratulations, Vinny, on the first
20 one in the books.

21 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO: Thank you.
22 Thank you, sir.

23 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: Thank you, guys.
24 Meeting is adjourned.

25 DAG HARRIS: It's in recess.

1 MADAM CHAIR NIXON: It's in recess, excuse
2 me. And we'll see everyone tomorrow at 9:00 a.m.
3 Thank you.

4 (Proceedings concluded at 2:46 p.m.)

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

<hr/> \$ <hr/>	100 17:17,18	14 39:23	1985 127:23
\$10,000 70:18,25	102 6:19	1443 93:6	1986 33:13 176:19 187:15, 24
\$120 105:18	10:00 245:25	14th 9:1,14 97:18 219:13	1988 147:3,6
\$250 236:22	10:25 67:2	15 17:16 92:15 104:12 117:23 166:12,13 197:1	1990 187:22 204:6 206:24 213:17 214:22,25
\$450 219:17	10th 117:4 213:21 227:1 236:10	150 227:3	1991 141:20 183:20,24 187:20
\$60 200:10	11 6:13	15th 61:5,9 130:7	1992 92:20 206:23
<hr/> - <hr/>	113 6:23	16 17:16 105:3 147:18 153:25	1993 82:22 104:14 147:10
-e-l-e-z 65:14	1141 21:16	165 222:5	1994 139:3,22 187:19
-m 32:21	11:00 80:16,18 137:17,21 138:11	16th 183:12	1995 104:18 147:13 183:16
<hr/> 0 <hr/>	12 16:1 98:15 104:24 128:1 200:19 201:9	17 153:25	1996 39:24 92:14,18
01-16-2004 119:20	12-6 117:1	172 183:5	1997 82:24 90:18 92:17
03-23-2018 236:9	12-8 123:3	17th 183:20 221:17 222:7	1998 162:8,15 164:6,8 183:14 206:17
04 122:17	1203.4 130:7 225:2,6,15	18 83:8	1999 116:21 147:16 187:15, 16
06 122:19	121 6:20	180 222:4	19th 221:21
07 122:18,19	12:00 96:20,22 137:18,23 179:10 195:13 196:14	18th 213:17 219:11 236:6	1:00 179:8,10,12,25 180:2 182:1 195:9 196:23 197:11,13 241:9
09 121:10	12th 222:3	19 30:3 83:16	1:07 196:13
<hr/> 1 <hr/>	13 4:1 83:1	1971 36:14	1:11 73:1
1 7:1 65:7 91:3 248:4 253:18	13th 9:1,14 99:10,13,15 101:8 164:23	1982 117:4	
1-19-92 204:5		1983 117:1	

<p>1:30 30:23</p> <p>1st 59:14 213:24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">2</p> <hr/> <p>2 65:7</p> <p>2,423 6:22</p> <p>2,768 6:22</p> <p>2,882 6:19</p> <p>2-28-2020 226:24</p> <p>20 12:18 19:7 126:20 137:11 218:19</p> <p>2000 68:24 104:22 122:16 147:19 162:9 214:2,6</p> <p>2000s 39:25</p> <p>2001 119:21 120:7,15 126:18 225:1,4</p> <p>2002 83:3 147:22 183:12</p> <p>2003 119:16 120:6 122:17 162:10 198:16</p> <p>2004 18:25 122:9,10 147:24 175:8</p> <p>2005 83:6 176:18 206:22 213:24</p> <p>2006 88:16 121:10 122:18, 21 123:4 183:8 190:20 227:14</p>	<p>2007 83:10 92:23 105:2 148:4 164:23</p> <p>2008 81:4 83:14 148:8,21, 25 159:24 190:10</p> <p>2009 27:6 83:18 85:3 175:7 198:18,19 221:13,17 236:14</p> <p>2010 88:19 175:5 182:25 183:3 213:21 227:11</p> <p>2011 39:23 81:5</p> <p>2012 113:20 182:22 227:8</p> <p>2013 39:23 88:14 121:8 124:13 222:11 227:1</p> <p>2014 83:22 85:9 90:22 104:11 159:21 160:9 170:15 222:3,7</p> <p>2015 12:21 27:8 30:16 157:8 176:20 204:19 222:1</p> <p>2016 48:13 113:22 130:2 136:6,7 200:10 219:14</p> <p>2017 44:12 48:11,13 97:14 170:13,23 221:21 236:6 237:19</p> <p>2018 19:14 43:17 83:25 130:3 152:5,16 157:7, 10 180:17 200:5,10 203:1 209:18 210:10 214:23 236:10</p> <p>2019 227:4 228:15,16,25 229:3 230:6,12,14</p>	<p>234:5</p> <p>2020 23:8,25 29:25 72:19, 20 157:7,16 158:22</p> <p>2021 13:25 148:11 190:16 200:9 202:25</p> <p>2022 6:15,21 8:20 88:23,24 159:25 190:14 191:9 192:19 200:6,16 201:9 202:23 219:11</p> <p>2023 4:1 6:12,17 8:18 9:14, 15 97:16,18 101:24 130:7,15 182:17 209:21,25</p> <p>2024 58:22 97:22 98:24 102:15,16 168:17 169:16 240:1</p> <p>21 10:9</p> <p>22 8:11 10:9,18,25 11:10</p> <p>225 6:20</p> <p>22nd 201:23</p> <p>23 11:16</p> <p>232 6:23</p> <p>24 15:10</p> <p>25 16:24 23:6 30:6</p> <p>254 204:15</p> <p>25th 227:14</p> <p>26</p>	<p>6:13 22:21 72:20 182:22,25</p> <p>26th 72:19</p> <p>27 8:10 26:20 148:1 183:24</p> <p>27th 227:4</p> <p>28 6:15 28:10</p> <p>280 74:4</p> <p>29 32:10 222:11</p> <p>2:00 115:16 220:21 240:17 241:11,24 244:6 245:7</p> <p>2:04 241:9</p> <p>2:30 241:25 243:8,11</p> <p>2:34 245:7</p> <p>2nd 139:22 236:23 238:8 239:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">3</p> <hr/> <p>3 5:24 225:5</p> <p>3,250 6:18</p> <p>30 19:11 20:17 36:1 53:6 83:12,23 85:10,14,15 134:10 148:7 200:19 201:9 218:19 219:16</p> <p>3044 11:24</p> <p>30th</p>
---	---	--	--

9:2,15 119:22 214:2	141:11	195:13,22 196:9	<hr/> 7 <hr/>
31 43:2	45 90:9 219:17	57 19:11 20:16 156:18	70 203:19
32 51:25 142:15,17,19 143:18	46 92:3 144:20 145:2,16	58 133:7,8 135:17 159:12,13	71 206:7 240:20,22 241:1,8 243:21
33 67:12	47 92:5 112:24 144:22 145:2,16	59 159:14	72 206:9
34 79:11,20 97:4 104:24	48 83:19 85:4 92:6 183:5	5th 183:8 227:11	73 195:20 209:10
35 79:25 80:7 104:13 138:7 145:2,16	49 96:23 113:7 146:7 179:13 195:13,22 196:2,8	<hr/> 6 <hr/>	74 127:17,18 213:7
36 80:9 81:4,7 97:6 183:22	4th 183:3,16 236:14	6 10:18,25 11:10 119:16	75 213:8
37 6:12 29:13 80:5,11	<hr/> 5 <hr/>	6-12-2013 120:3	76 182:8 219:1
38 6:15 82:7 103:14 138:15 145:2,16	5 166:14	60 161:24	77 219:3
39 82:9 103:15 138:17 145:2,16	5,000 236:22	61 170:5	78 220:17 240:22,23 241:2,8 243:21
3rd 44:12	5-14-2007 225:3	62 174:22	79 220:18,22 226:15 235:15,16
<hr/> 4 <hr/>	50 113:8 146:8 179:14 195:13,22 196:8	63 170:3 176:10	7th 222:1 227:8
4 182:17	51 113:9 146:9 179:15 195:13,22 196:8	64 180:6 198:3,6	<hr/> 8 <hr/>
40 82:11	52 113:10 146:10	65 181:18 189:19 195:4	8 127:23
41 88:3	53 113:11 151:21 179:16 195:13,22 196:8	66 181:20 194:22 195:5,9 198:5,10,11	80 220:19 221:2 243:14
42 90:5,6 103:16,19 138:18	54 113:12	67 181:22 194:23 195:5,9 199:24 240:20,22,25 241:8 243:21	81 79:21 243:15
43 90:7 103:23	55 151:22 179:17	68 84:2 181:25 187:6	83 243:16,21,22 244:13 245:6
44 90:8 112:20 140:25	56 156:16 179:19,20,21	69 199:25	84 244:15 245:6

85 244:17 245:6	a.m. 73:1 245:18,25	act 5:8 246:19	255:24
86 79:22 244:19	Aaron 80:9 97:6,11 102:15 115:14,19 116:13,14 118:12	action 5:10 24:20 246:21	adjustments 60:10
87 119:5,9	abeyance 14:22 16:13 20:14 21:14 26:4 27:23 31:20 35:9 66:4	actions 25:18	administrative 70:12 253:13
88 244:22 245:6	ability 234:12	active 6:19,22 59:12 97:17, 19,21 167:6 237:5,11 239:3,21	admirable 25:18 66:22 238:24
89 115:23 116:15	aboard 4:5	actively 38:7	admit 51:15
8:00 73:4	absolutely 12:18 126:16 193:15 202:20 239:13 254:18	activity 8:17 54:3,13 55:16 143:3	admitted 72:2 211:14 215:6
8th 116:21 183:14 221:13	abstain 126:12 131:20	actual 48:25 105:20 109:9 111:18 186:2,7 218:20	Adriana 63:10
<hr/> 9 <hr/>	abstaining 126:8,11	Adams 181:22,24 194:24 199:24 241:1	adult 152:25 153:17,19 228:5 233:21,25
90 183:18,22 224:5,7 236:7	abstention 126:3,4,7	add 10:15 166:9	adults 154:1
91 129:19 244:24	academy 171:3 172:2,17	added 142:2 148:15 176:23 237:3 238:2	advance 218:9
92 204:15 242:4 245:16	accept 65:4 172:25	addict 159:22 160:10,11,14, 16	advantage 47:22
93 246:3	access 14:4	adding 23:9	advisable 100:5,13
94 246:6,7	accessory 147:4	additional 39:9 59:18 237:3	advise 242:19
95 148:3	accident 69:19 70:4 236:25	address 38:7 50:4 59:20 70:20, 24 115:5 182:24 183:1 242:4	ADW 155:6
97 39:24	accomplish 52:20	addressed 167:21	AE 15:10,16 16:7
9:00 4:3 245:18,25	accurate 14:5	adhering 247:25	affect 47:18
<hr/> A <hr/>	acknowledge 74:15	adjoined	Affirmative 76:13
A'LYJAH 199:25	acquitted 214:1		affirmed 38:18
A-M-I-C-O 28:23			afternoon 113:13 146:15,16 152:16 161:25 162:1 170:6 174:24,25 176:11 187:8,9 191:5

201:5,7 203:21,22 206:10,11 209:13 213:9,10 219:4,5 221:4,5 224:8	26:5 27:24 29:4 31:21 35:9 53:16 55:11 66:5 75:19 78:8 248:10	Allied 93:6	apartment 19:5
age 228:5	aggravated 187:17	allowed 71:25	apologies 108:21
agency 252:17	agree 55:24	Allstate 12:4	apostrophe 28:23
agenda 5:4,5,7,10,23,24 7:6 9:25 10:1,8,18 11:9, 15,16 15:9 16:24 22:21 26:20 28:10 32:10 36:1 43:2 51:25 59:20 60:23 67:12 79:11,20,21,25 80:5,7, 9,11 82:7,9,11 88:3 90:5,7,8,9 92:3,5,6 96:18,22 97:4,6 99:6 101:7 103:14,15,16, 19,23 112:20,22,24 113:3,7,8,9,10,11,12 115:12 119:4,9 133:4, 6 138:2,3,7,14,15,17, 18 140:25 141:11 144:20,22,25 146:7,8, 9,10 151:21,22 156:16,18 159:12,13, 14 161:24 166:23 170:2,4 174:22 176:10 179:13,14,15,16,17,21 180:6 181:18,20,22,25 182:6 189:19 194:22, 23 195:4,5,17 196:1 197:17,18 198:3,6,9, 11 199:24,25 203:19 206:7,9 209:10 213:8 219:1,3 220:17,18,19 241:2,7,13,22 242:4 244:13,15,17,22 245:15,22 246:3,4,6, 13,15,16,19,21	agreeance 126:16	alpha 32:21	apparently 44:13
agendas 245:6	agreement 136:10	Alsawn 80:11	appeal 79:20 81:11,12,19 84:6,8 86:25 88:23 89:1,2,11 91:4,16 93:7 94:23 96:2 97:19 99:11 100:6,25 102:15 105:7,8 113:25 114:7 115:16 118:12 129:4 130:9 133:16 134:11, 12,13 135:24,25 136:20 139:6,8 142:6 148:17 150:22 157:12, 13 160:3 161:8 162:11 168:9,16 169:15 170:17 174:10 175:11, 18 176:24 180:21 181:3 188:5 190:22 198:23 199:9 200:14 204:9 208:3 210:3 211:22 219:12 220:4 225:21 226:25 234:19
agent 14:19,23 16:14 20:3, 15,19,23 21:15 24:15	ahead 15:23 80:20 110:11 112:8 113:1 126:5 129:12 132:23 137:22 138:1 141:6 146:5 161:2 174:7 195:1 197:10 206:19 208:22 228:1 244:4 251:14 252:8	altercation 69:22	appeals 79:3 80:18 245:15
	airport 30:25	amendment 168:13	appearing 5:4,5,7 242:24 246:15, 16,19
	Akins 182:4,7,11 184:3,6,8, 15 185:16,20 186:8, 14,16	American 148:15	appears 38:1 183:10 195:3,21 213:22
	Alabama 213:21,24 216:4	amount 60:8 83:1 238:17	applaud 63:18
	Alaska 29:15	and/or 83:8	applicant 81:1,5 82:19,22 84:4 88:11,14 90:17,22 91:2 92:13,21 93:1,2,4 97:12,14,16 104:9,11, 14,22 105:2,5 109:2
	Albert 176:10	Andrew 15:10,15 32:16 35:7, 10	
	alcohol 182:18	Andy 17:17,20 20:3 21:15	
	Alex 174:23	Angela 90:9	
	Alexander 246:11 247:3,4 249:11 250:9,20,25 251:7,12 252:5,23,25 254:8	Angeles 81:3	
	Alfonso 181:20 194:22 198:11	angry 154:15,17	
		Ann 36:12	
		announcements 5:25	
		anticipated 99:16	
		Antonio 113:12	
		anybody's 165:19	

<p>113:19,24 116:18,21 119:15,18,25 127:21 130:2,5 135:20 139:1, 3 141:18,20,23 142:1, 3,5 146:25 147:4 148:2,11,13,14,16,20 152:5,8 157:6 159:20 162:8 163:25 170:13 175:4 176:16,24 180:16 182:12,14 187:13,16 188:2 190:10,18 198:16 200:4,8,14 204:3 206:16 209:17 213:13 219:8,10,18 221:9 224:22,23 226:20,23 227:13,17 228:7 234:3 236:5,17</p> <p>applicant's 140:2 219:13 237:13</p> <p>applicants 6:13 7:23 64:1,6 109:5 233:17 255:1</p> <p>application 25:8 41:6 42:4 48:6 49:20 50:1 59:7 78:6 87:3 94:1,2,6,12 95:24 101:23 102:3 111:15 112:11 117:7 124:12 140:3 142:20,22 143:1 151:10 157:12 168:8 177:18 178:8 185:23, 25 186:2,4 199:18 207:7 211:15 216:6, 11,14 218:5,20 224:24 234:6</p> <p>applications 6:15,17 7:1,4,14 25:6 34:20 60:7,9 177:20 216:16,21</p> <p>applied 6:15 23:24 55:10 121:12 122:15,16 124:17 172:24 207:17 208:15,19 216:21 219:11 225:15 233:8 237:4</p>	<p>apply 24:18 37:7 55:5 67:4 68:2 78:17 95:18 124:12 135:11 151:12 159:6,7 163:10 177:25 185:4 208:23 218:12, 13 223:12,18</p> <p>applying 11:17 37:9 50:13,17, 19 67:13 84:7 88:25 105:7 121:8 124:9 139:7 178:6 207:19</p> <p>appointment 61:6,8</p> <p>approval 60:2</p> <p>approve 8:25 9:8,13 10:25 14:18,21,24 16:7 27:19 31:16,22 208:2</p> <p>approved 6:13,15 16:12 21:12 26:1,2,5 35:5,7,10 47:21 66:2,5,11 95:20 121:10,15 159:13 181:12 192:10 204:21 253:22</p> <p>approximately 36:14 69:13 73:22</p> <p>April 102:3 119:22 214:2 221:21</p> <p>arbitration 70:4,17,19,23,25</p> <p>Arbor 36:13</p> <p>archives 39:19</p> <p>area 44:21</p> <p>areas 7:5 13:24</p> <p>argument 120:23 191:12,23</p>	<p>192:3,24,25 193:3</p> <p>arguments 193:22</p> <p>Arizona 17:16 227:8</p> <p>armed 118:4 125:4 192:14</p> <p>Army 36:13</p> <p>arrest 33:13 41:5 42:6 50:1 81:8 83:2,5,9,13,17, 20,24 84:3 87:4,5 88:18,21 91:2 93:1,13 104:17,20,25 105:4 107:12,15 109:6,9 111:16 112:9 119:21 120:15 130:15 131:11 139:5,17 142:14 152:7,10 180:19 184:20 213:20,22 215:10 232:10 234:4 236:12</p> <p>arrested 33:19 108:25 172:5,7 192:8 229:4,5 238:11</p> <p>arrests 34:22 41:16,18 81:9 84:5,14 86:16 87:2,11 88:25 91:3,6 105:5,16 109:12 111:7 113:21 130:8 133:17 135:21 136:6 148:14 149:12 150:10 157:9 159:23 162:8 170:14 175:7 176:22 185:24 190:13 191:1 198:18,22 200:8,12 204:8 205:10 206:20 207:2 209:20 210:2 215:12 227:19 232:23 233:10 234:7 236:18 237:11</p> <p>Ashely 82:8</p> <p>Ashley</p>	<p>103:14 138:15 145:8</p> <p>asks 178:1</p> <p>asleep 73:5</p> <p>assault 33:14,18 45:14 72:21 74:25 76:19 116:23 148:25 152:6 153:3 171:1 172:3,8,12 183:25 209:18 222:2,4</p> <p>assaulted 73:15 74:6</p> <p>assaults 77:8</p> <p>assuming 7:10 121:24 226:11</p> <p>Assurance 252:17</p> <p>assured 165:4</p> <p>asylum 59:2,7</p> <p>attempt 74:19 119:17 234:3</p> <p>attempted 119:17</p> <p>attended 112:7</p> <p>attending 11:13</p> <p>attention 5:6 39:7 246:17</p> <p>attorney 9:22 61:6,9 69:20 74:23 75:1 76:20,21 77:14 90:25 93:22,25 150:12</p> <p>attorney's 76:12,15 92:25</p> <p>audience 9:24 11:14 80:1,3,8</p>
---	--	--	--

108:5,7,10 132:16 133:5 137:10 181:19 197:25 235:17 241:1 243:24 244:1,14,16, 18,19,21,23	131:15,16,17,18,19 137:2,3 140:19,20 144:1,2 146:1,2 151:4, 5 156:9,10 158:24,25 161:14,15 169:22,23 174:16,17 175:23,24 178:22,23 181:9,10 185:1,2 189:12,13 194:8,9 196:20,21 199:15,16 203:10,11 205:25 206:1 208:9,10 212:5,6,7,13 217:25 218:1 220:10,11 223:7,8 226:1,2 234:25 235:1 240:8,9 241:20,21 245:12,13	backup 75:8	249:7
audio 72:1		bad 44:25 143:17 202:17	bases 238:12
audit 13:22 14:10		badge 47:17	basic 247:8
August 6:4 116:21 130:7 147:19 227:14		bag 31:3	basically 52:16 62:10,16 130:17 153:18 155:10 157:23 163:18 185:24 191:12, 14 192:2 210:18,19 242:6
Austin 244:14		ball 123:25	basis 61:24 66:24
authorization 58:21 60:16		bar 191:24	Batres 203:20,21,24 204:2, 11,14,18 206:6
authorizations 64:2	B	barbecue 44:20	battery 45:14 130:15,20,21 148:21,25 183:4 187:17,18 200:6,11 206:22 214:3 227:16
authorized 163:20	back 7:5,10,18 10:15 12:25 23:8 36:15 43:14 44:12 51:17 59:3,21, 22 60:24 67:2 68:24 69:11,13 74:5,7 87:1 89:11 96:7,19,25 98:20,24 99:2,20 105:25 111:10,21,24 113:5 117:23 120:2 123:9 124:17,20 127:4,9 128:16 132:23,25 135:3,11 137:14 138:2,5 144:9 149:18 165:15 166:5 172:5,22 179:1,8,11 185:4,7,9 191:15 194:13,19 195:23 197:1,23 198:21 203:14 223:12 224:25 238:18 239:9,17 243:17,18 251:2	barely 233:21	bearer 202:17
authorizing 65:9		barracks 44:20,21,22	bed 45:3,5 46:11,13 75:12
automatically 77:6		barrier 63:10	began 53:22 54:12 204:20
aware 57:24 63:24 81:9 84:5, 20 105:6 139:5 152:8 157:11 162:11 170:16 190:21 200:13 204:9		Barrozo 206:8 241:2	behalf 25:16 188:8
awesome 25:16 225:16		Barry 92:6 94:22	behoove 100:17,18
aye 9:17,18 11:7 15:4,5 16:18,19 21:20,21,22, 23 26:12,13 28:4,5 32:4,5 35:17,18 42:12, 13 51:6,7 66:18,19 78:14,15 81:25 82:1 86:22,23 89:23,24 91:22,23 95:3,4,5,6, 13,14 102:22,23 110:25 111:1 114:13, 14 118:18,19 125:19, 20,21,22,23 129:9,10		bars 56:13	behooved 109:18
	background 12:20,23 13:5,21 37:1, 4,17 58:4 66:10 77:15	bartender 123:1,4,7,15	believed 39:4
	backgrounds 33:1	base 44:13,16	believes 242:22
	backlog 75:8	based 40:15 42:4 48:2 78:8 86:16 110:20 125:13 126:2,17,23 131:3,22 132:4 140:2,11 143:19 145:19 150:22 151:7 156:3 158:13,21 159:2 161:8 168:1 178:15 184:19 188:19 193:19 194:2 196:12 199:9 203:3 205:18 207:4 211:22 217:19 220:5 223:1 228:7 239:12	bench 97:22 99:17 101:8

<p>Benton 36:16</p> <p>Bezick 4:20,23,24 5:17 18:12 21:11,23 25:24 33:12, 22 35:4 86:15 95:1 110:23 118:16 125:23 131:2,16 140:10 151:2 156:2 175:21 184:18 205:17 212:3,13 217:23 223:5</p> <p>Bezick's 131:13</p> <p>big 123:25 181:16 186:1 216:16 223:13</p> <p>bike 171:8</p> <p>binder 242:17</p> <p>bipolar 238:16</p> <p>birthdate 38:5</p> <p>birthday 73:1,2 74:14,15</p> <p>bit 8:3 12:16 15:17 17:13 23:1 27:3 29:11 30:18 32:23 36:8 46:1 52:3 59:19 60:6 67:20 80:24 192:1</p> <p>black 110:6 171:21</p> <p>block 10:7,8,16,18,21,25 112:25 113:1 138:2, 13,14 144:25 145:11 146:4 195:2,4,22 196:8,16,23 241:24 244:7 245:2</p> <p>blond 197:24</p>	<p>board 4:12,14,15,17,18,20, 23,24 5:6,9,17 6:3 8:6, 23 9:2,7,12,18 10:20, 24 11:3,7 12:7,9 13:8, 18,19 14:1,12,14,17 15:1,5 16:3,6,11,15, 19,25 17:23,24 18:10, 12 20:1,9,10,22 21:7, 11,17,22,23,25 22:3, 14,15,16 23:13,14 24:23 25:16,21,24 26:9,13,18 27:14,17 28:2,5 29:21,22 30:1, 4,6,10,13 31:5,7,10, 11,13,15 32:1,5 33:10, 12,22,24 34:14,17 35:1,4,14,18 37:13,14 40:8,11,20,22,24 41:2, 15 42:1,9,13 44:5,7,11 45:16,21 46:9,14,17, 18,20 47:6,9 49:22,23 50:3,8,11,16,23 51:3,7 52:13 53:17,19 54:7 55:4,8 58:15 59:1,4,5, 23,24,25 60:12,20,24 61:5,15,21 63:21 64:14,15,22 65:2,4,5, 23 66:15,19 67:3,15 68:17,19 71:3,7 72:17, 21 75:16 76:3,7,10,14, 23 77:25 78:4,12,15 79:14 80:4 81:13,17, 22 82:1 84:10,11,23 85:2,8,13,17 86:10,13, 15,19,23 87:6 88:24 89:5,9,14,16,24 91:9, 13,19,23 93:8,10,25 94:3,5,11,15,18,21 95:1,5,6,8,14,23 96:6 97:18 99:5,13,14,24 100:1,3,7,18 101:6,9, 19 102:7,13,19,23 105:12,13,14 108:21, 22 109:13,22 110:3, 18,23 111:1,20 112:7, 10 114:2,5,10,14 115:8,9 116:9,10,15, 16 117:14,15 118:3,6, 8,11,16,19 120:11,12,</p>	<p>18 121:1,5,11,14,19, 25 124:22,23 125:4,6, 11,17,21,22,23 126:1, 6,12,15 127:7 128:4,8, 17,23 129:3,6,10 130:11,12,22,23 131:2,8,12,16,17,18, 21 132:13 134:4,18,25 136:2,9,13,18,24 137:3 139:9,11,14,19, 23 140:5,10,15,20 142:9,13,21,24 143:7, 10,15,22 144:2 145:3, 12,14,19,23 146:2 149:4,5,6,8,9,25 150:4,8,20 151:2,5 152:14 153:1,13 154:5,6 155:2,14 156:2,7,10 158:11,19, 25 160:5,7,14,18,24 161:1,3,5,12,15 162:22,24 163:3 165:13 166:8,24 167:18,25 168:5,15, 16,18,19,20 169:2,14, 16,19,23 170:19,20 171:1 172:11 173:16, 17,18,24 174:4,6,8,13, 17 175:12,16,21,24 177:1,2,9,13,17,23 178:14,19,23 180:3,23 181:2,7,10,12 184:4, 10,18,23 185:2 187:6 188:7,17,23 189:7,9, 13 191:4,7,10,18,21, 25 192:9,14,16,17,25 193:2,6,9,13 194:5,9 196:10,17,21 197:6,9 198:24 199:6,12,16,20 201:4,5,8,13,17,21,24, 25 202:1,4,16,17 203:7,11 204:11,12,19 205:3,12,17,22 206:1, 19 207:22 208:1,6,10 210:5,6,11,14 211:3,9, 12,20 212:3,7,11,12, 13,21 213:2 214:13,14 215:1,19,20 216:1,3,5, 10,13 217:2,11,14,17, 23 218:1 219:25</p>	<p>220:3,8,11 222:20,24 223:5,8 225:17,20,24 226:2,4,15 227:24 228:2,10,14,19 229:3, 8,25 230:9 231:2,5,8, 16,20 232:16,19 233:4,5,24 234:9,11, 18,23 235:1,9,11 237:8,9,18,23 239:5, 19,22,25 240:4,5,9,20, 23 241:6,15,18,21 242:20 243:16,20 244:2,11 245:3,10,13 246:4,5,17,18,20 247:8,19 250:13,15,21 251:1,6,8,15 252:6 253:2,6 255:7,8</p> <p>Board's 39:7 60:19 247:21,25</p> <p>Board/executive 5:24</p> <p>Bob 46:23</p> <p>Bobby 51:11</p> <p>bodily 116:23 190:11 227:17</p> <p>Boney 220:17 241:3</p> <p>bonus 56:25</p> <p>booked 119:20</p> <p>books 255:10,20</p> <p>boot 164:19</p> <p>born 43:15</p> <p>bosses 247:7,16 248:24 250:16</p> <p>Boulevard 192:6</p>
---	--	--	--

<p>bouncer 121:13,14 123:7,16 124:4,15</p> <p>bouncer's 124:10</p> <p>bouncing 124:20</p> <p>Bowl 37:5 253:19</p> <p>Bowls 37:5</p> <p>boy 34:10</p> <p>bracket 80:21</p> <p>Braddock 80:9 97:6,7,11,25 98:5,11,13,19 99:23 100:24 101:15 102:5, 10 103:4,6,8,12</p> <p>Braddock's 102:15</p> <p>Brantley 113:12,13,16 114:2,7, 17,20 115:6</p> <p>break 20:12 67:2 71:13,17, 19,24 72:7,9,15 113:2 137:19,24 196:24 240:18 241:25 243:5, 7,11</p> <p>breakdown 238:19</p> <p>Brian 113:8</p> <p>briefcase 30:22,23,24</p> <p>bring 5:5 177:11 233:23 246:16 249:22</p> <p>broke 69:14,18 191:13,23</p>	<p>Brooks 180:7,15,24 181:4</p> <p>brothers 18:18</p> <p>brought 69:22 106:25</p> <p>Brown 4:19 9:7,8 11:3 13:18, 19 14:12,17,18 21:22 22:14,15 23:14,15 24:23 26:9 30:13,14 31:5,10,11,15 33:24, 25 34:14 37:14,15 40:11,12,20,22,25 41:2,15 42:1,2 49:23, 24 50:3 51:3,4 53:19, 20 54:7 61:15,16,21 64:15,16,22 66:15,16 68:19,20 71:3,7 72:17, 21 75:5 78:4,5 80:4 81:22,23 86:19 91:19, 20 95:8 99:13,14 100:3,4 105:13,14 114:10 116:9,10,16 125:11,12,22 130:12, 13,22 131:8,9,17 136:24 143:15,16 145:14,15,19 149:6,7, 9,10,25 150:4,8 154:5, 6 155:2,3,14 158:11, 12 160:7,8,14,18 161:1,5,6 163:3,4 169:19 173:17,18,24 174:6,7,13 178:19 181:7 188:17,18 192:17,18,25 193:2,6, 9 194:5 197:6,9 199:12 201:25 202:1,4 203:7 204:12,13 208:6,7 212:11 214:14,15 215:1 217:17,18 222:24,25 233:4,5 234:11,23 237:9,10,18,23 240:5 244:2 251:15,16 255:8</p> <p>brushed 23:17</p>	<p>brushes 185:11,24</p> <p>Bryan 146:8 179:14 196:3</p> <p>buddies 45:24</p> <p>budget 6:3,9</p> <p>build 24:5,6</p> <p>building 107:22,23 108:6</p> <p>bunch 247:9,11</p> <p>burglary 105:3 130:3 176:19 190:17 225:1</p> <p>business 12:5,17 15:18 17:13, 18 21:3 22:10 23:2,6 27:3 29:11,12,13,14 37:9 40:3 41:13 51:19 52:4,24 53:1 62:3,11 63:3,22 67:20 143:1</p> <p>busy 76:15 253:20</p> <p>buy 182:19</p> <p>buying 34:13 128:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">C</p> <hr/> <p>C-H-E 17:7</p> <p>Caesars 69:1</p> <p>California 29:15 43:16 70:11 81:3 88:13 90:21 97:14 106:19,25 107:6,10 119:16,22 127:24 128:11 130:7</p>	<p>139:3 141:21 147:3,6, 10,13,16,19,22 148:4, 8 149:14 150:3,5 152:24 183:16,20,24 204:19,20,23 213:17 214:2 225:2,5 227:1,4, 11,14 229:11 236:6,10</p> <p>call 4:4,7 23:17 29:2 74:14 97:2 108:12 115:3 131:7 134:4 145:8 171:18 179:7 187:4 253:6</p> <p>call-no 196:13</p> <p>called 11:10 67:9 69:8,25 72:6 76:21 113:4 121:24 153:20 171:12, 20</p> <p>calling 62:12</p> <p>calls 40:18</p> <p>camp 44:16 164:19</p> <p>campus 33:2,4</p> <p>cancellation 83:11</p> <p>capital 28:23</p> <p>captain 172:20</p> <p>capture 197:12</p> <p>car 30:20 157:24 158:2 212:23 229:7,14,17, 20,23 231:6,23 232:4</p> <p>card 6:17 8:16 19:13 55:1, 2,7 57:10,14,16 58:21 60:5 62:21,23 63:2,12,</p>
---	---	---	---

<p>23 64:2,8,9 65:7,17 66:9,12 91:15 94:3,22 107:3,11 111:3,23 117:19 118:4,5,13,21 120:1,2 121:6,9,16 122:16,17 123:18,20, 21 124:15,25 128:9, 12,20 129:12,13 131:3 132:2 140:11,23 151:7 152:9,11 156:3,12 159:2 161:8,17 165:20 173:14 174:19 176:1 178:25 181:11 189:15 190:18,20 192:10 194:12 199:19 203:13 205:18 208:12 209:22 210:15 212:19 214:19 220:13 223:10 235:3</p> <p>cardholder's 209:22 210:15</p> <p>cards 8:2,4,15 115:1 123:9, 12 210:21</p> <p>care 22:9,20 56:9 63:13 99:3 151:20 213:6 218:25 238:5</p> <p>Carolina 36:23</p> <p>carpenter 34:6</p> <p>Carr 92:3 112:22 144:20,21 145:9</p> <p>carries 188:3</p> <p>carry 113:20 128:11 170:13 173:19 180:17 209:3 227:2,12</p> <p>carrying 170:24 172:9 219:15</p> <p>cars 232:3</p>	<p>Carson 68:22</p> <p>Carter 200:1,3 201:4,6,7,11, 15,19,23,25 202:3,13 203:18</p> <p>case 34:24 38:3 70:13 74:23 75:13 77:3 90:24 97:17,19,20,21 98:18,25 99:21 101:24 103:3 113:2,23 126:19 134:5 155:9,13 164:18 165:1 173:23 217:4 221:23,24,25 222:2 228:17,18,21,23 229:1,2,19,22 230:1 234:2,8 236:9 238:8 239:5,21,25</p> <p>cases 75:9 77:3 98:10 137:22 162:14 167:6 225:8 233:8,16 236:19 237:5 238:23 239:3 248:20</p> <p>casino 191:13,14</p> <p>Cassandra 242:18 255:12</p> <p>caught 164:18</p> <p>Causing 171:11</p> <p>cautionary 212:23</p> <p>CCW 97:13 117:1,5 172:10 173:23</p> <p>ceased 25:10</p> <p>Center 201:20</p> <p>cetera 20:7 21:6 183:17</p>	<p>227:6 228:20</p> <p>chain 12:12</p> <p>Chair 4:3,10,11 5:2,19 6:2,8 7:3,16 8:5,23 9:10,16, 19 10:6,14 11:1,5,8,15 12:6,7,8,15 13:7,14,18 14:13 15:3,6,9,12,17 16:2,17,20,24 17:1,3, 10,12,22 18:11,24 19:2,10,16,19,24 20:5, 9,12,21,23 21:8,19,24 22:1,5,14,19,25 23:12 24:24 25:3,15,20 26:7, 11,14,19,24 27:2,13, 25 28:3,6,9,15,18 29:5,7,10,17,20 30:11 31:1,6 32:3,6,10,22 33:10 34:16,25 35:12, 16,19,25 36:5,7 37:8, 12 39:11,16,22 40:5, 19,21 41:14,22 42:7, 11,14 43:1,6,8 44:4 46:1 48:3,9,15 49:4,8, 12,15,21 50:6,15,22 51:1,5,8,24 52:8,10 53:6,9,14,17 54:16,23 55:2 56:5 57:2,7 58:13 60:25 61:3,12,22 62:2, 5,18,23,25 63:5,14,25 64:13,23,25 65:1,10, 15,19 66:13,17,20 67:1,6,16,19 68:16 75:15,22,25 76:3 78:1, 10,13,16,23 79:2,10, 16,23 80:6,17 81:13, 20,24 82:2,7,14,17 84:9 85:18,22,25 86:6, 9,17,21,24 87:14,20 88:1,5,9 89:4,20,25 90:3,12 91:5,9,17,21, 24 92:2,9 93:8,21 94:17,24 95:2,7,8,10, 15 96:4,6,8,16,24 97:8,23 98:3,7,12,17, 21 99:8,18,24 100:20 101:2,10,14,17 102:9, 17,21,24 103:5,7,10,</p>	<p>13,17,22 104:3 105:10 106:24 107:5,19 108:17,22 110:10,21, 24 111:2,14 112:1,16, 18 113:14 114:1,8,12, 15,18 115:10,17,20, 22,24 116:2,6,9,13 117:10,13 118:7,14, 17,20,24 119:3,8 120:5,9 122:6,10,15, 19,22 123:8,17 124:3, 6,14,21 125:7,15,18, 24 126:2,4,21 127:13, 18 128:3,7,24 129:8, 11,16,20,22 130:10,23 131:5,14,19,24 132:12,15,18 133:8, 12,20 134:6,15,18 135:5,8,13,16 136:1, 14,22 137:1,4,8,12 138:1,14,20 139:9,13 140:7,13,18,21 141:4, 10,13 142:7 143:11, 20,25 144:3,13,18 145:3,7,17,21,25 146:3,11,14,18,21 148:18 149:3 150:16, 25 151:3,6,20,25 152:12 153:15,23 154:1,3,21 155:15,23 156:5,8,11,15,22 157:3,14,22 158:7,17, 23 159:1,17 160:4,20 161:10,13,16,23 162:2,4,21 163:1 164:5,11 165:9 167:4, 15,18,24 168:3 169:9, 17,21,24 170:4,9,18 172:16 173:2,8,15,25 174:11,15,18,22 175:1,12,19,22,25 176:5,9,14,25 178:10, 17,21,24 179:6,20 180:6,13,22 181:5,8, 11,24 182:5,8 184:2, 12,16,21,25 185:3,18, 22 186:11,15,17,24 187:1,4,7,10 188:6,13, 21 189:11,14,19,22,25 190:6,23 191:2 193:10</p>
---	--	---	---

<p>194:3,7,10,21 195:6, 15,23 196:1,15,19,22 197:3,7,10,23 198:1,6, 9,24 199:2,10,14,17, 23 200:15,22,25 201:3 202:5,12 203:5,9,12, 19,22,25 204:10 205:1,13,20,24 206:2, 7,12 207:3,10,21 208:4,8,11 209:7,10, 13 210:4 211:12 212:1,4,9,16,25 213:5, 7,10 214:5,12 215:5,9, 13,17 217:13,21,24 218:2,22,25 219:5,20, 24 220:6,9,12,16,23 221:2,5 222:15,20 223:3,6,9,17,23 224:1, 7,9,12,19 225:10,13, 16,22,25 226:3,7,10, 16 227:21 228:1,8 230:19 232:6,12,22 233:2,4 234:14,21,24 235:2,7,13,16,20 236:1 237:1,7,25 238:13,20 239:8,14,19 240:2,7,10,15,24 241:10,13,16,19,22 242:2,5 243:2,7,14,17, 22 244:2,4,9,12 245:1, 8,11,14 246:12 249:1, 12 250:10,13 251:13 252:24 253:4,8 254:18 255:23</p> <p>chairmen 150:5</p> <p>chairperson 5:13 246:24</p> <p>Chairwoman 26:17</p> <p>challenge 132:3</p> <p>chances 98:22</p> <p>change 14:18 96:2 101:1 182:24 183:1 206:4</p>	<p>208:23 249:25 250:6</p> <p>changed 10:9</p> <p>charge 72:18 74:1 76:11,15 77:11,12 88:20 90:23 92:24 148:12,23 153:9 155:6 172:12 204:15 210:12,24,25 214:21 232:25 236:12</p> <p>charged 45:13 69:21 74:21 77:1,5,14 86:4,7 153:3,4,6,15 154:8,9, 12,20,25</p> <p>charges 33:20 34:2,3,23 48:2 69:22 76:12,16 78:9 87:18 149:2 211:25 213:23 214:6,9 251:5</p> <p>Charles 26:21 27:21 32:20 35:11 92:3 112:22 144:20 145:9 168:8</p> <p>chauffeur 165:5</p> <p>Che 17:6,10,11</p> <p>check 11:16 12:2 13:5 14:5, 20 31:3 41:6,8 125:3 207:18 229:12 242:13, 16</p> <p>checked 188:11</p> <p>checking 243:1</p> <p>checks 12:20,23 13:6 66:10</p> <p>Chicago 82:21</p> <p>chief 70:10</p>	<p>child 148:21,25 153:10 155:11 214:10</p> <p>child's 152:19 154:16</p> <p>children 152:22 153:16,20,24 155:20</p> <p>chime 20:2 165:18</p> <p>Chino 119:20</p> <p>choose 101:15</p> <p>chosen 251:23</p> <p>Chricy 9:23 59:16 100:8</p> <p>Christian 36:2,20 40:16 41:4 42:4 180:7 181:3</p> <p>Christopher 127:17 129:4</p> <p>Chrysler 164:24</p> <p>circle 96:7</p> <p>circumstance 185:15</p> <p>circumstances 41:8 126:16 130:14 157:18 170:23</p> <p>citation 24:22 53:23 183:10</p> <p>citations 8:17 236:21 237:11,14</p> <p>cite 24:20</p> <p>cited 133:23 237:16</p> <p>city</p>	<p>18:16 33:3 36:17 38:23 117:21</p> <p>civil 14:4 18:2 38:23</p> <p>claims 38:22</p> <p>clarification 20:19 39:9 59:6 140:6</p> <p>clarify 195:9</p> <p>clarifying 163:2</p> <p>Clark 68:23 69:13 70:8,21 90:24</p> <p>classes 24:9 232:17</p> <p>clean 18:20,21 39:3 248:21</p> <p>cleaning 19:22</p> <p>clear 38:8 58:17 97:20 144:4 177:25 185:25 186:3 211:14 215:6 216:18 218:17 219:20 222:16 225:10 232:22 237:2 249:2 250:4</p> <p>cleared 7:24 123:22</p> <p>client 71:10 108:24 109:2</p> <p>clients 25:11 62:12</p> <p>close 97:3 99:21 138:3 168:10 246:1</p> <p>closed 8:11 48:13 185:21 230:17 232:7</p> <p>closely 12:25 14:8</p>
---	---	---	---

closer 52:11 186:10	comment 5:3,4,15,16,17,20,22 246:4,7,8,10,14,15	Compared 6:21	condo 74:7
closes 144:24 245:14	comments 5:11 246:22	complaint 54:11,17 56:6	condos 74:8
club 121:24	commercial 225:1	complaints 8:8 13:23 54:19 250:23,24	conduct 92:21 176:21
clubs 56:13	commissioner 172:20	complete 164:21 165:3	conducted 13:22
co-habitant 119:23	commit 119:17	completed 164:19 165:6 237:21, 22 241:23	conducting 55:16
coach 204:24 208:20,22	commitment 39:2	completely 18:8 178:4	confer 78:25
coast 43:12,13	committed 152:24	compliance 14:2,8 248:6 250:3	confinement 117:3
cocaine 84:1 92:15,17 147:4 164:16	common 44:25	computer 71:18 72:3,14	confirm 40:13 64:17 72:8 80:2 91:6 141:10 146:18 176:11 195:7 237:10
Code 130:7	communications 62:12	conceal 209:25	confirmed 38:9,24
Codes 253:14	Communism 52:18	concealed 113:20 170:13,25 172:9 173:19 180:18 210:16 219:15 227:12	conflict 120:20
Coleman 80:1,7 97:4 138:8,9 145:8	communities 52:22	concealing 139:2 157:20	confused 172:12
collaborated 69:24 70:1 71:20 72:10	community 52:24 53:1 63:18 183:5 206:4 219:17	concern 20:1,2 40:2,6,9 42:20 47:11,20 59:13 60:1 64:19 109:14 252:16	confusion 58:18 110:4 215:4
collecting 12:20	companies 8:13 42:24 43:22 44:2 165:5 173:13 247:17, 22 249:21 251:25 252:4 254:10	concerned 21:4 40:1 47:22	congratulations 26:14 28:7 32:7 66:20 89:25 91:24 114:15 129:16 137:5 140:24 156:15 174:18 181:14 199:23 213:5 220:12, 16 226:8 235:8 255:9, 19
college 68:4 71:14	company 8:15 11:21 14:4,7 15:22 27:11 36:24 43:10,20 51:25 53:5, 22 54:21 55:19 58:5,6 66:1 67:24 68:1 128:12,20 176:24 192:13 242:23 247:2, 7,23 248:11,15,16 251:23,24	concerns 9:4,6 10:19,23 20:16 59:18	conjunction 85:7
Colorado 70:5	company's 142:2 252:12	concluded 45:13	connection 62:19 63:15
combat 130:18,20		concurrent 83:20 85:8 92:18 147:9 164:19	connections 23:22
combatant 69:23		concur 165:13	consent 204:5 209:23 210:16
comfortable 165:18,19			
command 12:12			

<p>consequences 252:2</p> <p>consistent 127:2 144:10 151:11</p> <p>conspiracy 104:15</p> <p>Consulting 11:24</p> <p>consummated 45:14</p> <p>contact 22:13 26:15 35:21 38:17 45:14 57:21 64:10 73:23 82:5 90:1 91:25 114:19 118:22 120:19 129:13 131:23 132:4,9 136:5,7,8 137:5 140:22 156:13 168:23 174:19 176:2 199:21 203:3,15 213:3 233:3 234:6 235:3</p> <p>contacted 12:22 25:6 164:24 171:25</p> <p>container 182:18</p> <p>contentious 33:18 34:1</p> <p>contest 153:8</p> <p>contingencies 65:6</p> <p>contingency 60:21</p> <p>contingent 10:9 66:8</p> <p>continue 96:9,18 98:25 113:5 138:6 146:6 197:10</p> <p>continues 194:11</p> <p>continuously 155:12</p>	<p>contracts 22:4</p> <p>controlled 81:2 82:20 83:4,15 88:12 90:19 104:10 147:14,20,25 148:5,9 159:25 160:1 162:16 163:23 164:8 175:6 183:21 187:21,23,25 188:1 198:19,20</p> <p>conversation 46:15 59:3 250:7,14 254:10</p> <p>conversations 55:23</p> <p>convicted 147:21 163:7 164:15 182:23,24,25 183:4 213:19 221:14 222:4 236:7</p> <p>conviction 81:3,6 82:21,24 83:3, 6,10,14,18,22,25 88:13,16 92:18,19,20 97:13 104:10,15,23 105:3 113:20 116:19 119:16 127:22,24 130:3,4 135:21 139:2 141:21 147:24 152:6 157:7,17 158:22 159:21 160:9 164:6,8 170:14 175:5 182:15 183:21 190:11 200:5, 7,16 206:17 213:14, 18,20 219:9,14,15 221:10,18 224:23 226:21,24 236:5</p> <p>convictions 85:19 90:18 117:6 130:6 147:1 148:14 149:19 157:8 162:9 176:17 177:5 178:2 179:2 184:7 185:5,11, 19,24 187:14 193:17 204:4 215:23 216:8</p> <p>Cook</p>	<p>219:3,4,25 220:15</p> <p>Cook's 220:4</p> <p>Cool 174:21</p> <p>copies 250:17</p> <p>copy 4:22 87:13 112:10 242:20</p> <p>corner 171:24</p> <p>Corp 75:20</p> <p>corporal 88:20 119:22 120:7 214:9</p> <p>corporate 11:17 16:8 27:20 31:17,22 35:6 50:13, 18 66:1</p> <p>corporation 14:25 17:19 20:24 21:1,2</p> <p>Corps 43:11 44:16</p> <p>correct 39:15 50:2 53:24 54:2 58:11 63:1,5,8 64:21 91:8 101:25 102:4 120:8 136:11 148:19 153:22 166:11 198:4 209:1 215:8 222:19 242:10</p> <p>Correctional 201:20</p> <p>Corrections 200:20</p> <p>correctly 75:18</p> <p>Cortez 4:16,17 9:12,13 10:24, 25 15:1,2 16:6,7,11,25</p>	<p>17:24,25 18:10 20:10, 11,22 21:7,17,18 22:16 27:17,18 31:11, 13 32:1,2 35:14,15 44:7,8,11 45:16,21 46:9,14,17 47:9,10 52:13 58:15,16 59:1,4, 5,24,25 60:12 61:5 65:23,24 67:3 81:17, 18 84:11,12,23 85:2,8, 13,17 89:16,17 91:13, 14 93:10,11,25 94:3,5, 11,15 95:5 96:6 101:19,20 102:7,19,20 108:21,22 109:13 110:3,18,19 114:5,6 115:9 120:12,13,18 121:1,5,11,14,19,25 124:22,23 125:4,6 126:1,6,7,12,15 129:6 131:21,22 132:13 134:4,18,25 136:2,3,9, 13,18,19 139:11,12, 14,19,23 140:5,15,16 142:9,10,13,21,24 143:7,10,22,23 145:3, 12,13,23,24 149:5,8 150:9,20,21 152:14,15 153:1,13 158:19,20 168:5,6,15,20 169:14 170:20,21 171:1 172:11 175:16,17 177:2,3,9,13,17,23 178:14 180:3 184:4,5, 10,23,24 187:6 188:23,24 189:7,9 193:13,14 196:10,11 199:6,7 202:16,18 205:3,4,12,22,23 208:1 210:6,7,11,14, 18 211:3,9,11,20,21 212:7 215:20,21 216:1,5,10,13 217:2, 11 218:5 220:3,4 225:20,21 226:15 227:24 228:2,3,10,11, 14,19 229:3,8,25 230:9 231:2,5,8,16,20 232:16,19 234:9,10 235:9,11 239:22,23</p>
---	--	--	---

240:20,23 241:6,7,15 243:16,20 244:11 245:3,4 252:6,7	cover 238:12	175:1,4 176:15,16 180:14,16 187:10,13 188:10 190:6,9,25 195:8,12,20 198:13,15 200:2,4,18,24 201:2 202:6,8 204:1,3 205:5, 8 206:12,15 207:6 209:14,16	168:12,18 179:19 181:23 195:3,10,21,25 197:15,17 198:5,8 212:14 224:14 227:22 235:22 240:19,22 242:2,9,14,19 243:6, 21 244:8,25 245:21 255:25
Coss 224:5,8,11,21 225:17, 19 226:6,9	Covid 74:23 75:8	current 14:3 168:10 188:9,11 189:4 249:3 250:8	dagger 227:12
Coss' 225:21	Covid-19 43:18	customers 165:24	Dallas 247:4
counsel 60:14	cracked 69:15	cut 229:6	damage 191:16 236:22
counseling 183:6	create 115:1	cutoff 64:9 96:20,21	Damaine 221:1
country 254:16	credence 76:16	<hr/> D <hr/>	DAMICO 28:21
counts 38:24 41:6 172:8 183:9 187:24	credit 19:13 38:2 209:22 210:15	D'AMICO 28:12,14,17,18,21 29:12,18 30:15,18 31:23 32:9	dangerous 30:17 116:20 127:23, 25 141:20,22 147:2 171:19 182:16 213:15 219:10 221:11 226:22
county 18:23 38:17 68:23 69:14 70:8,21 90:24 201:17 230:18	crime 106:11,12 119:17 152:24 154:13	D-A-V-I-S 67:18	Daniel 113:11 115:14,19,21 116:1,14 117:14,16,20 118:5,12,23 151:21 179:16 196:5
couple 18:7 23:18 44:19 48:16 49:2 54:14 68:4 78:24 86:2,3 115:9 230:5	crimes 158:14	D.C. 221:21 222:1,3,7,11	Danielle 38:14,15
court 11:22 28:19 32:14 38:22,23 48:18 77:6 93:3,4 98:1,2,4,6,10, 18,20 130:5 166:18 167:2 169:3,6 221:23 227:15 230:3,16 236:20 238:8 239:6	criminal 44:14 118:1 126:17 136:10 143:3 150:23 216:17 227:9	d/b/a 93:5	Daniels 115:20 116:13
court-martial 48:19	crucial 38:10	DA 182:21 209:24 210:1 211:17,25	Dash 229:18 232:2
courts 39:13 42:19 153:19,21 164:2 169:3	cruelty 148:21,25 214:10	dad's 171:23	date 64:9 68:25 98:2,6 101:8,9 102:1 122:12 134:9,12,14 139:21 207:20
cousin 107:25 108:12 157:23	cry 66:21	DAG 9:22 10:5 59:6,16 60:18 64:25 65:2,16 67:11 79:6,9 88:8 96:12,15 99:4,9,16 100:8,22 101:4,12 116:5 126:3,9,14 133:18,22 134:2 138:12 141:9 145:2,6 166:9,13 167:17,19	dates 101:24 103:9 105:20, 22 106:7 109:7,8,10, 16,19,24 110:7 111:8, 17 139:17 140:4
Cousins 88:3,4,7,8,10 89:6,10, 13 90:2	Crystal 79:11		
	Cuba 52:17		
	Cuevas 53:21,25 54:1,10,18, 25 55:6,9 60:3,4,13 113:14,17,18 115:23 119:5 129:25 130:1 133:13 135:17,19 151:25 152:3,4 157:3, 6 159:18,20 162:5,7 164:7 170:10,12		

207:3,5,7,12,17	7:15 58:19 64:1,17 74:22 75:8,9 98:14 106:10,11 204:17 255:18	degree 82:25 83:4,15,18 85:3 119:18 176:19 204:7 213:25 221:22 227:9	148:13,24 152:5,8 157:7,11 159:21 162:8,11 170:13,16 175:5 176:17 180:17 182:14 185:8,17 187:14 190:10,21 198:16 200:5,13 204:4,9,21 206:16 209:17 210:1 211:7, 16,25 213:14 215:6 219:9,11 221:10 224:23 226:21,23 236:5
dating 69:2,4 72:25	dealt 163:22	degrees 68:5	Denis 32:18 35:10
daughter 30:19 71:14	debit 209:22	delay 100:15	dental 119:6
Davis 67:13,15,17,22 68:8, 18,21,24 71:6,12 72:20,23 75:21,24 76:2,8,9,13,17,22,25 78:7,21 90:9,11,14 91:10,15 92:1	debt 38:14	delinquencies 19:11 20:17	deny 42:3 50:12,17,21 78:6 94:22 126:17 166:1 209:24
dawn 142:19	debts 38:15,19,25	deliver 162:15 164:15 187:21, 23,25 253:5	department 12:11 13:1,2 14:9 23:5 33:4 38:13,18 73:21 76:11 164:24 168:23 169:7 192:7 200:19
day 26:18 35:24 38:6 44:3 47:13 96:5 99:10,16 105:25 112:19 144:19 154:16 186:17 204:25 210:16 243:24 252:15	December 4:1 98:24 112:6,14 182:25 213:21	delivered 25:8	depends 253:16
day-to-day 61:24	decide 77:7 245:19 251:19	Demauria 129:19,20,21	Deputy 9:22
days 33:16 83:12,23 85:10, 14,15 115:7 118:1 134:10 147:5,18 148:1,7 183:5,22 219:16 222:5 227:3 230:5,9	decided 24:10 37:2,4,7 44:19 74:1 123:6 198:8	demonstrated 248:7	description 13:11
days' 236:7	decision 59:23 98:9,22 99:1 127:8 132:3 137:22 144:11 159:10 165:14 166:7 167:10,12 169:11 212:20 239:12, 16 240:13 245:22 249:15	demotion 48:25	Deshawn 213:8
DB 148:25	decisionmaking 51:22	denial 60:2 86:16 104:6 110:20 125:13 126:23 134:10 143:19 150:22 158:13 178:15 182:21 184:19 188:19 193:19 194:2,11 196:12 202:21 203:3 217:19 219:12,13 223:1	desires 5:9 246:20
dba 148:16	decisions 239:2	denials 145:15 241:7 245:5	destroy 190:14 192:19
DBADW 148:21	decline 25:12	denied 6:14,16,21,23 42:15 57:16 81:1,10 82:20 84:5 86:25 87:10 88:12,22,23 90:17,24 92:13 95:18 97:13 104:9 105:6 111:18 113:19 116:18 119:15, 25 120:2,4 121:6,23 122:22 124:7 127:22 130:2 135:20,23 139:1,5 141:18 146:25	destroying 191:8
deadly 149:1 152:6 172:8 200:6 227:16	defense 69:9 155:8		details 46:21 48:1 126:19
deaf 251:9	defensive 69:9		detained 192:20
deal	define 51:9,14		
	defraud 104:15		

detention 116:25 117:5 192:22	114:24,25 134:3,8,9, 16 139:25 140:1	104:17,21 105:1,4 109:25 113:19 116:22	120:10 126:19 130:6, 16 131:12 148:12
Detroit 117:22	141:14,16,17 146:22, 23 148:19,22 163:9, 12,13 166:5 170:3	119:24 127:23 135:20 136:10 141:25 180:17	149:2 183:2,13,15 184:1 214:6,11 216:4
dialysis 165:5	188:25 189:2,3 220:21 227:22 233:6,14,15	182:18,23 183:2,7 191:1 193:16 198:22	218:18 222:2,13 225:3 229:22 230:2,6,15
Diaz 17:25 18:3 24:15 80:23,25 82:18,19 88:9,11 97:10,12 101:22 102:6 103:25 104:4 105:11 138:21, 23 139:10,15,21	235:15 241:12 242:10, 11,15 243:19 247:11 248:3 249:17,22 250:12 253:10,11 255:10,21	199:18 206:16,20 209:17 211:15 213:20, 23 215:14,16 219:21 221:16,20 222:6,9 227:2,5,8,18,19 232:23 236:17 239:20	disorderly 92:21 176:21
Diego 88:13	disagreement 69:7	disclosing 82:3 90:17 126:17 159:4 161:18 176:6 194:18 206:3 238:24	dispo 221:24
difference 24:18	discharge 164:22 166:18	disclosure 109:11 131:4 136:20 140:12 156:4 161:9 178:16 199:9 202:20 205:19 211:22 220:5	disposition 94:7 143:4 150:11 164:9 217:3,7 219:2 230:1
difficult 22:18 212:19	discharged 162:18 164:22 213:18	discovered 30:24 54:9	disseminating 14:6
difficulty 22:16	discharging 30:16 167:22	discrepancies 38:11	distance 50:24 78:18 118:13 126:25 129:5 131:22 140:12 156:4 158:22 159:3,9 161:9 174:10 181:4 193:19 194:2,14 199:19 202:22 205:19 234:20
dig 234:13 255:16	disclose 41:5 42:6 50:24 81:9 84:4,13 88:23,25 91:2, 3,6 92:14 93:1,12,16, 23 102:2 105:5,15 110:20 112:12 113:21 117:6 120:6,14 125:14 126:24 130:8 134:22 139:5 141:19 142:14 143:19 147:1 148:11, 21 149:11,15,23 150:10,13 151:8,15 152:7 157:9 159:8,23 164:21 175:7 176:20, 22 177:4 179:2 182:16 184:6 185:10,19 186:12 190:13,24 198:17 200:8,12 204:8 210:2 213:16 215:23 217:6,20 219:18 221:12 223:2 225:11 233:12 234:3 236:16 237:2	discrepancy 207:14	distribute 222:12
digger 255:18	disclosed 48:6 81:8 83:2,5,9,13, 17,21,24 84:3,17 88:18,21 101:25	discuss 5:7 246:18	district 68:23 69:14,20 70:9, 21 75:1 76:12,15,20, 21 77:13 90:24 92:25
Dilsia 224:5		discussed 24:15,19	disturbing 170:15 200:10
dire 238:16		discussion 37:20 249:3 250:1	divorce 33:16,18 34:1
direct 14:4		discussions 54:4	Docanto 235:10,12,19 237:18, 22,24 238:4,15 239:7, 13,18,25 240:14
directions 144:4		dishonesty 71:11	docks 107:3
directly 56:8,12		dislike 155:9	doctor 70:6
director 4:5,6,8,12,15,18,22,25 5:25 6:1 7:21,22 10:13 63:6,7,25 64:16,20 67:23 73:13 79:18,19 90:13,15,16 91:7 92:9, 11,12 96:21 103:17,18 109:3,4 112:3,4		dismissed 31:2 41:9,16 88:20 92:25 113:23 119:24	document 58:21 60:17 93:2

116:12	drunken 46:7,9,25 51:10	easy 63:13	employment 12:23 27:7 60:16 72:16 125:2
documentation 40:15 42:18 162:19 164:20 254:25	due 7:1,11,25 168:22 169:2 248:22	Eats 229:19 232:2	en 103:20
documents 39:9 64:11 93:16 130:5	DUI 97:16,19 98:14 101:24 147:17,22 148:6,11 175:8 190:11 213:22	Eban 90:7 103:23	Encore 27:7
documentwise 64:4	dumped 15:24	economic 33:8	encourage 22:7 51:17,18 95:19 111:21 127:4,8 132:1, 2 154:18,22 194:13 203:14
domestic 90:23 92:24 113:22 120:25 183:4,6 200:11 206:22	Duncan 82:11,13,16,18 84:13, 15 85:1,6,12,15,21,24 86:2,8 87:12,16,25	economy 33:6	encouraged 68:2 154:8
Donald 161:24 168:8	Durango 105:22 112:6	EDAWN 12:22	end 49:4 55:25 59:22 80:21 98:23 113:5 167:7
Donovan 220:17 241:2	duties 68:1	educate 250:2	end-of-year 7:12
door 34:8 47:1 73:7 125:3 229:18 232:2	duty 45:1	effort 150:15	endeavor 51:20
double 242:16 243:1	<hr/> E <hr/>	efforts 63:18	Endeavors 26:20,21 27:20
downstairs 74:5	E-2 48:22	egos 47:19	ended 44:21 45:4 118:1 158:4 238:6 243:14
DPS 7:4,20,25 8:2 13:22 14:1	E-4 48:19	elaborate 47:11	enforce 250:1
drinking 44:20 45:23 117:23	e-mail 103:9 242:21 243:3	Elam 156:18,21,24 157:5, 15,19,23 158:15	enforcement 47:17 68:10 77:15 120:19 131:23 132:5,7 136:5,7 162:22 203:3 212:22 218:4,11,14 219:22 223:15 233:22 234:6 248:8 254:13
drive 251:20	earlier 15:24 40:2 79:5 150:9 154:16 165:11 238:22 248:3	electronic 8:4	engage 38:7
driving 83:10 98:15 122:11 148:5 251:20	early 31:3 80:19 100:13 117:17	else's 229:7	English 62:11,20 63:15
dropped 33:20 158:6	ears 251:9	Emani 92:5 112:24 144:22 145:9	enjoyed 67:24
drug 83:8 163:20	easier 159:10 163:25	emphasized 38:15	
drugs 85:20 86:4,5,7	east 43:12	employed 27:9 165:4	
drunk 130:18		employee 8:16 54:19 56:6 57:9 247:6 252:21	
		employees 8:13 40:6 41:10 56:9	

enlistment 49:5,6,14	entry 123:4	exaggerate 155:10	130:14 191:7,25
enrolled 171:2	equipment 71:10	exaggerated 155:8	explained 55:22 84:20
ensure 59:21 248:24	Ernesto 43:4 50:19	excuse 45:20 106:16 117:22 177:6 195:5	explanation 30:16 77:1 123:19 130:16
ensuring 39:5	erratic 13:23	executive 4:5,6,8,12,15,18,22,25 6:1 7:21 10:13 63:6,25 64:16,20 79:18 90:13, 15 91:7 92:9,11 96:21 103:17,18 109:3 112:3 114:24,25 134:8,16 139:25 141:14,16 146:22,23 148:19,22 163:8,12 166:4 170:3 188:25 189:2 220:21 227:21 233:5,14 235:15 241:12 242:11, 15 243:19 247:11 248:2 249:17,22 250:12 253:10 255:10, 21	explicit 46:21
entail 20:18	escape 210:16		Express 12:1,19 13:23
enter 126:7	escaped 210:1		expunge 75:6 93:3
entered 123:13,15	essence 100:15		expunged 41:17 75:3,4 150:12 186:6 218:7
Enterprises 22:22,24 25:25	evaluation 236:13		expungement 93:15
entertain 10:23 13:17 14:16 16:5 21:10 25:23 27:16 31:9 35:3 41:25 50:10 65:22 78:3 81:16 86:12 89:8 91:11 94:20 102:12 108:20 110:17 114:4 118:10 125:10 129:2 131:1 136:17 140:9 143:14 144:25 145:11 150:19 156:1 158:10 160:23 167:25 174:3 175:15 178:13 181:1 184:17 188:15 193:12 199:5 202:15 205:16 207:25 211:18 217:16 220:2 222:23 225:19 234:17 239:21 241:4 245:2	evaluations 70:9		extend 64:12 98:25
	event 44:17,18 93:6 126:18 177:24 248:4		extension 60:16,22 64:11 65:8, 17 66:11 97:24
	events 106:21	exempt 242:23	extensions 60:8
	eventually 33:20	expand 29:16 68:1	extensive 33:1 68:9 165:2 233:22
	everybody's 10:6	expense 249:10 252:11	extra 252:11
	evidence 70:15 74:3,9,25	experience 60:15 209:4	extremely 155:8 255:6
	evolving 254:12	expiration 190:19	eye 11:6 39:1
	ex-felon 183:9	expire 58:22	
	ex-fiance 229:13	expired 8:14,16 124:16 201:12 202:3	<hr/> F <hr/>
	ex-girlfriend 229:13	expires 64:10	face 69:8 77:19
	exact 54:11 68:25 101:9 207:12	explain 34:2 71:4 72:18,23 76:25 110:11,12	facing 74:8
			fact 71:18 107:17 109:24

126:23 132:4 150:15 151:7 178:4 193:16	family 152:19 153:20 157:25	felon 81:6 158:2 159:21 160:10,11,12,13 183:17 210:1,20	figured 43:23 106:23 210:25 217:9
factor 51:22 65:6	fantastic 63:17	felonies 157:10 222:17	file 167:1
factoring 60:22	fast 94:12 169:4	felony 41:6 72:22 81:1,5 82:20,24 83:3,6,14,18, 25 85:7 88:12,16 90:18 92:14 104:9,14, 22 105:2 111:19 113:20 116:19,25 117:1,5 119:15,17 120:6 130:3,4,6,21 135:20 147:1,3,10,14, 19,24 148:4,8 152:6 157:8 159:21,24 162:9,15 164:13 175:5 176:17,18,19 182:14, 17 183:12,17,21,24 187:14,16,19,20,22,24 190:11 198:16 200:5,6 204:4,5,6 206:16,17 209:18,21 210:17 213:14,18,24 214:22, 25 215:6 217:9 221:10,14 222:8 224:23 226:21 227:1,5 236:5	filed 135:7,8 167:2 213:23
fail 41:5 84:13 93:12 105:15 120:14 149:11 177:4 184:6 215:22 217:5	faster 13:2		fill 87:3,6 94:1 95:23 111:15 112:11 177:17
failed 50:24 94:13 121:1 133:16 134:22 142:14 176:20	favor 9:17 11:6 15:4 16:18 21:20 26:12 28:4 32:4 35:17 42:12 51:6 66:18 78:14 81:25 86:22 89:23 91:22 95:3,13 102:22 110:25 114:13 118:18 125:19 129:9 131:15 137:2 140:19 144:1 146:1 151:4 156:9 158:24 161:14 169:22 174:16 175:23 178:22 181:9 185:1 189:12 194:8 196:20 199:15 203:10 205:25 208:9 212:5 217:25 220:10 223:7 226:1 234:25 240:8 241:20 245:12		filled 124:8,11 127:14 216:6
failing 88:22			final 99:1
failure 42:5 71:9 92:13 110:20 125:14 126:17 141:18 143:19 145:19 146:25 182:16,24 183:1,9 213:16 217:20 221:12 223:2 227:15 233:12 236:24	FBI 207:18		finally 55:23
faint 157:19	February 25:5 72:19,20 182:17	felt 46:12 77:13	financial 20:20 21:1,5 22:4 37:16 39:5 40:6 42:5, 19
fair 85:17 143:10 177:13	Feds 108:3	female 45:6 69:2,3 72:25 77:24	find 23:21 39:21 46:25 57:5,25 61:6,10 69:17 164:21 167:8 221:22 234:13
fairness 72:13	feedback 254:6	field 24:8,19 68:15	finding 18:18
fake 70:2	feel 41:17 44:1 56:7 134:22 143:17 238:20	fight 71:1 74:9,10 152:20, 21 153:11 154:8,17 171:8	fine 57:23 92:22 101:16 128:2 141:24 183:7 219:17 227:10 232:17 239:18
fall 249:24	feeling 94:11	fighting 70:13 154:12	fined 57:23 248:19 252:1
fallen 123:8,10	fell 73:4	figure 109:10	fines 99:3 248:22
falling 250:8	fellow 44:19		fingerprint 8:2,3 12:20 64:3 117:9 135:23 138:24 164:9 186:7 202:9 206:18 207:1,9 215:3 222:18
false 149:1 187:17			fingerprinting 12:1,19 13:22 45:10
familiar 211:4			

165:6	179:24 194:25 239:2 250:7 254:5	182:9 185:13 189:5 198:12 218:23 240:10 242:1 243:9 247:12 254:3,7	future 5:10 66:24 128:14 209:2 246:4,21 254:7
fingerprints 7:5,6,10,16 10:10,15 104:5 105:24 106:3, 17,25 107:2 109:11 111:11 117:8,11 140:4 183:11 205:7,9 209:19 215:10,12 218:8 224:25 225:7 230:22 233:19 236:19 237:13	follow 58:1,9 71:9 247:22 248:13	fought 74:3,4	G
finished 164:3 202:24 214:18	follow-up 232:9	found 13:1,11,23 14:7 33:21 54:12,20 57:20 71:22 186:6 211:1 215:10,12 221:23 222:9,18 236:18	Gabbs 34:5
firearm 30:17,20 81:6 139:2 147:11 149:1 157:21 159:22 160:11 171:9, 16 172:14 183:17,25 213:18 227:2,16	fool 110:9	Frain 17:17,20 20:3 21:15	Garcia 52:1,9 66:6,11
fired 71:13 171:10	footage 71:20 72:8	frame 151:18 168:13	Gardaworld 148:16
firm 15:23	football 68:4 208:20	Francisco 33:3,4	Garrett 113:10 119:2,6,10,12 120:11,14,16,22 121:3,7,13,17 122:4,9, 11,18,20 123:2,6 124:1,5,8,19,22,24 125:1,5,8 127:12 146:10,13,16,20 149:4,11,13 150:2,7, 14,17 151:19 244:10
five-year 64:7	force 77:20 227:16	fraud 41:6	Gary 38:23
Flat 243:22	forfeit 219:18	frauds 41:8	gave 98:5,14 105:18 107:9 242:17
flee 236:11	forged 206:17	friend 57:11 69:3,4,6	GBI 152:7
Fletcher 96:23 113:7 146:7 179:13 196:2	forgery 104:23 206:23	friends 33:5 37:2 56:14 57:6,7	general 5:3 9:22 48:24 163:19 165:25 246:14 249:1
flight 30:23	forget 51:16 67:3 105:21	front 31:14 56:2 103:24 132:22 133:3 182:2 187:7 226:17	generally 98:8
floor 44:24	forgot 74:5 107:22	fugitive 183:13,14	gentleman 77:22 111:9 186:19,23 187:2 245:19
Florence 201:19	form 41:1 233:9,13	fulfilling 43:20	gentlemen 32:23 33:11 35:20 132:21 133:3 141:6 212:21
focus 24:4 249:18	formal 183:18	full 24:22 64:8 131:3 136:20 140:12 142:22 156:3 161:9 167:9 186:10 199:9 202:20 205:19 211:22 220:5	get all 240:11
folks 23:25 32:12 80:19 97:1 98:10 123:23 137:16,20 162:22	forms 41:15 150:10 233:7	fully 59:22 111:17 167:21	
	Formula 7:1 248:4 253:18		
	Fort 244:22		
	forward 6:10 11:19,22 13:4 25:12 47:25 56:3 58:12 60:20 66:23 77:3 113:1 133:9 138:6 144:16 156:19 171:11,13 179:12,25		

gigs 173:5	96:5 111:23 113:13 117:15 118:25 127:10 129:16 132:7 136:8 137:6 140:24 144:19 145:6 146:13 151:18 152:16 161:25 162:1 170:6 174:24 176:7,11 179:6 180:3,5 181:16 185:13 186:17 187:8,9 191:5 201:5,7 203:17, 21,22 206:10,11 207:21 209:5,13 211:9 213:9,10 219:5 221:4, 5 224:1,8 228:13 240:14 254:1 255:3,15	116:23 238:25 255:5, 6,18	20:1 50:20 59:13 154:11 165:9 192:4,7 210:25 244:5
Giovanni 82:9 103:15 138:17 145:9		Green 221:1,4,8 222:21 223:16,22,25 243:15	guessing 172:16
girl 34:7,9		grew 107:25	guidance 247:21
girlfriend 69:4 120:23		Gronauer 4:13,14 12:7,9 16:15 21:25 22:3 28:2 29:22 30:1,4,6,10 42:9 46:18,20 47:6 50:11, 16,23 55:4,8 76:7,10, 14,23 77:25 78:12 79:14 80:13 86:13,14 89:9,14 94:21 95:6 100:1,2 102:13 115:8 116:15 117:15 118:3, 6,11 125:17,21 128:8, 17,23 129:3 131:18 132:22 156:7 160:24, 25 161:2,3,12 162:24 169:2 174:4,5,7,8,9 181:2 191:4,7,10,18, 21,25 192:9,14,16 196:17 201:5,8,13,17, 21,24 212:12 220:8 225:24 234:18 240:4 241:18 245:10 250:15, 21 251:1,8 253:2,6	guidelines 250:8
give 30:15 39:21 48:7 56:24 71:7 78:24 115:3 116:6 137:18,20 139:16 151:14 159:4 166:25 167:7 207:16 236:24 248:11	government 59:15 104:15 108:3		guilty 214:3 222:9
giving 103:1 197:18 223:20	Governor 12:21		Gulch 121:24,25 122:3
glad 255:13	grab 171:15		gun 30:22 157:24 158:2 171:22 182:19,20
Glitter 121:24,25	Graduated 43:14		Gutierrez 82:8 103:14 138:16 145:8
Glittering 122:3	grams 84:1		guy 171:21
Global 26:21 27:20	grand 88:17 175:8 206:24 236:6 237:19		guys 62:7 67:2 98:1 106:17 127:14 171:5 197:7 209:6 224:2 226:11 235:6 252:13 255:5,23
God 196:25	grant 65:5,25 81:18 89:10 91:15,16 114:6 118:12 129:4 131:3 136:19 140:11 156:3 161:7 167:3 174:9 175:18 181:3 199:8 205:18 208:2 211:21 220:4 225:21 234:19	gross 72:22 88:19 206:23 237:16	<hr/> H <hr/>
Gonzaga 30:20	granted 27:22 128:9 167:22 173:23 199:19 226:4 238:8	ground 43:24	hair 73:5 74:20 197:24
Gonzales 174:23,25 175:3,13 176:4,7	granting 165:20	group 43:3 50:17 123:21,23 241:11 247:5,24	half 73:19
Gonzales's 175:18	great 26:18 63:19 112:19	guard 24:3,12 56:25 128:12, 20 129:12 132:2 173:14 212:19	hallway 73:25
good 4:8 15:6 16:21 26:22, 23 28:7 30:10 32:15 35:20,24 36:5 43:6 44:9 51:24 52:2 65:20 66:24 67:15,16 76:9 78:19 82:4,12,13 88:1 89:18,20 90:3 92:2,7		guards 55:19	hand 10:2,5 31:14 45:5 46:13 79:9 96:15 116:5 141:9 157:2 180:9,12 190:5 197:19,22 224:15,18 235:21,25
		guess	handcuffed

191:14	67:11 79:6,9 88:8	94:19 102:11 108:19	66:10 232:10
handcuffs	96:12,15 99:4,9,16	110:16 114:3 118:9	hitting
192:21	100:8,22 101:4,12	125:9 129:1 130:25	154:18
handgun	116:5 126:3,9,14	136:16 140:8 143:13	Hogg
221:18	133:18,22 134:2	150:18 153:1 155:25	113:8 146:8 179:14
handle	138:12 141:9 145:2,6	158:9 160:22 174:2	196:3
62:11 254:1	157:2 166:9,13	175:14 178:12 180:25	hold
handled	167:17,19 168:12,18	188:15 193:11 199:4	22:10 127:3 142:4
239:11	179:19 180:12 181:23	202:14 205:15 207:24	179:12 233:16
handout	190:5 195:3,10,21,25	217:15 222:22 225:18	
242:17	197:15,17,22 198:5,8	236:23	home
hands	212:14 224:14,18	hearings	34:6
74:16 172:5,14	235:22,25 240:19,22	253:25	homeless
hang	242:2,9,14,19 243:6,	heavily	208:18
115:22 132:19 134:6	21 244:8,25 245:21	45:7,19 46:5	hometown
212:9 216:10	255:25	held	36:15
happen	Harvey	7:2 47:17 49:6	honest
59:14 143:4,6 214:7	90:8 112:21 140:25	hell	39:3 75:13 124:1
happened	141:3,11,12 142:8,11,	204:16	160:17
44:15 47:15 48:10,13	12,15,23 143:6,9,12,	hey	honesty
70:7 73:23 78:19 98:2	17 144:12,17	56:15 74:10 172:2	184:11
109:20 117:21 120:25	hassle	248:24	honorable
154:15 178:5 210:9	12:14	hide	51:20
228:15 230:7 238:13	Hate	149:17	hood
254:22	202:16	high	142:5
happening	head	43:14 208:21	hope
248:17	99:12	high-quality	44:3 95:25 119:7
happier	Health	33:8	223:23
185:14	208:16	higher	hoping
happily	healthy	47:17 252:9	253:20
117:25	249:10	highly	hospital
Harbor	hear	47:14 127:8	68:13 73:14,18
36:16,17	22:18 95:9 116:11	hire	host
hard	135:12 153:22 172:4	173:14	68:14
144:7 209:8	177:9 197:5	history	hot
harm	heard	42:6 68:9 70:14 93:2,	196:25
76:19 116:23 190:12	76:23 134:21 162:23	13 109:6 112:9 117:18	hotel
Harold	163:5,6 193:21	126:18 134:23 136:11	30:21
244:19	hearing	143:3 150:23 216:18	hours
Harris	5:19,22 8:24 9:5 10:22	233:22 234:4	183:5 219:17
9:22,23 10:5 59:6,16	16:4 21:9 22:16 25:22	hit	house
60:18 64:25 65:2,16	27:15 31:8 35:2 41:24	43:24	29:18 34:13 128:14
	50:9 65:21 70:17,19,	hits	
	23 76:5 78:2 81:15		
	86:11 89:7 91:11		

152:19 154:17 171:23	implementing 13:4	individual 14:22 21:13 26:3 35:7 46:11,15 50:19 67:13 78:7 109:23 166:15, 17,19 233:24	191:8
hunt 33:17	import 159:24	individuals 13:9 55:18 64:8 145:5 167:5 171:7,14,23 172:3 180:1 196:14 204:24 233:20 244:5 249:19 250:2	injury 88:21 214:10 227:17
Hunter 151:22,24 152:2,13,18 153:4,18,25 154:2,4,5, 9,24 155:7,16,24 156:14	impression 149:15,22 150:1	industry 22:8 23:8 24:5 249:9 251:10 254:3	input 172:22
husband 60:5	imprisonment 187:18	infantry 43:12	inputted 207:8
hypnotist 173:11	inappropriate 251:17	inflict 88:20 214:9	inquiries 38:12
Hyreacar 229:18 231:24	incidences 114:16 218:4	influx 6:25 7:11	inside 45:6 171:15 229:14
Hyrecars 232:1,3	incident 44:12 45:17 70:7 152:17,18 159:3,9 170:22 171:24 173:20 194:15 202:25 210:8 211:24 214:7 234:5	inform 252:1	Instahire 11:16 12:2 13:4 14:20
I	incidents 237:15	information 22:13 47:25 107:7 109:23 121:20 151:15 159:8 166:3 167:9,14 185:7 223:20 228:6 230:7 236:24 240:13 255:3,17	institute 119:19
ID 125:3 149:1	incline 248:13	infractions 248:21	instructed 96:23
idea 100:10 145:6 150:1 217:8,9	inclined 60:20 65:2,5 99:5,25	Inglewood 139:3	instructions 142:22
identify 67:9	include 87:10 157:10 159:24 170:15 190:13 198:18	initial 34:24 194:14	instructors 44:19
identity 38:4 198:17	included 113:22 166:13 254:9, 13	initially 185:8	instrument 206:18
II 83:8	including 9:24 175:7 200:9	injure 190:14 192:19 236:21 237:16	insubordination 71:8
III 83:8 188:2,20	illegal 60:21	injuries 69:16,20 70:5 119:22	insurance 83:23 85:11
illegal 116:19 127:22 141:19 147:1 182:15 213:15 219:9 221:10 226:21	Incorporated 28:11 31:17	injuring	integrity 39:6 76:18
Illinois 82:21	Indiana 36:19 38:12		intend 9:25 19:19
immigration 64:2 65:8,18 66:12	indiscernible 8:20,22 74:8 90:23 108:5,7,10 117:25 139:18		intent 24:17 92:14 116:23 164:15 222:12 236:11
Impeccable 70:9			intention 24:16 32:24 245:17,24 250:6
			intentions 12:17 15:18 17:14 23:3 27:3 36:9 43:9,10 49:16 52:3 67:20

253:15	90:12,13 97:10,12	64:18 73:10 165:22,25	246:4
interaction	101:21 102:6 103:25	223:13 239:1	
132:8	104:4 105:11 108:23		<hr/> J <hr/>
interactions	113:14,17 115:23	issued	Jackson
218:11,14 219:21	116:7,17,18 117:12	8:12,18,20 53:23 54:2	113:9 146:9 179:15
223:14	119:5,11,13 120:8	236:21	196:4
intercourse	121:19,22 122:24	issues	jail
73:2,9 74:17	123:3,11 125:8 127:21	14:11 18:14 19:22	83:12,24 85:10,14,16
interested	129:23,25 133:13	37:16 42:5 57:17 59:2	90:21 147:5,8,18,23
23:19 68:3	135:17,19 138:21,23	73:25	148:1,7 183:18,22
interesting	139:15,20,21 141:14	issuing	201:18 214:4 219:16
214:18	146:21 148:18 151:25	247:13	221:19 222:5 227:3
internet	152:3 157:3,6 159:18,	item	230:4,10,11 236:7
216:20	20 162:7 164:7	5:23,24 11:16 15:9	January
interrupt	170:10,12 175:1,4	16:24 22:21 26:20	61:5,9 102:3 130:15
31:12 167:20	176:14,16 180:14,16	28:10 32:10 36:1 43:2	213:24 221:17 222:1
interview	182:10,12 187:10,13	51:25 59:20 60:23	236:23 238:8 239:6,7
34:9	188:10 190:6,9,25	67:12 79:11,20,21,25	253:16
intimate	195:8,12,20 198:13,15	80:5,7,9,11 82:7,9,11	Jason
74:11,19 77:21	200:2,4,18,24 201:2	88:3 90:5,7,8,9 92:3,5,	88:3 89:10
intoxicated	202:6,8 204:1,3 205:5,	6 96:22 97:4,6 99:6	jealousy
45:7,19 46:6 47:12,14,	8 206:12,15 207:6	101:7 103:13,14,15,	69:5
21 193:7	209:14,16 213:11,13	16,19,23 112:20,22,24	Jeopardy
introduce	214:8,16,20,24 215:8,	113:7,8,9,10,11,12	114:22
36:7	11,15 219:8,23 221:7,	115:12 119:4,9 138:7,	Jerry
investigate	9 222:19 224:19,22	14,15,17,18 140:25	90:8 112:20 140:25
127:19 182:13 219:6	225:12,14 226:20	141:11 144:20,22	141:11
226:18 249:23	230:19,22 232:8,14,24	146:7,8,9,10 151:21,	Jesse
investigation	233:18 234:12 236:1,4	22 156:16,18 159:12,	113:10 146:10 255:12
38:1 44:14 45:11,12	237:6,12	13,14 161:24 166:23	jirka
49:7 54:12	investigator's	170:4 174:22 176:10	227:12
investigations	14:21	179:13,14,15,16,17,21	job
8:9 36:21 39:1	investigators	180:6 181:18,20,22,25	71:1,16,23 72:12
investigator	255:12	182:6 189:19 194:22,	155:17 207:17,21
6:7,11 7:8 8:8 13:20	investment	23 195:17 196:2,8	238:25 255:5,7,15,18
14:3,7 17:25 18:3	19:14 247:17	197:18 198:3,6,9,11	jobs
34:18,21 37:15,19	involved	199:24,25 203:19	209:5
40:14,23,24 41:3 48:5,	34:12 38:4 61:24	206:7,9 209:10 213:8	Joe
7 49:18,25 50:2 53:21,	85:22 152:22	219:1,3 220:17,18,19	28:21
25 54:10,18,25 55:6,9	involves	240:25 241:2,13 242:4	Johnson
60:3,13 68:11,12	100:11	244:13,15,17,22	90:5 103:16,19
80:23,25 82:17,19	IRS	245:6,16 246:3,6,13	138:18,19,22 139:13,
84:19 87:23 88:9,11	38:9	items	18 161:24 162:1,3,6,
	issue	10:1,9,18,25 11:9 38:2	
	7:4,7 13:10 22:17	42:19 96:18 111:6,18	
	30:16 59:22 63:10,23	113:4 138:2,3 144:25	
		145:15 195:4,5 240:25	
		241:8,22 245:2,15,21	

17 164:14 166:12 167:13 168:1,2,3,22 169:7,12	234:7 236:16	Kinsey 36:1,3,10,11,20 42:4	Latino-focused 52:22
Johnson's 168:8 169:15	K	kit 74:2	Latinos 62:14
Jonathan 244:22	K-E-T-C-H-A 32:21	Klaus 52:1 53:12,16 61:18, 20 66:2	Latrell 244:17
Jones 129:19,21,24 130:11, 17 132:11 244:15,19	K-I-N-S-E-Y 36:11	knew 47:1 106:2,17	law 15:23 24:9 47:17 68:9 77:15 120:19 131:23 132:4,6 136:5,6 150:3 152:22 162:22 185:11, 25 203:3 212:21 218:4,11,14 219:21 223:15 233:22 234:6 248:7 251:19 254:13
Joseph 28:12 31:23 38:21	K-L-A-U-S 53:13	knowing 63:21 239:19	Lawrence 181:25 187:3,9,12 188:7,14 189:18 219:3,7
Jr 26:6	Kamiaha 195:18 209:11	Kudos 89:11	laws 58:1 242:23 248:13
judgment 37:25 38:22,23	Ke'ena 206:8 241:2	L	lawyer 42:18 77:11 93:15
judgments 18:2	Ketcham 32:20 35:11	lace 32:16	lead 27:8 252:4
July 6:4 139:22 183:16,24 201:23 219:11 221:17 236:6	Kevin 34:10	lady 75:10 105:20 110:6 164:20 216:2	leading 38:3
juncture 59:20	Kevontay 151:22	landlord-tenant 15:21	learn 144:7 193:24
June 44:12 88:23 97:18 99:19 100:11,19 101:7 102:15 103:5 166:25 167:25 168:17,19,21 183:8 186:9 227:1,11 236:10	key 44:22 46:25 47:1	lands 251:9	learned 31:4 158:15
jurisdiction 227:7 228:22,24 230:24 231:1	keys 74:5,7	language 63:10	learning 43:22
Justice 236:20	kicked 191:15,19 192:22	Lansing 165:1,15	leave 11:12 70:12 72:2 73:12 74:12,21 75:10 124:7 192:4
justify 19:8	kidnapping 171:12	large 8:1	leaves 226:12
Justine 28:12,24 31:23	kids 29:19 33:18 154:8 208:21	Las 12:4 20:3 30:23 37:2 43:14,21 107:13 108:8 148:12 171:25 172:1 173:9 192:6 229:11	led 38:17 41:8 238:18
juvenile 227:13,15,18,20,22 228:4 233:10,16,23	Kimbrough 213:8,9,12 214:13,17 215:22,24 216:2,9,12, 24 217:8 218:21,24	late 133:16,18	leeway 248:10
	kind 20:20 23:17 40:15 44:25 55:12,24 56:18, 24 59:10,11 67:7 78:24 102:25 120:19 132:20 136:5 148:20 178:6 193:22,23 207:3 208:24 216:23	Latin 56:13	
		Latino 53:1,5	

<p>left 36:14 45:8 71:21 73:7 74:21 115:13 171:20 229:11 235:17 244:13 253:12</p> <p>legal 25:14 60:14 166:20,21</p> <p>legally 60:14</p> <p>lengthy 66:14</p> <p>lesser 103:3</p> <p>lesson 31:4 144:7 158:15</p> <p>letter 81:10 84:6 89:1 105:7 139:6</p> <p>level 44:3 233:23</p> <p>lewdness 72:22</p> <p>liabilities 38:10</p> <p>license 11:17,24 12:17 14:21, 22 15:19 16:8,12,13 17:14 20:14 21:13,14, 16 22:11 23:3,7,10,11, 21,23,25 24:1,14 26:2, 3,4 27:4,21,22 31:18, 19 32:24 35:6,8 36:9 37:9 40:3 42:3 43:10 47:21 50:14,18,20 52:25 53:23 54:6,24 55:5,7,8,9 58:10 66:2, 3 67:14,21 78:7 93:6 106:25 122:12 148:6 248:20</p> <p>licensed 14:3 36:21,22 54:21 57:8 142:2</p> <p>licensee 37:10</p>	<p>licenses 7:18 24:18</p> <p>licensing 14:18 95:23 111:12</p> <p>licensure 6:13</p> <p>lied 69:14</p> <p>liens 37:25</p> <p>lieutenant 23:5,17</p> <p>life 69:11 155:13 162:14 177:16 204:23</p> <p>lifetime 162:24 163:10,18,20 164:10,11,17,18 166:11,22 168:11 188:3</p> <p>limit 98:16</p> <p>limited 5:11 246:22</p> <p>list 19:23 34:24 94:8 115:11 120:3 135:21 143:2 144:15 148:13, 23 151:14 163:19 170:14 178:2,7 179:23 185:23 186:4 216:7,16 218:6,10,13,16,18 222:16,17 223:17,20</p> <p>listed 34:20,22,23 37:17 49:20 50:1 87:2 109:19 120:24 135:22 162:8 185:12 187:14 198:16 204:4 209:17 221:23,24 224:23 225:1 232:15 237:2</p> <p>listing 111:6 114:16 233:9</p>	<p>listings 137:23</p> <p>lists 121:22</p> <p>literally 252:15</p> <p>live 8:4 37:3 106:13 108:15 117:25</p> <p>lived 120:20</p> <p>LLC 11:16 12:2 13:5 14:20 15:10 16:8 22:22,24 26:21 27:10,20 32:11 36:2 42:4 43:3 50:13, 17 66:1 148:16</p> <p>loaded 227:2</p> <p>local 38:8 68:4</p> <p>locally 7:24</p> <p>located 45:1</p> <p>location 103:21</p> <p>long 30:1 44:17 54:8,14 85:25 87:4 118:1 127:5 144:7 168:23 185:10 194:15 233:25 252:20</p> <p>longer 165:7</p> <p>Lopez 133:7,11,15,19,25 134:24 135:2,7,12,14, 18 136:4,8,12,15,21 224:5</p> <p>Lora 51:25 52:1,9 53:22 54:24 58:25 59:4 61:4</p>	<p>62:9 63:8 65:25 66:6, 11</p> <p>Los 81:3</p> <p>lot 18:19 22:16 44:1 52:17,19 56:2 58:19 64:1,5 82:3 85:19 106:2 153:2 250:4</p> <p>love 72:23 254:9</p> <p>low 77:2</p> <p>lowered 172:9</p> <p>luck 15:7 16:21 28:7 35:20 51:24 78:19 82:4 87:9 88:1 90:4 92:2 111:23 118:25 127:10 129:17 137:6 140:24 151:18 169:25 179:6 181:17 186:18 203:17 224:1</p> <p>lumped 123:21</p> <p>lunch 71:13,17,19,24 72:7,9, 14</p> <p>lying 69:17</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">M</p> <hr/> <p>M-O-K-O-F-I-S-I 17:9</p> <p>M-Y-R-O-N 67:18</p> <p>machete 158:6</p> <p>mad 74:13 155:12</p> <p>Madam 4:3,10,11 5:2,19 6:2,8</p>
--	---	---	--

<p>7:3,16 8:5,23 9:10,16, 19 10:6,14 11:1,5,8,15 12:6,7,8,15 13:7,14,18 14:13 15:3,6,9,12,17 16:2,17,20,24 17:1,3, 10,12,22 18:11,24 19:2,10,16,19,24 20:5, 9,12,21,23 21:8,19,24 22:1,5,14,19,25 23:12 24:24 25:3,15,20 26:7, 11,14,19,24 27:2,13, 25 28:3,6,9,15,18 29:5,7,10,17,20 30:11 31:1,6 32:3,6,10,22 33:10 34:16,25 35:12, 16,19,25 36:5,7 37:8, 12 39:11,16,22 40:5, 19,21 41:14,22 42:7, 11,14 43:1,6,8 44:4 46:1 48:3,9,15 49:4,8, 12,15,21 50:6,15,22 51:1,5,8,24 52:8,10 53:6,9,14,17 54:16,23 55:2 56:5 57:2,7 58:13 60:25 61:3,12,22 62:2, 5,18,23,25 63:5,14,25 64:13,23,25 65:1,10, 15,19 66:13,17,20 67:1,6,16,19 68:16 75:15,22,25 76:3 78:1, 10,13,16,23 79:2,10, 16,23 80:6,17 81:13, 20,24 82:2,7,14,17 84:9 85:18,22,25 86:6, 9,17,21,24 87:14,20 88:1,5,9 89:4,20,25 90:3,12 91:5,9,17,21, 24 92:2,9 93:8,21 94:17,24 95:2,7,8,10, 15 96:4,6,8,16,24 97:8,23 98:3,7,12,17, 21 99:8,18,24 100:20 101:2,10,14,17 102:9, 17,21,24 103:5,7,10, 13,17,22 104:3 105:10 106:24 107:5,19 108:17,21 110:10,21, 24 111:2,14 112:1,16, 18 113:14 114:1,8,12, 15,18 115:10,17,20,</p>	<p>22,24 116:2,6,9,13 117:10,13 118:7,14, 17,20,24 119:3,8 120:5,9 122:6,10,15, 19,22 123:8,17 124:3, 6,14,21 125:7,15,18, 24 126:2,4,21 127:13, 18 128:3,7,24 129:8, 11,16,20,22 130:10,23 131:5,14,19,24 132:12,15,18 133:8, 12,20 134:6,15,18 135:5,8,13,16 136:1, 14,22 137:1,4,8,12 138:1,14,20 139:9,13 140:7,13,18,21 141:4, 10,13 142:7 143:11, 20,25 144:3,13,18 145:3,7,17,21,25 146:3,11,14,18,21 148:18 149:3 150:16, 25 151:3,6,20,25 152:12 153:15,23 154:1,3,21 155:15,23 156:5,8,11,15,22 157:3,14,22 158:7,17, 23 159:1,17 160:4,20 161:10,13,16,23 162:2,4,21 163:1 164:5,11 165:9 167:4, 15,18,24 168:3 169:9, 17,21,24 170:4,9,18 172:16 173:2,8,15,25 174:11,15,18,22 175:1,12,19,22,25 176:5,9,14,25 178:10, 17,21,24 179:6,20 180:6,13,22 181:5,8, 11,24 182:5,8 184:2, 12,16,21,25 185:3,18, 22 186:11,15,17,24 187:1,4,7,10 188:6,13, 21 189:11,14,19,22,25 190:6,23 191:2 193:10 194:3,7,10,21 195:6, 15,23 196:1,15,19,22 197:3,7,10,23 198:1,6, 9,24 199:2,10,14,17, 23 200:15,22,25 201:3 202:5,12 203:5,9,12,</p>	<p>19,22,25 204:10 205:1,13,20,24 206:2, 7,12 207:3,10,21 208:4,8,11 209:7,10, 13 210:4 211:12 212:1,4,9,16,25 213:5, 7,10 214:5,12 215:5,9, 13,17 217:13,21,24 218:2,22,25 219:5,20, 24 220:6,9,12,16,23 221:2,5 222:15,20 223:3,6,9,17,23 224:1, 7,9,12,19 225:10,13, 16,22,25 226:3,7,10, 16 227:21 228:1,8 230:19 232:6,12,22 233:2,4 234:14,21,24 235:2,7,13,16,20 236:1 237:1,7,25 238:13,20 239:8,14,19 240:2,7,10,15,24 241:10,13,16,19,22 242:2,5 243:2,7,14,17, 22 244:2,4,9,12 245:1, 8,11,14 246:12 249:1, 12 250:10,13 251:13 252:24 253:4,8 254:18 255:23</p> <p>made 40:17 51:21 58:8 73:12 76:18 81:11 84:7 89:2 93:4 105:8 113:24 117:5 130:8 135:24 139:7 142:1 148:14 157:12 160:2 162:12 170:16 175:10 176:23 180:20 188:4 198:23 200:13 242:25 247:9</p> <p>magicians 173:12</p> <p>mail 115:5 168:25</p> <p>mailed 165:2</p> <p>main 60:1 109:11 173:6</p>	<p>208:15,19 247:20 248:9</p> <p>maintain 36:25 39:2</p> <p>maintained 27:7</p> <p>major 84:18</p> <p>majority 150:24</p> <p>make 5:4 25:13 30:7 37:9 40:7 42:17,20,21 51:10 53:9 56:4 61:13 62:19 63:15,20,24 66:21 75:17 87:3 93:21 98:8,9,21 99:21 102:14 127:8 129:4 132:3,5 134:20,25 137:22 138:3,10 143:2 144:5 145:5 150:15 159:7 167:1,9,12 169:10 173:6 174:8 179:2 208:25 209:3 212:20 215:17 218:13 223:13 234:3 239:2, 11,15 240:13 243:2 245:22 246:14 249:7, 13,15,18,19 250:3,7, 17 252:10</p> <p>makes 56:21 59:23 69:15 174:9 208:24</p> <p>making 62:7 168:24 247:13</p> <p>malicious 24:16</p> <p>man 32:21 76:17 189:18</p> <p>manager 61:25 68:13 71:16</p> <p>Mangana 43:2 50:17</p> <p>Mangial</p>
--	---	---	--

195:19 209:11,12	150:9	7:24 153:11 209:18	22,23 84:11,23 85:2,8, 13,17 86:13,15,19
Manning	Marksman	mechanism	89:9,14,16 91:13,19
253:16	71:4,6,13,15	69:9	93:10,25 94:3,5,11,15, 21 95:1,5,6,8 96:6
manufacture	married	medication	99:13,14 100:1,3
127:25 141:22 162:15	29:18 62:1	238:16	101:19 102:7,13,19
187:20,22,25	marshall	meet	105:13,14 108:5,7,10, 21,22 109:13 110:3, 18,23 114:5,10 115:8, 9 116:9,10,15,16
Manzo	45:9 181:18 189:20	55:11	117:15 118:3,6,11,16
53:25 54:1,10,18,25	marshals	meeting	120:12,18 121:1,5,11, 14,19,25 124:22,23
55:6,9 60:3,4,13	172:24	4:4 5:8 9:1,9 11:13	125:4,6,11,17,21,22, 23 126:1,6,12,15
113:15,17,18 115:23	martials	99:6,10,14,19 100:11, 12,19 101:7,9 102:16	128:8,17,23 129:3,6
119:5 129:25 130:1	48:18	112:8,13 168:16,18,19	130:12,22 131:2,8,12, 16,17,18,21,22
133:13 135:17,19	Martin	169:16 239:8 240:1	132:13,16 133:5
152:1,3,4 157:4,6	80:11,12,13,15,22,24	242:21 246:20 247:9	134:4,18,25 136:2,9, 13,18,24 137:10
159:18,20 162:5,7	81:14 82:2,6	249:2 254:23 255:24	139:11,14,19,23
164:7 170:10,12	Martin's	meetings	140:5,10,15 142:9,13, 21,24 143:7,10,15,22
175:2,4 176:15,16	81:19	9:2	145:3,12,14,19,23
180:14,16 187:11,13	Mary	Megan	149:5,6,8,9,25 150:4, 8,20 151:2 152:14
188:10 190:7,9,25	75:4	52:5 65:13,16	153:1,13 154:5,6
195:8,12,20 198:13,15	Maryland	member	155:2,3,14 156:2,7
200:2,4,18,24 201:2	221:13,18	4:12,14,15,17,18,20, 23,24 5:17 9:7,12	157:25 158:11,19
202:6,8 204:1,3 205:5, 8 206:13,15 207:6	massive	10:24 11:3,14 12:7,9	160:7,14,18,24 161:1, 3,5,12 162:24 163:3
209:14,16	6:25 7:11 250:6	13:18,19 14:12,17	168:5,15,20 169:2,14, 19 170:20 171:1
March	match	15:1 16:6,11,14,15,25	172:11 173:17,18,24
58:22 59:11,14 97:22	140:4 207:4	17:24 18:10,12 20:10, 22 21:7,11,17,22,23,	174:4,6,8,13 175:16, 21 177:2,9,13,17,23
98:6,20 99:8,9,10,11, 14,15 101:8 127:23	matter	25 22:3,14,15,16	178:14,19 180:3
134:1 135:4 147:13	107:17 126:20 144:6	23:14 24:23 25:24	181:2,7 184:4,10,18, 23 187:6 188:17,23
148:3,4 164:23 166:5, 25 168:19,21 169:9, 16,25 219:13 222:7	167:21 168:24 184:8	26:5,9 27:17,24 28:2	189:7,9 191:4,7,10,18, 21,25 192:9,14,16,17, 25 193:2,6,9,13 194:5
227:8 239:9,10 240:1, 11	186:4 218:6,8	29:22 30:1,4,6,10,13	196:10,17 197:6,9,25
Margie	matters	31:5,10,11,13,15 32:1	199:6,12 201:5,8,13, 17,21,24,25 202:1,4, 16,17 203:7 204:12
113:9 146:9 179:15	5:4,5,7,8,9 39:8	33:12,22,24 34:14	205:3,12,17,22 208:1, 6 210:6,7,11,14 211:3,
196:4	246:15,16,18,20,21	35:4,14 37:14 40:11, 20,22,24 41:2,15 42:1, 9 44:7,11 45:16,21	
Maricopa	Mcclure	46:9,14,17,18,20 47:6, 9 49:23 50:3,11,16,23	
18:17,23	201:19	51:3 52:13 53:19 54:7	
marijuana	Mccormick	55:4,8 58:15,16 59:1, 4,5,24,25 60:12 61:5, 15,21 64:15,22 65:23	
82:25 86:3,8 222:13	12:22	66:5,15 67:3 68:19,20	
Marin	Mcdaniel	71:3,7 72:17,21 76:7, 10,14,23 77:25 78:4, 12 79:14 80:3,4 81:17,	
38:17	92:6,8 93:9,12,14,24		
Marine	94:2,4,9,14,16 96:3		
43:11 44:16 51:11	Mcdaniels		
marked	94:22		
	means		

9,20 212:3,7,11,12,13 214:14 215:1,20 216:1,5,10,13 217:2, 11,17,23 220:3,8 222:24 223:5 225:20, 24 226:15 227:24 228:2,10,14,19 229:3, 8,25 230:9 231:2,5,8, 16,20 232:16,19 233:4,5 234:9,11,18, 23 235:9,11 237:9,18, 23 239:22 240:4,5,20, 23 241:6,15,18 243:16,20 244:2,11 245:3,10 250:15,21 251:1,8,15 252:6 253:2,6 255:8	messages 74:2	196:25 246:23	misunderstanding 41:9 151:9
members 5:3 9:18 11:7 14:19,24 15:5 16:19 26:13 28:5 32:5 35:10,18 42:13 51:7 66:19 78:15 82:1 86:23 89:24 91:23 95:14 102:23 111:1 114:14 118:19 129:10 137:3 140:20 144:2 146:2 151:5 153:20 156:10 158:25 161:15 169:23 174:17 175:24 178:23 181:10 185:2 189:13 194:9 196:21 199:16 203:11 206:1 208:10 218:1 220:11 223:8 226:2 235:1 240:9 241:21 245:13 246:14 247:12	met 30:4 39:6	miscategorized 123:23	misunderstood 41:21 253:24
memory 157:19	methamphetamine 84:2 198:19,21	miscommunication 14:1	misuse 71:10
men 77:8 119:19	Metro 29:6,24 74:1 123:12 249:15	miscommunications 25:7	mixture 83:1
mental 236:13	Metropolitan 171:3	misdemeanor 72:22 75:2 83:10,22 88:19 92:20,23 97:13 104:18 113:22 119:23 127:24 130:20 139:1 141:21 142:18 147:17, 23 157:10 159:25 162:10 170:15 175:8 176:20 180:17 182:23 183:3,8 190:14,16 198:18 200:9,10,11 206:23,24 213:22 214:3 219:14 221:18, 22 222:2,4,12 227:9, 12,15 236:11,21 237:17	mixup 38:1
mentioned 237:5 238:5,7	Michael 82:11 235:10 239:25	misheard 214:23	Mokofisi 16:25 17:1,2,6,8,11,15 18:4,7,13,15 19:1,4, 13,18,21 20:4,8 21:12
mentor 208:20	Michigan 36:12,13,16 37:3 116:22 117:1,4 163:22 164:1,16 169:7,8	misread 177:19	moment 4:21 55:21 57:19 75:4 114:20
	Michigan's 163:17	missed 17:8 70:5,22,24 143:7 205:6 214:21	Monday 37:20 171:4 172:2 188:11
	microphone 22:17 95:11	missing 52:23 101:23	monetary 247:17
	middle 17:7	mission 52:25 58:9	money 71:15 153:8 173:6
	miles 45:2 98:15	Mississippi 104:11	Monica 11:25 14:24
	military 33:1 36:13,15 45:1 48:16,17 51:11	mistake 24:21	month 73:19 188:12
	Miller 176:10,13 177:1,4,6, 11,15,19 178:9,11 179:5	mistaken 38:4	months 19:12 20:17 25:9 49:2, 3 54:15 73:22 83:1,16, 20 84:2 85:4 104:24 105:4 107:10 115:8 147:8,11,23 158:16 183:6,18 200:19 201:9 253:18
	mind 122:4 163:16	mistakes 51:10,21 56:4 58:12 76:18	months' 7:9 81:4,7 83:8 117:2 128:1 183:22 227:10 236:15
	mine 38:6 45:5		morning 4:8 26:22,23 31:3 32:15,17 36:5,6 43:6,7
	Minnesota 92:15,17		
	minute 48:8		
	minutes 5:12 9:8 137:11 180:2		

44:9,10 45:8 46:18,19 52:2 67:15,16 73:1 76:8,9 82:12,13 90:10, 11 92:7,8 117:15 146:13,14 170:6	15,17,21 181:1,3,6,8 184:17,22,24 185:1 188:16,22 189:10,11 193:12,18 194:3,7,10 196:20 199:5,8,11,14 202:15,19,21 203:2,5, 9 205:16,20,23,25 206:2 207:25 208:4,8, 11 211:19,21 212:1,4, 14,15,18 217:16,22,24 220:2,7,9 222:23 223:4,6 225:19,22,25 234:17,19,22,24 235:2 239:21,24 240:3,7 241:5,16,19 245:2,5,8, 11	multiple 54:4 55:22 64:6	nay 212:11
Moser 181:18,19 189:20,21, 24 190:2,8 191:3,5,6, 9,11,20,23 192:2,12, 15,18,23 193:1,4,8,15 194:20	motioning 31:14 168:15,20 169:15 194:1 196:12 208:2 220:4 225:21 241:7	murder 116:24 204:6,15	NCIS 45:10
mother 152:19 154:16 155:11 229:12	motorcycle 171:6,15,22	muster 47:7	NCO 45:15
motion 9:6,10,13,16,19 10:23, 25 11:1,5,8 13:17 14:16 15:2,3,6 16:5,7, 17,20 21:10,18,19 22:6,12 25:23 26:7,11, 15 27:16,19,25 28:3,6 31:9 32:2,3 35:3,12, 15,16,19 41:25 42:7, 11 50:10,12 51:2,5 60:21 65:3,5,22,25 66:14,17 78:3,10,13 81:16,18,20,24 86:12, 17,21 89:8,17,22 91:12,15,18,21 94:20, 22,25 95:2,12,15 102:12,14,17,20,21 108:20 110:17,19,21, 25 111:2 114:4,6,9,12 118:10,14,17,20 125:10,16,18 129:2,4, 7,9,11 131:1,5,7,13, 15,25 136:17,19,22 137:1,4 138:10 140:9, 13,17,18,21 143:14, 20,24,25 144:25 145:11,18,21,24,25 146:3 150:19,21,25 151:3 156:1,6,8,11 158:10,17,23 160:23 161:10,13,16 167:25 168:7,13 169:18,22 174:3,9,11,15 175:15, 18,20,23,25 178:13,	mouth 56:19	mutual 69:23 130:18,19	necessarily 238:10 247:18 248:21
	move 5:23 6:6,10 8:25 9:6,8, 20 11:22 14:18 21:12 31:15,22 35:5 42:3 52:14 56:3 60:20 78:6 86:16 113:1 117:24 125:13 128:15 131:3 137:23 138:6 140:11 143:18 144:16 145:15 156:3 158:13 161:7 179:12,25 184:19 188:19 196:24 198:2 205:18 217:19 223:1 242:1 243:9	mutually 132:6	needed 23:23 39:10 216:25
	moved 36:15,19 43:14 122:21 171:14 189:5	Myron 67:12,17 71:23 77:12 78:6	needles 137:7
	moving 23:9 24:11 33:3 58:12 61:11 77:2 87:17 106:22 171:11,13	<hr/> N <hr/>	negative 66:9 98:9
		N-G-O 32:16	negligence 71:8
		NACS 253:13	neighbors 171:20
		name-based 12:23 13:5	nervous 210:23
		named 34:10 38:14	Nevada 13:2,22 14:9 17:17 22:8 29:16 32:11 33:3, 7 35:5 50:12 67:23 75:19 77:2,7 90:23 92:23 150:6 173:9 182:17,22,25 183:3,8, 12,14 208:16 219:14 227:25 228:4 229:12 231:20,22 236:14 247:2 253:13
		names 18:19 28:19 39:12 97:2 244:5	Nevadans 13:3,6
		Nancy 12:22	news 202:17
		narcotic 83:19 160:1	Ngo 32:15,16,25 35:7,10, 22
		narcotics 85:4 147:7 163:7 183:21	nice 143:1 161:21 216:15
		nationwide 17:19	nicer 75:11 161:3
		naturally 69:11	
		nature 238:11 247:10	
		naval 44:13,14	

<p>Nickleberry 220:18 226:13,14,19 228:9,13,16,23 229:5, 10,17 230:4,11,25 231:4,7,13,18,22 232:1,18,21 234:15 235:5</p> <p>Nickleberry's 234:20</p> <p>night 57:4 73:20 74:18 176:8</p> <p>nightclub 69:1 70:7</p> <p>nightlife 27:6,8</p> <p>Nixon 4:3,10,11 5:2,19 6:8 7:3,16 8:5,23 9:10,16, 19 10:6,14 11:1,5,8,15 12:6,8,15 13:7,14 14:13 15:3,6,9,12,17 16:2,17,20,24 17:1,3, 10,12,22 18:11,24 19:2,10,16,19,24 20:5, 9,21,23 21:8,19,24 22:1,5,19,25 23:12 24:24 25:3,15,20 26:7, 11,14,19,24 27:2,13, 25 28:3,6,9,15,18 29:5,7,10,17,20 30:11 31:1,6 32:3,6,10,22 33:10 34:16,25 35:12, 16,19,25 36:5,7 37:8, 12 39:11,16,22 40:5, 19,21 41:14,22 42:7, 11,14 43:1,6,8 44:4 46:1 48:3,9,15 49:4,8, 12,15,21 50:6,15,22 51:1,5,8,24 52:8,10 53:6,9,14,17 54:16,23 55:2 56:5 57:2,7 58:13 60:25 61:3,12,22 62:2, 5,18,23,25 63:5,14 64:13,23 65:1,10,15, 19 66:13,17,20 67:1,6, 16,19 68:16 75:15,22,</p>	<p>25 76:3 78:1,10,13,16, 23 79:2,10,16,23 80:6, 17 81:13,20,24 82:2,7, 14,17 84:9 85:18,22, 25 86:6,9,17,21,24 87:14,20 88:1,5,9 89:4,20,25 90:3,12 91:5,9,17,21,24 92:2,9 93:8,21 94:17,24 95:2, 7,10,15 96:4,8,16,24 97:8,23 98:3,7,12,17, 21 99:8,18,24 100:20 101:2,10,14,17 102:9, 17,21,24 103:5,7,10, 13,22 104:3 105:10 106:24 107:5,19 108:17 110:10,21,24 111:2,14 112:1,16,18 113:14 114:1,8,12,15, 18 115:10,17,20,22,24 116:2,6,13 117:10,13 118:7,14,17,20,24 119:3,8 120:5,9 122:6, 10,15,19,22 123:8,17 124:3,6,14,21 125:7, 15,18,24 126:2,4,21 127:13,18 128:3,7,24 129:8,11,16,20,22 130:10,23 131:5,14, 19,24 132:12,15,18 133:8,12,20 134:6,15 135:5,8,13,16 136:1, 14,22 137:1,4,8,12 138:1,14,20 139:9,13 140:7,13,18,21 141:4, 10,13 142:7 143:11, 20,25 144:3,13,18 145:7,17,21,25 146:3, 11,14,18,21 148:18 149:3 150:16,25 151:3,6,20,25 152:12 153:15,23 154:1,3,21 155:15,23 156:5,8,11, 15,22 157:3,14,22 158:7,17,23 159:1,17 160:4,20 161:10,13, 16,23 162:2,4,21 163:1 164:5,11 165:9 167:4,15,18,24 168:3 169:9,17,21,24 170:4,</p>	<p>9,18 172:16 173:2,8, 15,25 174:11,15,18,22 175:1,12,19,22,25 176:5,9,14,25 178:10, 17,21,24 179:6,20 180:6,13,22 181:5,8, 11,24 182:5,8 184:2, 12,16,21,25 185:3,18, 22 186:11,15,17,24 187:1,4,7,10 188:6,13, 21 189:11,14,19,22,25 190:6,23 191:2 193:10 194:3,7,10,21 195:6, 15,23 196:1,15,19,22 197:3,7,10,23 198:1,6, 9,24 199:2,10,14,17, 23 200:15,22,25 201:3 202:5,12 203:5,9,12, 19,22,25 204:10 205:1,13,20,24 206:2, 7,12 207:3,10,21 208:4,8,11 209:7,10, 13 210:4 211:12 212:1,4,9,16,25 213:5, 7,10 214:5,12 215:5,9, 13,17 217:13,21,24 218:2,22,25 219:5,20, 24 220:6,9,12,16,23 221:2,5 222:15,20 223:3,6,9,17,23 224:1, 7,9,12,19 225:10,13, 16,22,25 226:3,7,10, 16 227:21 228:1,8 230:19 232:6,12,22 233:2 234:14,21,24 235:2,7,13,16,20 236:1 237:1,7,25 238:13,20 239:8,14,19 240:2,7,10,15,24 241:10,13,16,19,22 242:5 243:2,7,14,17, 22 244:4,9,12 245:1,8, 11,14 246:12 249:1,12 250:10,13 251:13 252:24 253:4,8 254:18 255:23</p> <p>nonburglary 191:22</p>	<p>nondisclosure 86:16 94:23 95:17 150:23 184:19</p> <p>nonsexual 75:2</p> <p>noon 96:23 112:25 137:19, 24 138:5 146:5 179:24 195:1</p> <p>normal 126:15</p> <p>north 5:16,18,20 9:24 32:12 36:23 80:2 108:8 171:25 172:1 192:6 197:4,5,8 243:11 244:1</p> <p>northern 32:11 33:7 35:5 50:12</p> <p>Northwest 28:11,22,25 31:16</p> <p>Nos 145:1 196:8</p> <p>note 10:8 22:15 66:7 162:13</p> <p>noted 234:5</p> <p>notice 70:20 216:6 242:13,20</p> <p>noticeable 248:7</p> <p>noticed 53:4 56:13 223:13</p> <p>notices 15:21</p> <p>noticing 91:1</p> <p>November 7:2,15 117:4 147:16 183:12 227:4 236:14</p> <p>number</p>
---	--	---	--

8:1 11:24 231:15,17, 19 235:13,14	offender 188:3	17:6	Oregon 29:15
numerous 63:9 165:5 247:22 248:20	offenders 163:6	online 168:25 186:1 255:2	original 34:22 207:7 223:11
Nyjuwon 181:23,24 194:23 199:24 241:1	offense 8:19 183:13,15 237:17	open 8:12 22:10 51:19 53:2 63:11 72:22 73:7 101:5 128:11 182:18 193:16 194:17	originally 36:12 55:10 172:7 192:20 249:6,8
<hr/> O <hr/>	offenses 163:21	opened 173:11	outcome 78:9 162:13
o'clocks 182:1	offered 167:5	opening 39:2 43:19 58:5	outslick 106:3
O-N-E-V-A-I 17:7	offers 155:17	operate 29:14 37:10	outstanding 38:9 42:19
obey 227:15	office 12:21 16:21 22:12 25:6 26:15 32:7 35:20 38:9 63:9 72:3,7 76:15 82:5 87:6,15 90:1 91:25 92:25 95:23 103:10,20 111:12 112:6 114:18,22 115:2,4 118:22 129:13 132:9 137:5 140:22 151:13 156:12 161:19 174:19 176:2 181:13 185:6 199:20 208:13 213:2 220:13 223:18 235:3	operating 23:20 54:8	overlap 18:20
obligations 39:6	officer 12:4 21:13 23:11 26:1, 3 27:21,22 31:18,19 33:2 35:6,8 36:17 45:1 50:14,18,20 66:2,3 68:11,13 70:16 78:7 104:19 166:17 169:5 236:24	operations 24:8 25:10	overnight 168:25
observe 226:11	officers 31:23 44:18 45:9	opinion 154:25 239:15	overturn 86:25 95:17
obstruct 104:18	Officially 138:20	opium 69:1 70:7	owed 38:16,25
obtain 66:8 210:14	oftentimes 207:11	opportunity 19:14 33:8 49:9 52:18, 23 70:22 71:1 78:17 87:1 99:2 111:10 151:12 153:6 165:15 167:8 179:1 185:4,13 189:16 223:11	owned 12:19 53:5 248:22
obtained 23:6	old-school 122:1	oppose 131:20,21	owning 159:5
obtaining 25:11 209:21	Onevai	opposed 8:4 21:24 95:7 109:8 125:24 212:10	<hr/> P <hr/>
occupation 27:6		option 59:21 101:4,5	P-A-P-P-A-S 11:25
occurred 44:13 48:2 102:3 151:17 152:10,17		order 4:4 93:3 132:18,20,25 133:1 167:20,22 169:3 227:15	P-O-O-L-E 36:11
October 7:15 9:2,15 182:22 183:14		orders 71:9	P-T-A-S-Z-Y-N-S-K-I 15:16
odd 23:21			P-U-S-Z-K-I-E-W-I-C-Z 32:19
offended 250:5			p.m.

196:13 241:9 244:6 245:7	pass 47:7 59:11 212:18	peace 170:15 200:10	personality 39:3
packet 178:1 216:23	passed 198:7	Pearl 104:11	personally 33:2 254:9
paid 19:5 24:22 41:10 54:3 93:16 99:3 105:18 191:17 248:22	passes 9:19 11:8 15:6 16:20 22:6,12 26:15 28:6 35:19 95:15 111:3 118:20 129:11 131:25 137:4 140:21 146:3 156:11 161:17 175:25 194:10 206:2 208:11 212:14,15 235:2	Penal 130:7	pertaining 242:3
Palace 69:1	past 20:17 23:18 49:6 53:3 73:24 149:18 163:11, 15 177:7,12 189:1 204:22 208:25 233:20	pending 49:7 59:7,8,10 60:7,9 74:24 98:10,18	petition 75:5 167:2 168:10
paper 186:2 238:10	path 110:12,13 111:4,6,8	Pendleton 44:16	PFI 44:3
paperwork 39:13,17 41:1 42:17 65:9,18 107:9,12 164:21 165:16 169:1 202:6 225:2,15 240:12	paths 23:18	penitentiary 106:2	ph 108:13
Pappas 11:18,25 12:18 13:13, 20,25 14:24 15:8	patient 133:2	people 8:14 23:22 33:17 42:23 47:13 51:10 56:20,23 57:4 62:15 122:1 127:14 145:4 152:21 179:7 195:24 207:11 250:4 252:19	phone 84:19 115:3 216:3
paraphernalia 147:25	patrol 21:13 23:9,11 26:1,3 27:11,12,20,22 31:17, 19 33:2 35:6,7 36:24 50:13,18,20 66:1,3 67:13 78:7	people's 47:18	photo 70:2
parking 30:21	patrolman 17:21	percent 56:20,24 104:13	photos 69:15 74:2
parole 148:2 204:22	pattern 158:14	perfect 37:1 70:8 136:13	physical 76:19 77:20,23 193:2, 5
paroled 204:18	pay 19:9 56:19 57:23 70:13,18,19 232:17	period 166:17	PI 24:1,2
part 34:13 62:2 63:2,17,22 94:13 143:8 195:7 200:20 206:21 216:11	paying 42:23 56:12,20 71:15	permanent 26:1	pick 15:25 69:6 115:4 157:25
part-time 71:16 72:12,15	payment 19:25 165:2 168:24	permit 139:2 173:20 180:18 219:16	pieces 15:25
partner 15:23	payroll 20:6 21:5 40:7 42:21 56:7,10	perpetrator 34:10	piggyback 252:8
partnership 14:2		person 5:12 88:17 97:13 117:21 149:17,21 171:9 182:20,23 183:1,25 213:19 246:23	PIL 14:1
party 157:25		personal 33:5 60:15	PILB 54:24 58:10 216:3 240:12 249:14 250:17, 24 254:12
Pasadena 97:14			Pinnacle 247:4,24
			pins 137:7
			place

13:12 52:17 55:19 56:19 57:13 105:21 108:12 111:25 128:13 227:3 249:3,5	171:3,21 172:2,17,20 192:4 233:2	possess 127:25 159:25 175:6 176:18 182:19,20 209:22 210:15 236:14	practice 44:25
plan 19:25 117:19,20,24 118:3 124:24 128:9 192:10 197:18	policies 247:10 249:24	possession 81:2,6 82:20 83:7,15, 25 88:12 90:19 92:14 104:10 116:20 127:22, 25 141:19,22 147:2,3, 10,13,20,24 148:5,8 152:10 155:4 158:6 159:22 160:10 182:15 183:17,21 188:1 198:18,20 213:15 219:9 221:11 222:12 225:4 226:22 227:5 228:20 236:11	precede 252:13
planned 10:3 79:7 96:13 116:3 141:7 156:25 180:10 190:3 197:20 224:16 235:23	policy 71:10	possibly 13:20 38:4 122:23	precedence 189:1 233:11
planning 128:14	political 59:1	post 71:9	preclude 22:9
plate 231:15,17,18,21,22	Pollard 156:16,17 179:17,20 196:6	posted 254:4	predecessor 253:12
plates 231:6	Pontiac 164:16	postpone 100:18 101:6,13 102:14 165:13 166:2, 23 167:8 168:7,16,21 169:15 239:5,10,24	Prefer 43:13
play 59:15	Poole 36:3,4,6,10,12 37:11, 23 39:15,18 40:4,17 41:7,20 42:22	postponed 79:21,22 100:10 102:24 159:12 198:4 244:20	preferred 47:24
player 68:4	pop 110:8 217:10 228:6	postponement 165:10 168:14	premature 59:19
pled 153:8	popped 211:6	postponing 101:16 167:16	present 9:18 10:3 11:7 15:5,11 16:19 17:2 26:13 28:5 32:5 35:18 42:13 51:7 66:19 74:14 75:24 76:1,2 78:15 79:7 82:1 86:23 89:24 91:23 95:14 96:13 102:23 111:1 114:14 116:3 118:19 129:10 137:3 140:20 141:7 144:2 146:2 151:5 156:10,25 158:25 159:9 161:15 169:23 174:17 175:24 178:23 180:10 181:10 185:2 189:13 190:3 194:9 196:21 197:20 199:16 203:11 206:1 208:10 218:1 220:11 223:8 224:16 226:2 235:1,23 240:9 241:21 245:13,21
PO 149:1	pops 127:6	potentially 165:13	president 28:21
podium 67:7 97:9	Porter 195:18,19 209:11,12, 15 210:10,12,18 211:8,11 212:8,24 213:4,6	pounds 74:4	pretty 32:25 47:25 128:10,16
point 19:9 24:13 33:19 45:7 58:8 84:15 124:4 138:11 177:24 240:17 255:11	Porter's 211:22	PPO 8:13	
pointed 171:22 172:15	portion 79:3 177:25 247:6		
pole 142:3	poses 59:18		
police 12:4,11 23:5 33:4 36:17 68:11,23 69:10 70:16 73:16,17,21 76:11 77:16,17 169:8	position 27:9 47:23 124:10 172:15 178:7		
	positions 51:13		
	positive 10:12,14 66:10 117:11 203:15 244:10		

<p>142:23 228:13 249:10</p> <p>preventing 171:10,12</p> <p>previous 112:8 152:11</p> <p>previously 88:22 97:17 152:9 190:18 219:10 226:23</p> <p>Prince 156:16 179:17,20 196:6</p> <p>printed 41:19</p> <p>prints 110:2,8 227:7 232:9</p> <p>prior 211:23 214:22</p> <p>priors 92:24 147:14</p> <p>prison 82:23 83:2,16,19,20 84:3,18 85:5 104:12, 24 105:4 119:19,20 147:12,15,21 148:10 158:16 204:16,23 213:19 221:14</p> <p>prisoner 210:17</p> <p>private 14:3,7,20 21:13 23:7, 10 24:5 26:1,3 27:11, 12,20,22 31:17,19 35:6 36:20 50:13,18, 20 66:1,3 67:13</p> <p>Pro 93:5</p> <p>probation 81:4,7 83:5,7,9 88:15, 18 90:20 92:16 97:15 104:16,20,25 117:2 128:1 130:4 139:4 141:24 147:7,17 148:1,7 158:5 162:15, 25 163:10,18,20</p>	<p>164:10,11,17,25 165:7,19 166:11,17, 19,22 167:23 168:10 169:5 183:18,22 189:6 200:22 202:2,10 214:3 221:15,20 222:5 227:3,10 232:12 236:7,8,15 237:19,21</p> <p>probationary 166:16 168:11</p> <p>problem 12:13 62:6 73:10 119:8 218:21</p> <p>problems 42:23</p> <p>procedure 71:10</p> <p>proceed 245:20,21 247:12</p> <p>process 16:8,12 18:16,17 19:6, 22 25:5 54:5 55:13 58:1,24 60:6 63:13 66:23 95:20 100:15,16 109:15 111:20,22 112:5 123:18 124:2 133:24 144:16 165:3 179:3</p> <p>professional 173:11</p> <p>professionally 39:4</p> <p>program 14:5 85:23</p> <p>prohibited 182:20</p> <p>projects 107:25</p> <p>promise 121:4</p> <p>promptly 39:6</p> <p>pronounce</p>	<p>28:15 198:25</p> <p>proof 83:23 85:10</p> <p>proper 166:23</p> <p>properly 151:16</p> <p>property 73:16 182:19 190:14 191:8,16 192:20 206:25 213:25</p> <p>prosecute 209:24 210:1 211:17, 25</p> <p>prosecuted 77:8</p> <p>prosecution 211:16</p> <p>protect 251:10,11</p> <p>Protection 247:4,24</p> <p>prove 165:8</p> <p>proven 41:12</p> <p>provide 33:8 39:8,20 93:2 142:16 162:19 167:14</p> <p>provided 6:3 40:14 64:12 112:9 130:5 148:24 164:19 225:14 255:3</p> <p>providing 9:25 13:5 56:7 254:25</p> <p>provision 166:14</p> <p>provisional 6:20,25 7:17,18,23 81:11 84:7 89:2 93:5 105:8 113:24 117:6 130:9 135:24 139:7</p>	<p>142:1 148:15 157:13 160:2 162:12 170:17 175:10 176:23 180:20 188:4 198:23 200:14</p> <p>provost 45:9</p> <p>Ptaszynski 15:11,15,20 16:10,11, 23</p> <p>public 5:3,11,15,16,17,20,22 13:2 14:9 68:10,14 104:19 165:23,25 227:3 246:7,10,13,14, 22</p> <p>pull 10:20 82:3 105:23 106:5 107:14 108:2,16 116:12 171:7</p> <p>pulled 106:17 172:14 229:20</p> <p>punished 251:22</p> <p>purchase 81:2</p> <p>purchased 231:11</p> <p>purpose 27:10</p> <p>purposes 65:3</p> <p>push 69:18 103:1</p> <p>pushed 19:6 69:11 70:1</p> <p>pushing 43:25</p> <p>Puskiewicz 35:11</p> <p>Puszkiewicz 32:17,18 33:12,15 34:4 35:23</p>
--	--	--	---

<p>put 14:22 22:1 30:22 31:20 46:13 72:5 74:16 76:16 84:17,21, 24 110:8 122:14 142:19 148:20 172:5 186:1 191:14 192:21 207:12 212:23 217:9 218:20 232:25 233:1 238:9 254:21</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Q</p> <hr/> <p>QA 68:2 247:5,23 248:20 249:13 250:15</p> <p>QAS 248:18</p> <p>qualifications 8:14</p> <p>qualifying 14:19,23 16:14 20:15, 19,23 21:15 26:5 27:24 29:4 31:21 35:9 53:16 55:10 66:5 75:19 78:8 248:10</p> <p>Quality 252:16</p> <p>qualms 24:21</p> <p>quarter 6:4,12,14,18,21 8:10, 11,18</p> <p>question 13:19 17:25 37:15 41:4 45:9 53:21 56:5 58:20 61:17,23 87:16 101:21 108:23 121:6 134:19 139:12,14 141:1 157:16 165:10 188:8,24 200:15 214:16 228:11 233:5 242:6 247:8,20 248:9</p> <p>questioning 45:10</p>	<p>questionnaires 255:1</p> <p>questions 6:5,9 8:6,24,25 9:3,4,5 10:19,22 13:8,16 14:14,15 16:3,4 17:23 18:11 21:8,9 23:13 25:20,22 27:14,15 29:21 30:12 31:6,8 33:11 34:16 35:1,3 37:13 40:9 41:21,23, 24 44:5 49:22 50:8,9 53:18 55:3 56:2 58:3, 14 61:1,13,14 64:14, 24 65:21 68:17 75:16 76:4,6 78:1,2 81:14,15 84:9 86:10,11 89:5,7 91:9,11 93:9 94:17,19 95:24 101:18 102:8,9, 11 105:12 108:18,19 110:14,17 114:2,3 117:14 118:8,9 120:11 125:7,9 128:4,25 129:2 130:11,24,25 136:14,16 139:9 140:6,7,8 142:8 143:11,13 149:4 150:17,18 152:13 154:4 155:23,25 157:14 158:8,9 160:5, 20,22 170:19 173:16 174:1,2 175:13,14 177:1 178:10,12 180:23,25 184:3,13,17 185:6 188:7,14,15 191:3 193:10,11 198:24 199:3,4 201:4 202:13,14 204:11 205:2,14,15 207:22,24 210:4 211:10,13 214:13 215:19 217:13, 15 219:25 220:1 222:20,22 225:17,18 228:9 234:14,16 237:8,25 248:15 249:21</p> <p>quick 13:19 56:5 61:17 88:4 132:14 137:19 141:1</p>	<p>168:12 180:1 200:15</p> <p>quicker 7:18</p> <p>quickly 14:6 254:21</p> <p>quorum 5:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">R</p> <hr/> <p>R-U-L-L-A 22:24</p> <p>race 7:1</p> <p>rack 46:13</p> <p>raise 10:2 180:9 197:19 224:14 235:21</p> <p>raised 10:4 43:15 79:8 96:14 116:4 141:8 157:1 180:11 190:4 197:21 224:17 235:24</p> <p>Ramirez 43:4,5,7,11 44:6,10,15 45:18,23 46:4,12,16, 19 47:4 48:10,12 49:2, 6,11,13,17 50:4,19 51:23</p> <p>ramping 253:19</p> <p>ran 74:5 92:18 147:9 164:18 171:15 215:9</p> <p>rape 74:2</p> <p>Rayvon 170:5 174:10</p> <p>reach 87:18 208:13 220:13 226:4 228:5</p>	<p>reached 38:21 162:17</p> <p>reaching 31:12</p> <p>read 13:9,10 37:23 40:16 135:3 137:15 142:21 146:5 166:15 186:2 214:22 215:2 244:5 246:12</p> <p>reading 24:1</p> <p>ready 44:1 169:10 172:15 197:7 198:2</p> <p>reaffirm 39:2</p> <p>real 117:9</p> <p>realize 23:23</p> <p>realized 211:24</p> <p>realizing 24:12</p> <p>reapply 51:17 111:25 124:6, 18,19 144:12,14 179:1</p> <p>reapplying 152:9</p> <p>rearrested 232:9</p> <p>reason 41:18 70:18 72:10 74:1,22 75:7 87:10 94:5,23 135:1 142:13 149:24 153:5 177:23 202:22 208:15,19 215:2 219:13 233:17</p> <p>reasons 6:24 71:8 109:21</p> <p>recall 45:16 46:10,14 47:14</p>
---	--	---	---

85:2,10,13,15 120:18 121:2,8,9,11 124:11 163:9 229:4,5 231:5	record 9:23 20:18 22:2 37:1 39:3 54:1 57:17 59:17 63:7 65:11 67:5 70:8 75:3 79:1,19 87:5 90:16 92:12 100:9 103:18 109:4 111:16 112:4 114:20,25 123:14 137:25 140:1 141:17 144:15 146:24 163:13 172:21 189:3 197:2 211:23 223:19 227:23 233:15 242:12 243:13 253:11 254:21	registered 188:2 210:24 231:11, 14	remembering 127:1
receive 7:23 77:3 104:5 134:11 182:19 242:20	records 38:19,24 93:4 228:4	registration 79:3 80:17 83:11 118:13 188:3,9 234:20 245:15	remove 171:8
received 6:19,22 7:15 8:10 10:11 12:25 40:25 54:11 90:20 92:15,21 93:3 104:24 115:15 117:8 138:24 140:3 141:23 147:5,7,11,15, 17,21,25 148:6,9 205:6,10 206:18 207:2 209:20 225:7 254:2	recount 46:7	registry 189:4,5	removed 166:22 172:17,21 218:7
receives 65:7 77:7	recourse 166:21	regular 64:1 137:14	render 14:5
receiving 31:19	red 143:1 186:20 216:16	regulations 247:18 248:1	renew 59:10
recency 78:9 158:14	Redmond 113:11 151:21 179:16 196:5	regulatory 31:24 66:7	renewal 122:22
recent 14:10 39:23 72:18 87:5 131:11,22 132:4 157:17 203:4 211:16	redone 25:9	rehab 236:13	Reno 23:5 33:13,17
recess 255:25	reduced 48:22	reinstated 14:10	rent 232:3
reckless 98:15	reenlist 49:9,16	related 19:2 190:17	rental 19:5 231:3
recklessly 251:20,21	reference 138:11 246:1	relations 232:11	rented 229:17 231:23
recognizance 232:20	referenced 218:5	relationship 12:10 30:8 73:11	renting 229:14
recommend 25:25 57:3 166:18 242:25	referred 227:6 230:24	release 104:12	repeat 100:25
recommendation 109:1	reflect 38:2 104:7	released 201:22 232:20	rephrase 228:16
recommendations 56:16 248:12	refused 148:6	releases 18:7	repo 8:15
recommending 55:17	register 183:9	releasing 158:4	report 7:13 8:24 13:21 18:6 23:20 37:17 38:2 41:12,16,18 72:5 73:16 91:1 104:6 121:2 135:23 138:24, 25 164:9 202:9 205:8 206:19 207:1,7,9 209:18 215:3
		remain 127:2 144:10 151:11	reported 7:12 37:25 71:22
		remember 45:22,23 52:15 68:25 84:16 93:18 109:16 120:16,23 121:3,9 122:2,5,8,9,11 207:5, 12,13 227:23 228:17	reporter 11:22 28:20 32:14

68:6 180:5 229:16 231:25	resolved 59:22	reveal 207:2	room 44:22,24 45:4,6,24 71:19 153:17 182:9 191:15 192:22 224:13 253:17
reports 5:25 222:18	resolving 18:13	revealed 38:14	roommate 19:4,8
represent 17:20	respect 168:22 169:3	Revenue 38:13	rope 103:1
representations 60:19 242:24	respectfully 74:12 76:17	review 186:7 238:22 245:17	roster 142:2 176:24 224:6
representative 38:13	responded 255:1	reviewed 13:24	rotation 137:15
reputation 252:12	Response 32:11 35:5 50:12	reviewing 24:12	rotation 137:15
request 42:14 65:5 86:24 95:17 100:20 133:21 166:21 168:9,12	responsibilities 20:20 39:5 51:12	RGIVEN 11:23	roughly 233:1
requested 138:4	responsibility 21:1,5	rib 69:15,18	route 103:20 167:11
requesting 23:10	responsible 20:6 250:19	Rick 11:23 14:21	row 132:22
requests 247:14	rest 165:4 240:17	Ricky 255:13	rules 89:12 163:17 247:23 248:12
require 255:17	restricted 5:13 246:24	rid 178:5	ruling 223:11
required 83:12 252:20	restructure 15:22	Rio 244:15	Rulla 22:22,23,24 23:4,13, 16,17,24 25:2,4,19 26:2,6,17
requirements 31:25 55:11 66:7 164:4	result 38:16	ripe 195:4	run 44:2 74:7 83:20 85:8
reservations 131:11	results 13:3 14:5,6 117:9 126:21	roadway 221:19	Runaway 108:13
residency 59:9	retain 70:15	rob 171:6	running 43:24 45:25 46:2
residential 130:3	retire 29:23	robbery 119:18 221:14	rushed 192:4
resist 104:19	retired 12:4 23:4,8 29:6 30:6	Robert 52:1 53:12 62:12 66:2 79:25 80:1,7 97:4 138:8 145:8 220:18 226:13 234:19	
resolution 103:2	retrieve 74:7	role 53:14	<hr/> S <hr/>
resolve 18:9 19:17	return 97:20	roll 4:4,7	Sacramento 229:11 230:17,23
	returned 10:10		Saddiq

181:25 187:3	scene 153:5 154:11 171:20	5:2 166:14 196:7	201:8 214:3 219:16
safe 106:14 238:9	Schedule 83:7	sections 233:7	September 6:4 9:1,14 88:24 119:16 148:3 183:20 210:8 211:24 213:17 221:13
safety 13:2 14:9 33:1 68:10, 15 71:8 165:23	scheduled 99:7,9 112:13 168:17 169:16 197:13 240:1	security 17:15,18 23:7,9 24:3, 4,6,11 27:6,8,12 28:10,22,25 29:13 31:16 33:9 36:2,20,23 38:22 42:4 43:18,20 44:1 51:25 52:22,24 53:3,5 55:19 56:14,25 57:5,10,13,15 62:24 66:1 67:23 68:10,13 71:5,19 75:19 106:20 120:2 121:23 122:25 123:24 124:10 128:11, 15 148:16 155:17,21 165:23 173:5,9 192:13,22 204:20 248:7 254:12,16	serve 201:10,11,13 204:15
Saladino 4:6,8,12,15,18,22,25 6:1 7:21,22 10:13 63:6,7,25 64:16,20 79:18,19 90:13,15,16 91:7 92:10,11,12 96:21 103:17,18 109:3,4 112:3,4 114:24 134:3,8,9,16 139:25 140:1 141:15, 16,17 146:22,23 148:22 163:9,12,13 170:3 188:25 189:2,3 220:21 233:14,15 235:15 241:12 242:10, 11,12,15 243:19 250:12 253:10,11 255:21	scheduling 253:17	self-disclose 136:4	served 84:25 166:16 200:20 202:10
Salas 235:10,12,19 236:3 237:8,18,22,24 238:4, 15 239:7,13,18 240:14	Schmalz 79:11	self-reported 25:1	server's 16:8,12
Salas' 239:25	school 43:15 68:23 69:14 70:9,21 208:21	self-reporting 25:17	service 36:23 44:14 49:1 67:23 165:24 183:6 219:17
sale 82:25 83:19 85:3 90:19 92:17 141:22 147:4,20 159:24 175:6	SCOPE 120:1,3 121:22 123:4 232:10 236:18 237:13	sell 92:15 127:25 147:6	services 17:17,20 21:15 28:10, 22,25 31:16 33:9 75:19 87:7 93:6
Samuel 29:3 31:18	scorned 155:12	selling 86:7	serving 15:10,16 16:7 85:3 104:13
San 33:3,4 88:13	Scot- 18:15	send 56:23 165:1 242:21	session 67:10 144:24 197:11, 12
Sandoval's 12:21	Scott 31:18	sense 56:21 99:22	set 101:8 163:22 202:10 247:18
sat 186:23	Scottsdale 18:16,25	sentence 141:24 183:5 200:16 201:12 202:24	sex 73:23 163:5 188:2
scan 8:4	screen 31:13 71:22	sentenced 81:4,7 82:22 83:1,4,8, 12,16,19,23 84:2 85:4 88:14,17 97:15 104:12,16,19,23 105:3 117:2 119:18 128:1 139:4 183:4 200:19	sexual 33:14,17 72:21 74:17, 25 76:19 77:8,24
	seal 172:21 173:1		sexually 73:14 74:6
	sealed 93:17 172:23 228:5 233:10		shaped 254:16
	searches 221:24		shaping 254:14
	Seatac 30:25		share 20:16
	seated 96:17		
	seconds 78:24 95:1 175:21		
	section		

sharing 209:7	62:11 192:6	255:22	solve 22:4
sheet 216:15	sign 143:2 186:1 216:16	sit 110:5 131:10	solving 19:20
sheets 34:19	significant 38:15 238:17	situation 13:15 51:16,22 84:20 93:18 154:15,22 164:12 165:21 167:6 171:17,19 191:11 193:25 202:23 211:4 229:9 238:14,21	son 38:4
sheriff 121:6	silent 131:10	situations 22:4 78:18 159:5	sort 42:17 103:2 132:25 233:2
sheriff's 38:17 57:14 120:1,2 121:9 122:16,17 123:9,12,18,19 124:15	Siler 90:7 103:23 104:2,3 105:12,13,17 107:2,8, 21 108:6,8,11,18,25 109:14 110:1,5,15 111:13,24 112:2,14,17	six-month 117:5	sorts 238:19
Shiver 127:17,20 128:5,8,25 129:5 213:7	similar 18:19 185:9	ski 70:4	sounds 24:25 44:24 47:5 85:19 99:4 149:20 212:14 216:23 240:14
Shivers 127:17 128:6,7,10,19 129:15	simple 69:18 75:2 222:4	skiing 69:19	south 5:21 243:25
shoplifting 187:19	simply 154:9,19	Slap 251:17	Southern 208:16
short 50:25	sir 22:25 23:24 24:23 25:16 26:14 28:7 31:5 33:25 34:15 36:5 40:19 43:6 46:18,19 47:4 51:8 53:11 61:20 66:20 68:24 76:17,23 77:18 82:4,12 88:2,5 89:13,25 92:7 95:16 96:4 97:8,23 111:23 112:16 114:15 115:12, 25 118:21 119:1 127:10,16 129:17,18, 22 133:10 137:6,8 141:1,10 144:3,19 146:12,18 150:1,13 151:6,18 155:2,7,14 156:15,19,20 161:25 170:7 174:24 176:11 179:6 181:17 182:2 185:3 186:11,21 187:8 189:23 194:21 206:3, 10 208:12 213:10 219:5 220:25 221:2 226:12,16 235:17 246:9 247:1 250:15, 20,25 251:7,12,18	slapped 69:8,23,25	Spanish 52:7,13 55:15 58:22, 23,25 61:4,19 62:9,15 63:16
shortfalls 43:20		slash 81:2 83:11 84:1 104:19 159:22 187:17, 20	speak 18:4 46:4 55:14,15 60:14 61:19 62:15 87:22 106:20 123:13 152:20
shoulder 69:19 70:1		sleep 74:13 75:12	speaking 18:7 58:21,23,25 61:4 62:9
show 7:13 19:10 30:9 105:24 107:12 130:6 164:9 181:16 183:10 196:13 202:9 218:8 237:12 242:1 245:19		slick 106:1,4 111:5	speaks 52:7 109:25 252:16
showed 67:25 120:1 205:10		slow 68:6	specialist 64:3
showing 93:3 208:24 217:3		small 38:22 83:1	specialize 15:21
shows 207:9 236:12 243:9 245:5		smoke 86:3	specifically 24:7 27:10 142:25
sic 41:4 69:24 75:9		smooth 254:22 255:6	spectrum 68:1
side		sober 86:1 117:23	speed
		sodomy 187:17	

98:16	starting 12:1 21:3 59:9 80:19	11:11 132:6	story 30:19 46:2 153:21 155:7
spell 11:21 15:14 17:4 28:20 32:13	starts 220:21	stayed 230:14 233:25 252:15	straight 43:18 47:25 107:25
spelled 32:16,18,21	state 7:19 11:20 13:1 15:13 18:15 23:6,25 28:19 29:14 32:13 36:12,22, 23 41:16 46:8,10,25 77:2,5,7 109:6 119:19 126:13 142:3 166:15 169:8 184:14 186:5 204:16,19,20,23 210:20 227:24 228:4 230:23 231:11 242:23 247:1 251:19 254:15, 17	step 19:21 38:11 114:23	strangulation 116:24
spelling 28:22 36:11	stated 18:8 40:1 41:10 46:3 150:9 151:9 162:18 178:8	stepped 4:20	stress 51:12
spending 158:16	states 13:21 39:13 42:24 51:10 87:18 94:7 162:14 185:23 186:3 230:23	steps 26:16 35:21 58:9 82:5 90:1 91:25 110:13 114:19 118:22 129:14 132:10 137:6 140:23 144:13 156:13 161:20 168:4 174:20 176:3 181:14 199:21 208:13, 25 209:2 213:3 220:14 226:5 235:4	stuff 39:12 64:4,11 72:5 87:13,21 105:23 106:8 107:3 110:7 111:11 203:15 209:4 217:3 229:19 232:2 247:14 248:18 250:16 253:17, 24
spoke 23:25 52:13 77:11 84:19 162:17 172:1	statewide 12:20	Steven 203:20	subject 31:24 66:6
spot 142:25	stating 162:20 164:2 242:22	Stewart 186:22,25 206:9,11,14 207:16,23 208:14 209:9	submission 102:1
spouse 88:21 119:23 214:10	statistics 6:6	Stewart's 208:3	submit 8:3 168:9 249:14
St 38:21	status 6:20 7:24 14:19 37:18 60:10 61:7,10 64:2,6 78:8 123:5 168:11 188:20 238:2	stole 229:23	submitted 69:19 70:3 81:10 84:6 89:1 102:2 105:6 135:23 139:6 157:11 162:11 240:12
stability 40:6	statute 24:1,12 163:22	stolen 176:18 182:19 227:5 228:20,24	subsequently 238:18
staff 93:5 255:15,16	statutes 249:3,5,6,8	stood 10:4 79:8 96:14 116:4 141:8 157:1 180:11 190:4 197:21 224:17 235:24	substance 81:3 82:21 83:4,15 88:13 90:19 104:10 147:14,20,25 148:5,9 159:25 160:1 162:16 163:23 164:8 175:6 183:22 187:21,23,25 188:1 198:19,20
stand 10:1 60:2 79:5 96:11 125:2 141:6 180:9 197:15,19 224:14	statutory 31:24 66:6 166:14	stop 66:21 137:13 143:1 154:11,14,23,24 155:1 178:1 186:1 216:7,15, 16 218:6	substantially 190:11
standard 47:18	stay	stopped 158:1	substation 192:5
staple 254:15		stores 12:19	
start 4:10 24:11 27:11 50:16 57:15 79:10 80:18 100:15 101:2 113:3 115:13 138:2 172:2 177:7,15 182:2 197:3 198:3 241:14			
started 25:5 36:20 43:19,21, 24 44:20 52:21 53:22 56:12,17 58:2 70:2 124:2 171:3,4 236:20			

successfully 66:9	224:20,22 225:12,14 226:18,20 230:20,22 232:8,14,24 236:2,4 237:6,12	taking 12:24 25:17 56:9	137:11 180:1 190:19 196:25
suggestion 165:12 242:3	Swarthout's 234:12	tale 212:23	ten-minute 196:24
suggestions 250:16	sway 46:6	talk 44:11 77:12,13,16 106:14 152:16 170:22 210:8 228:14 229:9 255:14	tendency 8:2
Sunrise 68:12 73:13	swear 9:20 67:11 96:11 197:16 235:21	talked 74:25 172:19 247:11 248:2	tentative 101:8
Sunrise's 73:16	switchblade 236:15	talking 57:10 73:3 193:20 230:13	tenure 36:17,25
super 37:4,5 250:3 253:19	sworn 10:5,7 26:25 67:8,10 79:5,9 82:14 88:6,8 96:10,15 115:24 116:5 133:10 141:1,5,9 146:19 151:23 156:20, 21,23 157:2 159:15 162:2 170:7 176:12 180:8,12 189:23,25 190:5 197:14,22 203:23 224:9,13,18 235:25	tamper 236:22 237:16	terminate 72:11
supervisor 27:8	sympathize 13:12	tape 142:4	terminated 68:22 71:2,5,20,25
support 95:25	system 13:1 172:23 204:23	Tavaris 113:7 146:7 179:13 196:2	terms 163:19
supposed 70:18 73:4 80:14,15, 18 89:12 115:15 137:17,21 138:10 146:4 194:25 244:6	<hr/> T <hr/>	tax 38:10	test 148:6
surrounded 171:7		taxes 20:6 21:5 40:7	testify 152:23 197:15,24
suspended 104:24 122:12 141:24 148:6 183:5,19,23 219:16 221:15,19 222:5		team 103:1 249:17,23 250:24 254:1	testifying 10:4 79:8 96:14 116:4 141:8 157:1 180:11 190:4 197:21 224:17 235:24
suspense 114:21		teams 24:6,7	testimony 9:21 10:1 197:18
Swarthout 6:7,11,12 7:8 8:8 13:20 34:19,21 37:15, 19 40:14,24 41:3 48:5, 7 49:18,19,25 50:2 116:7,17,18 117:12 119:11,13,14 120:8 121:20,22 122:24 123:3,11 125:8 127:19,21 129:23 182:10,12,13 213:11, 13 214:8,17,20,24 215:8,11,15 219:6,8, 23 221:7,9 222:19	table 99:5 100:6	telephone 40:18	text 73:5 74:2
	tabling 100:11	telling 105:19,20 106:5,7 192:3	texted 72:25
	tack 237:20	tells 251:24	Thanksgiving 230:13,15
	tactics 69:9	temporary 125:2	theft 88:17 162:10 175:9 198:17 200:7,9 206:24 213:24 221:22 236:6 237:19
	tail 202:2	ten 6:16 8:20 42:23	theme 223:13
	takes 107:10		Theron 90:5 103:16 138:18

<p>thing 17:8 19:5 34:22 40:17 61:8 109:11 110:1 118:2 135:2 151:16 163:14 172:25 173:6 211:9 231:9 248:25 249:16,20 251:23 252:3</p> <p>things 18:19,22 24:9 33:6 39:14 68:14 95:22 122:13 155:20 234:13 248:16</p> <p>thinking 45:5 163:21</p> <p>Thomas 12:3 14:24 170:5,8,11, 19,22,24 171:2 172:13,19 173:4,10, 17,22 174:21 244:17</p> <p>Thomas's 174:10</p> <p>thought 14:2 24:18 55:17 84:17 109:15 124:9 171:17 177:21 215:2 243:3</p> <p>threatened 171:7</p> <p>ticket 236:25 238:6</p> <p>tickets 106:7</p> <p>Tier 188:2,20</p> <p>tiles 114:22</p> <p>time 7:9 8:3 25:10 30:22 34:4,12 43:12 48:21 49:14 50:24 51:23 53:4 55:11,24 57:24 60:8 64:18 69:2 70:10 72:4,9 73:14,19 78:18,</p>	<p>22 80:13 84:6,15,25 85:3 96:1 101:23 102:25 105:7 106:2, 11,13 107:16 117:16 118:2,13 126:25 129:5 131:22 137:20 139:6 140:12 143:4 145:8 150:11 151:6,13,18 153:7,25 154:12 155:5 156:4 158:2,22 159:2, 3 160:15 161:9 163:6, 9 164:16 165:3,8 166:25 167:13 168:9, 13 171:8,14,16,18 173:20 174:10 178:25 181:4 189:15 190:20 193:19 194:2,12,14,18 199:18 200:21 201:1, 9,12,14 202:10,22 204:14 205:19 207:5 214:4,7 219:12 226:25 227:13,18 229:7 230:8,14 234:20 236:16 237:3,15,20 238:17 239:21 245:23 249:12,13 253:1,3</p> <p>timeline 48:4 134:2 186:5 240:16</p> <p>timelines 133:1</p> <p>timelinewise 122:7</p> <p>times 12:13 23:18 51:9 63:9 105:23 110:7 148:3 253:7</p> <p>tired 73:9 74:20</p> <p>today 9:21 23:11 68:3 81:12 84:8 89:3 91:4 98:23 101:6 105:9 111:4,22 139:8 204:24 223:10 242:9 243:4</p> <p>told</p>	<p>52:14 69:11 73:14 75:5 77:15 93:15 97:20 98:1 105:20 107:15 108:2,3,16 110:6 150:12 154:10 168:1 171:9 172:5 179:8,10,24 196:14 241:8,11 242:7,9 245:6 252:14</p> <p>Tommy 159:14</p> <p>tomorrow 115:2 242:7,8 243:3 245:17,18,25</p> <p>token 75:9</p> <p>top 96:19 99:11</p> <p>total 8:10 201:1</p> <p>totally 71:12 109:15</p> <p>touch 16:22 32:8 161:19 181:13</p> <p>touches 171:9</p> <p>town 34:5 77:9 124:7</p> <p>townhouse 74:4</p> <p>traffic 106:7</p> <p>trail 80:8,10,20 82:8,10 90:6,7 92:4 103:22 112:23 113:5 181:21, 24 199:25 243:18</p> <p>trailed 103:14 132:24 137:16 146:6 179:9,11 189:20 240:24</p> <p>trails</p>	<p>243:18</p> <p>trained 117:20 155:19</p> <p>training 23:7 24:4,7,8 44:17,18 69:10</p> <p>transcript 9:4</p> <p>transcripts 8:25 9:5,14</p> <p>transferred 164:25 228:21,23 231:10</p> <p>transit 77:4</p> <p>transition 254:22 255:6</p> <p>translating 52:6</p> <p>translator 62:16</p> <p>transport 147:6 159:24 221:18</p> <p>transportation 165:6</p> <p>treating 127:3</p> <p>trespass 190:16 227:9</p> <p>trespassing 191:22</p> <p>trial 97:22 99:17 101:8 153:7,11,12 222:10</p> <p>trouble 171:5 213:1 234:1</p> <p>true 41:12 59:16 71:12</p> <p>truth 75:14 154:10</p>
--	--	--	---

truthfully 154:14	192:14,15	unfounded 33:21	upstairs 73:8 74:5
tune 155:20	Unauthorized 222:8	uniform 247:10 249:10	urge 252:17
turn 249:15	unaware 18:8 24:17 210:21	uniformed 248:6	Uriah 156:18
turned 43:18 95:11	unbecoming 45:15	uniforms 249:14 253:23	usual 255:7
turning 114:21	Undecided 125:25 126:1	United 148:15	utilize 87:4,7
Turns 45:6	underage 152:21	Universal 93:6	uttering 206:17
TWIC 107:11	underneath 123:10	University 30:20	<hr/> V <hr/>
type 9:25 51:13 155:4 185:10 238:23	understand 11:12 13:14 21:2 33:22 39:24 42:22 47:4,12,13,16 48:17 51:9,12 55:14,15,20 63:16 75:18 77:18 94:10 97:24 98:8 108:14 109:16 110:3 111:4 119:7 124:4 126:25 150:14 154:7 165:21 185:16 207:13 217:6 230:7 238:3	unlicensed 8:17 54:3,13 55:16,25	V-E-L-E-Z 52:6
typically 38:16 109:5 233:16 238:22 239:2	understanding 24:25 58:18 59:8 76:24 133:23 249:4	unraveling 38:11	vacancy 53:5
typo 139:24	understands 54:5 62:7 144:6	update 37:18 117:9 151:17 206:19	vaguely 45:18
Tyrone 186:22 206:9	understood 22:19 24:21 55:23 140:5 153:13 177:13 189:7	updated 104:6 115:5 138:25 188:12 207:8	valet 30:21
<hr/> U <hr/>	Underwood 29:2,3,6,9,23,25 30:3, 5,9 31:2,18	updates 5:25 254:24 255:4	valley 43:21 44:2
U-N-D-E-R-W-O-O-D 29:3	undisclosed 176:17	upheld 134:12	Vannah 114:21
Uber 229:19 232:2	Uneducated 184:8	uphold 110:19 125:13 126:23 143:18 145:15 150:21, 22 158:13 178:15 184:19 188:19 193:18 194:2 196:12 202:21 203:3 217:19 223:1,10 233:12 241:7 245:5	Vegas 12:4 20:3 30:23 37:2 43:14,21 68:4 87:17 107:13 108:9,14 117:24 148:12 171:25 172:1 173:9,12 192:6 229:11
Uh-huh 40:4 141:12 186:16 237:24 244:11	unemployed 155:17,22	upholding 39:4	vehicle 83:11 142:5 176:19 204:5 210:19,22 211:5 213:19 222:8 227:5 228:20,25 231:3,10 236:22 237:16
ultimately 71:2		ups 252:9	vehicles 247:10
UMC 68:12		upset 73:12 154:22	
unable 164:21			
unarmed 120:2 121:23 125:4,5			

Velez 52:5,12,15 53:8 56:11 57:3,9 61:2 62:1,4,10, 22,24 63:4 65:13,16 66:8,25	viewpoint 5:14 246:25	196:21 199:16 203:11 206:1 208:10 218:1 220:11 223:8 226:2 235:1 240:9 241:21 245:13	warrant 38:16,19
Ventress 119:2,10 244:10	Vinny 255:19	voting 12:13	Washington 29:14 107:24 221:21 222:1,3,7,11
verbal 69:7 192:25 193:4	violate 148:2	<hr/> W <hr/>	watching 34:7
verifications 12:24	violation 71:9 83:7 130:4 236:8 237:20	W-A-G-N-E-R 12:3 29:1	weapon 30:17 113:20 116:20 127:23 128:1 141:20, 23 142:3 147:2 149:1 152:6 155:5,7 170:14, 25 172:8,9 180:18 181:16 182:16 200:6 213:15 219:10,15,18 221:11 226:22 227:16
Verona 82:9 103:15 138:17 145:9	violations 8:12 71:9	Wagner 11:19 12:3,10 14:24 28:13,24 29:1 31:23	weapons 117:18 157:7 183:13, 15 226:24
versed 64:3	violence 77:20,24 90:23 92:24 113:22 183:4,6 206:22	wait 7:9 45:2 99:18 135:9 166:2 179:25 186:9,13 195:10 214:17 231:16 239:16 242:7	website 254:5
versus 48:24 111:6 166:5	Virginia 36:22	waiting 7:6,25 10:10 134:14, 17 243:8	WEDNESDAY 4:1
vessel 227:6 228:20	visit 253:23	waive 233:11	week 34:6 41:11 73:3 75:5 109:17 161:22 230:12
veteran 43:12 44:2	visiting 30:19	walk 77:23 193:24	week-long 44:18
Veterans 43:2 50:17	voice 161:4 252:15	walked 67:7 73:24 96:9,10 145:4 195:7,16,24	weeks 12:24 41:11
vice-president 28:25	volumes 109:25 252:16	wall 191:15,18 192:22	weight 82:3
victim 47:15	vote 10:7,8,16,18,21 12:14 65:4 101:6,10,12 110:11,13 126:11,13, 22 145:11 167:16 195:2,4,22 196:8 239:5 244:7 245:2	Wallace 159:14,15,16,19 160:6,9,12,16,21 161:7,21	weird 123:9
Victor 65:14 133:14	voted 9:18 11:7 15:5 16:19 26:13 28:5 32:5 35:18 42:13 51:7 66:19 78:15 82:1 86:23 89:24 91:23 95:14 102:23 111:1 114:14 118:19 129:10 137:3 140:20 144:2 146:2 151:5 156:10 158:25 161:15 169:23 174:17 175:24 178:23 181:10 185:2 189:13 194:9	wanted 17:19 24:11 34:12,18 37:5 56:14 57:12 62:19 72:10 73:2 106:10,20 128:21 152:25 177:7,24 178:5 208:14 210:24 214:17 215:17 237:10 238:12 243:2 252:8	west 43:13
video 71:20 72:1,8			wet 73:5 74:20
Vierneza 181:20 194:22 198:11, 14 199:1,2,3,22			whack 137:14
Vierneza's 199:9			Whatley 92:5 112:24 144:23 145:9
view 159:4			
viewed 189:6			

Z

Zach

255:16

zebra

65:14